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932,149 843,468 10.5 782,221 755,319 688, 605
761,155 686,273 10.9 656,644 660,518 605,308
170,994 157,195 8.8 125,577 94,801 83,342
439,874 388,387 13.3 349,169 306,421 265,216
20,681 27,665 -25.2 18,715 12,055 10,144
14,245 19,542 -27.1 13,109 8,121 6,832
) 0.34 0.46 -27.1 0.31 0.19 0.20
) 2.97 2.74 8.6 2.18 1.69 1.54
6.9
11.8 18.7 16.0 11.9 18.2
1949 10
2016
500 119
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(
12 31
2016 2015 (
PICC P&C 310,453 281,010 10.5
PICC 105,115 89,608 17.3
PICC 23,020 16,031 43.6
PICC P&C ( 98.1 96.5 1.6
PICC © 4,131 2,698 53.1
PICC O 325 274 18.6
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PICC P&C 232 245 13

PICC 149 183 34

PICC 200 175 25
(1) 2015 12 31 12 PICC PICC 2016 12 31

2015 12 31
@ CIRC
PICC P&C
PICC PICC
(3) 2015 12 31 PICC PICC 2016 12 31
2015 12 31

(4) 2015 12 31 PICC P&C PICC PICC

2016

2016
PICC P&C 33.5 PICC 4.8
PICC 1.1 TWPs
2016 PICC P&C PICC PICC PICC TWPs 310,453 116,556
28,055 125

2016 TWPs 2015 26,175 21.5 31,791
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439,874 388,387 13.3
311,306 281,817 10.5
105,548 90,539 16.6
23,020 16,031 43.6
25,319 33,970 (25.5)
20,681 27,665 (25.2)
14,245 19,542 (27.1)

0.34 0.46 (27.1)

11.8 18.7 6.9

(
2016 2015
12 31 12 31 (

932,149 843,468 10.5
761,155 686,273 10.9
170,994 157,195 8.8

2.97 2.74 8.6

81.7 81.4 0.3

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 (GWPs)
439,874
2015 27,665 25.2
2015 19,542
2016
11.8
2015 12 31 2.74 8.6
2015 0.46 27.1
2015 12 31 81.4
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225,877 204,271 10.6
12,562 12,970 (3.1)
13,840 11,605 19.3
23,433 18,561 26.2
2,999 3,230 (7.2)
19,535 18,944 3.1
13,060 12,236 6.7
311,306 281,817 10.5
GWPs 2015 281,817 10.5 311,306
GWPs 2015 204,271 10.6 225,877
2016
GWPs 2015 12,970 3.1 12,562
GWPs 2015 11,605 19.3 13,840
GWPs 2015 18,561 26.2 23,433
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206,904 66.7 162,617 57.9
109,044 35.1 85,579 30.5
56,681 18.3 52,749 18.8
41,179 13.3 24,289 8.6
87,968 28.3 103,755 36.9
15,581 5.0 14,638 5.2
310,453 100.0 281,010 100.0
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270,783 245,110 10.5
15,280 20,302 24.7)
1,579 1,465 7.8
297,733 276,587 7.6
172,087 153,819 11.9
46,578 31,541 47.7
1,208 1,638 (26.3)
59,530 62,838 (5.3)
278,988 249,505 11.8
24,921 30,223 (17.5)
(4,439) (6,340) (30.0)
20,482 23,883 (14.2)
2015 245,110 10.5
2015 20,302 24.7
2015 153,819
PICC P&C 2015 62.7 0.8
2016
PICC P&C
2015 31,541 47.7 46,578
2015 1,638 26.3 1,208
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85,572 81.4 74,512 83.2
16,595 15.8 11,495 12.8
01 0.1 83 0.1
2,857 2.7 3,519 3.9
105,115 100.0 89,608 100.0
87,282 17,725 8,692
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59,166 56,568 4.6
55,622 53,135 4.7
49,421 51,852 @.n
6,201 1,282 383.7
3,413 3,264 4.6
132 169 (21.9)
35,559 24,524 45.0
25,226 18,323 37.7
15,555 13,731 13.3
9,671 4,591 110.7
9,306 4,658 99.8
1,027 1,543 (33.4)
10,389 8,517 22.0
8,683 6,649 30.6
8,454 6,647 27.2
229 2 11,350.0
8 62 (87.1)
1,698 1,807 (6.0)
105,115 89,608 17.3
TWPs 2016
TWPs 62,854 40,121 13,580
TWPs
2016 12 31
189,261 TWPs 5,323
1.49
TWPs
13 25
12 31
2016 2015
13 (1)( ) 91.3 88.9
25 (2)( 85.3 84.3
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105,162 89,850 17.0
15,720 21,046 (25.3)
621 327 89.9
121,736 111,310 9.4
109,187 97,996 11.4
6,900 4,307 60.2
1,752 1,612 8.7
6,972 6,819 2.2
124,637 110,551 12.7
447 3,460 (87.1)
5 96 (94.8)
452 3,556 (87.3)
2015 89,850 17.0
2015 21,046 25.3 15,720
2015 327 621
2015 97,996 11.4
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2016
78.5 32.8
18.6 73.7
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(
12 31
2016 2015
( ( ( (
544 2.4 357 2.2
7,831 34.0 5,932 37.0
85 0.4 86 0.5
13,660 59.3 8,768 54.7
535 2.3 457 2.9
366 1.6 432 2.7
23,020 100.0 16,031 100.0
TWPs 2016
TWPs 544 11,713 85 14,813 535

366
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11,006 7,787 41.3
10,724 7,517 42.7
10,599 7,399 43.2
125 118 5.9
276 265 Y.
6 5 20.0
3,220 1,769 82.0
2,662 1,398 90.4
2,265 1,175 92.8
398 223 78.5
461 287 60.6
97 84 15.5
8,794 6,475 35.8
218 18 1,111.1
217 17 1,176.5
1 1 -
4 3 33.3
8,571 6,454 32.8
23,020 16,031 43.6
3,414 13,582
2016 12 31 27,389
TWPs 2,818
0.68
TWPs
3,950
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12 31
2016 2015 (
20,925 14,351 45.8
1,782 2,070 (13.9)
93 101 (7.9)
22,995 16,403 40.2
20,479 14,328 42.9
666 448 48.7
456 407 12.0
1,322 1,431 (7.6)
22,921 16,608 38.0
74 (205) -
(71) 69 -
3 (136) -
2016 2015 14,351 45.8
20,925
2016 2015 2,070 13.9 1,782
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2016 2015 14,328
42.9 20,479
2016 2015 448 48.7 666
2016 2015 407 12.0 456
2015 136 2016
12 31
2016 2015

39,278 34,287

36,552 32,396

30,219 27,225

28,410 24,050

25,285 23,468

24,791 22,170

23,507 19,147

16,379 15,863

16,041 14,208

16,024 13,527

182,102 160,310

438,589 386,649
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452 640 (29.4)
1,316 1,139 15.5
1,768 1,779 (0.6)
2 8 (75.0)
1,039 895 16.1
1,040 902 15.3
733 865 (15.3)
(190) (230) (17.4)
543 635 (14.5)
2016 2015 640 29.4 452
2016 2015 1,139 15.5 1,316
2016 2015
75.0
2016 2015 635

14.5 543
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( (
46,729 5.8 49,884 6.7
345,149 42.7 393,503 53.0
91,884 11.4 148,097 19.9
240,531 29.8 232,147 31.3
14,597 1.8 12,942 1.7
96,906 12.0 107,578 14.5
129,028 16.0 111,627 15.0
W 12,734 1.6 13,259 1.8
132,866 16.4 109,663 14.8
94,028 11.6 71,755 10.5
38,838 4.8 31,908 4.3
282,994 35.0 189,771 25.5
109,714 13.6 100,355 1.5
85,834 10.6 53,308 7.2
@ 87,446 10.8 36,108 4.9
807,738 100.0 742,821 100.0
@
@
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581 539
19,356 20,905
18,785 20,656
/( 554 255
/( 17 20
- (26)
5,089 16,768
5,062 4,581
/( 1,621 12,141
/( (432) 185
(1,162) (139)
/( 18,435 12,615
43,461 50,827
®¢ 5.8 7.3
®¢ 5.7 5.5
€)) ( )/ (
)] (
)/ (
@
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23,831 20,441 16.6
(32,683) 10,902 -
5,447 (20,915) -
(@)
CIRC
(
2016 2015
12 31 12 31
« H® (
PICC
220,890 198,150 12.5
172,358 157,883 9.2
78,518 67,143 16.9
() 284 205 11
( 220 235 15
PICC P&C
140,793 121,478 15.9
113,864 104,783 8.7
49,071 42,824 14.6
() 287 284 3
( 232 245 13
PICC
46,380 45,314 2.4
39,257 38,365 2.3
26,263 20,935 25.5
() 177 216 40
( 149 183 34
PICC
6,695 4,551 47.1
6,200 3,883 59.7
3,107 2,220 40.0
() 215 205 10
( 200 175 25
(1) 2015 12 31 PICC P&C PICC PICC
2016 12 31 284 2015 12 31
11 220 2015 12 31

15
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33
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

2016 11 China Association of Actuaries CAA

PICC

PICC

PICC PICC
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VIF
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China Insurance Regulatory Commission
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2016 C-ROSS
CIRC CIRC 2005 83
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2.1.1 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 PICC
2016 2015
10 10
CoC 21,949 16,546
(3,468) (2,491)
CoC 18,481 14,055
39,076 41,267
57,558 55,322
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
2.1.2 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 12 PICC
2016 2015
10 10
CoC 5,943 3,752
(1,812) (1,054)
CoC 4,131 2,698
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
2.2

PICC 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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10
CoC
134 3,403 592 2 4,131
2016
CoC
2015 252 2,164 261 22 2,698
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
PICC
PICC
CAA
2016 12 31
3.1
10
3.2
5.25
3.3
PICC
3.4
PICC

PICC
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4.1 2016 12 31 PICC

CoC CoC
21,949 18,481
23,624 20,453
11 20,529 16,802
24,166 20,060
20,557 17,644
50bps 26,470 23,081
50bps 17,730 14,266
10 21,655 18,180
10 22,245 18,784
10 20,689 17,721
10 23,051 19,128
10 21,689 18,227
10 22,209 18,734
10 21,899 18,385
10 22,210 18,695
10 21,902 18,434
10 21,997 18,529
80/20 21,510 17,872

10

4.2 2016 12 31 12 PICC

CoC CoC
5,943 4,131
6,750 5,139
11 5,263 3,269
5,418 3,332
6,351 4,774
50bps 8,151 6,412
50bps 3,753 1,902
10 5,260 3,448
10 6,626 4,814
10 5,256 3,679
10 6,565 4,539
10 5,847 4,038
10 6,040 4,225
10 5,863 4,066
10 6,025 4,221
10 5,843 4,031
10 6,043 4,231
80/20 5,658 3,783

10
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5.1 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
5.1 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31 53,028
3,538
4,369
3,597
(1,652)
(1,691)
(1,747)
(1,336)
(548)
10 2016 12 31 57,558
2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2016
2015 2016
2016
2016
2016
2016

2015 2016
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PICC

PICC
2016 12 31

2016 12 31
2016 12 31

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2016 12 31
2016 12 31

2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31

2016 11 China Association of Actuaries CAA

PICC

PICC

PICC PICC

PICC

PICC

73/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

PICC 2016 11 CAA
PICC PICC
PICC

FIAA, FCAA
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2016 12 31
1.1
EV
ANW
VIF
CoC
China Insurance Regulatory Commission
CIRC
VINB
1.2
2016 C-ROSS
CIRC CIRC 2005 83
CAA 2016 11
PICC
PICC

PICC
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10
2.1
2.1.1 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 PICC
2016 2015
10 10
coC 1,755 1,131
(324) (188)
CoC 1,430 943
5,687 3,154
7,118 4,007
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
2.1.2 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 12 PICC
2016 2015
10 10
CoC 446 329
(121) (55)
CoC 325 274
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
2.2

PICC 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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2.2.1 2016 12 31 2015 12 31 12 PICC
10
CoC
13 284 28 - 325
2016
CoC
2015 34 191 49 - 274
1.
2. 2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31
PICC
PICC
CAA
2016 12 31
3.1
10
3.2
5.25
3.3
PICC
3.4
PICC

PICC
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3.6

3.7

3.8

PICC

PICC

PICC

2.5

25
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4.1 2016 12 31 PICC
CoC CoC
1,755 1,430
1,873 1,588
11 1,652 1,292
1,538 1,225
2,007 1,667
50bps 2,143 1,847
50bps 1,364 1,014
10 1,695 1,368
10 1,819 1,502
10 1,725 1,420
10 1,784 1,442
10 1,750 1,427
10 1,759 1,437
10 1,727 1,402
10 1,785 1,465
1,351 1,027
2,191 1,871
80/20 1,762 1,439
10
4.2 2016 12 31 12 PICC
CoC CoC
446 325
483 379
11 414 277
467 349
422 296
50bps 561 450
50bps 321 189
10 399 277
10 493 373
10 440 322
10 453 328
10 444 322
10 449 328
10 436 314
10 456 336
274 152
618 498

80720 444 323

10
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5.1 2015 12 31 2016 12 31

5.1 2015 12 31 2016 12 31

2015 12 31 4,473
(49)

429

346

(327)

212

(407)

2,485

(44)

10 2016 12 31 7,118
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2015 12 31

2016 12 31
2015
2016
2016

2016
2016

2015 2016

2016
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27 28
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2016 12 31
42,423,990,583 -
)
2016 12 31
33,697,756,583
H 8,726,234,000
42,423,990,583
2016 12 31
30,600,000,000 | 30,600,000,000
2009 28 |30,600,000,000 | 30,600,000,000 (493,578 )\ (493,578 )
3,891,050,583 | 34,491,050,583
2011 15 3,891,050,583 | 34,491,050,583 (62,763 y | (56,341 )
H
2012 12 7,932,940,000 | 42,423,990,583 7,932,940,000 | 42,423,990,583

(127,958 )| (684,299 )
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2016 12 31
100820 29,896,189,564 70.47
100032 3,801,567,019 8.96
11
H 616,319,000 1.45
10038 175 H 1,113,405,000 2.62
American International
Group, Inc.
BlackRock, Inc. H 523,988,998 1.24
35,951,469,581 84.74
602,279,000 H
State Street Global Advisors SSGA
14,040,000 H
H
523,988,998 H
Trident Merger, LLC
BlackRock Investment Management, LLC
BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc.
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC BlackRock Holdco 6,
LLC BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc.
BlackRock Institutional Trust
Company National Association
BlackRock Fund Advisors BlackRock
Capital Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Advisors, LLC
BlackRock International Holdings,
Inc. BR BR Jersey International
Holdings L.P. BlackRock Cayco Limited

BlackRock Trident Holding Company Limited
BlackRock Japan Holdings GK
BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd.
BlackRock Canada Holdings LP
BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC
BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited
BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd.
BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited
BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco
Pte. Ltd. - BlackRock Asia-Pac Holdco,
LLC HK BlackRock HK Holdco Limited
BlackRock Asset Management North Asia
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Limited BlackRock Group Limited
BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. UK
BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited BlackRock
International Limited BlackRock

Luxembourg Holdco S.a r.1l.
BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings Limited
BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited
BLACKROCK (Luxembourg) S.A.

UK BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
BlackRock Fund Managers Limited
BlackRock Life Limited UK BlackRock UK

BlackRock (Singapore) Limited
BlackRock Asset Management (Schweiz)

Holdco Limited

AG
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2016 30.93
10 3.09 27.84
424.24 10 0.337881
14.33 2017 23
2017
22 2017 H
H o 2012 12
H HE )
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
3.94 4.96 3.92 5.85 3.78
(56.11 ) (70.63 ) | (55.82 ) | (83.30 ) | (53.83 )
3.59 3.20 2.88 3.35 2.65
(51.12 ) | @45.57 ) | (1.00 ) | @7.70 ) | (37.74 )
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H )E )
2016 2016 2016 2016 10 2016 11 2016 12
3.07 3.35 3.48 3.25 3.28 3.30
@3.72 ) | @.70 ) | @9.56 ) | (46.28 ) | (46.71 ) | (46.99 )
2.84 2.94 3.11 3.04 2.93 2.98
40.44 ) | (a1.87 ) | (@4.29 ) | (43.29 ) | (41.72 ) | (42.44 )
20 5 20
55
PICC P&C PICC PICC ANC 17 18
11 12 1985
1998
1998 2003
2003
2007 2003 2006
2006 2007
601628 2628
LFC 2007
2009 2012
2007 PICC P&C 2007 PICC
2008 PICC ANC 2014 PICC
2010 2011
1981 2002
59 1982
1987 1987 1995
1995 2003
2003
2014

1982

86/358



59
39172 39420
2014
57
1981 2002
2002 2004
2015 CIRC
55
1992 12 1994
1994 1998
2012 2016 12
2007 2014 12
1983
48
2007 2011
2016
2016
1994
2012

11
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1977 1989
2011
2011
1977
21
2004 CIRC
2015 10
2004
1983
1998 2007
2007
2015 10
2008
1994 2001
2001
2004 12
2012
2007
2013 10
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69 2012 10
1971 12
1978 12
2014
10 16
1988 1994 1992 1993
1988 1997 1995 2004 1997
1998 10 11
1969
53 1986 2003
1999 2009
2004
2009 10
2009 2009 12 2011 11
601116
002713 600420
600031
01359
1983 1986 10
1996

3.10
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1996

2004 11

2015
19

10

300369

1995

2005

2001

000825)

2002

2015

85
10

300065

1992

2012

2010

76

2015

53

47

002339
000001
00241

2012
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HSBC
HSBC
PICC P&C 2013 12
1989
1993 1996
2001
2005 12 2015
000402
2006
2013
2012
1983
1989 10
1995 1998
1998 10
2007 2017
21
835078
300038
603986
600996
2009
2017

2004
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1980 1999
1999 2002 2002 2009
2009 2012
00966
2012 2006
59 1986
1995
1996
2002 12 2005 12 2005 12 2014 12
2002 12 2007 11
2013 10 600469 2008
2014 000969
2011 2008
2011 2016
2011 12 2015 2015 12
2017
1983 1986
1995
53
1990 MOF 2009 12
2009 2009 12
2009
1987
1990
57
1987 10 MOF 2004
2000 2004
2004 2007
2007
2017 PICC
2009
1997 12

1999
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49
1993
2001

2004
2007
2009
2013

58
1985

2006 12 2016
2006 12 2009
2007

2014 2016
2010

55
1995

2001 12
2008 10
2007 2008 10
2008 10 2009

2013 2015

00966

PICC 2017
2016

2004 11
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

PICC

oOoOooodn
2000 12
2003
2003 PICC P&C
2006
2008 PICC
2016
1993
2005 12
2006 12
2003
2014 2016
2012
2016 PICC
2011 11 2016
1982
1980
2001 12
2004
2009 2015
2009 2012
2015 2015

1988 2001
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52
2013
2017
1985
59
1994
2013 10
2011 PICC P&C
2015 12
PICC
1988
46
2007
2008 2010
2006
2014
51
1993
PICC P&C
2007 2015
1991
50
1985
2007 2010
2009
2010
2006 11 PICC P&C

1998
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oOoOooodn
1988 1994
1994 2013
2013
1988
5] 1982
1994 2010
2010 2014
2010 11 2013 12
2011 88
2017 PICC
1982
1998
2007
2010 2014
2015 PICC P&C 2013 11
2016 11 PICC
2004
1998
1991
2001
2001
PICC P&C
2010
1985
1998
PICC P&C
2006 2007
2008
2009
2011
1993
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56

1993 11 2003
2003 2005 PICC P&C IT

2006 IT

2015
1981 12

52

600638
2016
1991

2016 14

2015

IT

IT
2005
2007
IT
2007
1993 11
2008 2010
12
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2014 PICC
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2016 12 31 11

1 2 3
4
5 6
7
8
9
10
11
12 13
14
15
16
MOF CIRC

10
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PwC KPMG
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2016 14
2016
2016

2016
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2016

9.51

CPA

28.97
2.55
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

11
12
13

14

2016
2017 24



2016

10
11
12
13

2016 24
2016 12 29
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2017
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12



11

2016

2016 11
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2016

2016

26
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10

2016

10
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MOF CIRC
No. CIRC CIRC
C-ROSS
2016
2016 CIRC
PICC P&C
PICC AMC
PICC CIRC
PICC

PICC

102/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn
2016

2016

2016

2013
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2
8
( ( ) ( ( )
7,000 - 7,900 -
21,318 5,177 23,620 9,510
28,318 5,177 31,520 9,510
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IFRS

2017

31

131

23

IFRS

25

193
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38 59

16.13
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2016 12 31
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2016 2015

5 439,874 388,387
5 (32,749) (31,255)
5 407,125 357,132
5 (10,255) (7,821)
396,870 349,311

10,519 9,678

6 33,075 44,336
7 2,859 2,686
443,323 406,011

113,583 93,319

203,236 180, 684

5,633 9,138

3,538 4,149

8 325,990 287,290
8 (24,237) (21,147)
8 301,753 266,143
4 53,664 35,963
9 4,333 4,603
(688) (632)

10 69,328 72,455
428,390 378,532

10,386 6,491

11 25,319 33,970
14 (4,638) (6.,305)
20,681 27,665

14,245 19,542

6,436 8,123

20,681 27,665

15 0.34 0.46
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2016 2015
5 7,095,168 6,264,682
5 (528,241) (504,143)
5 6,566,926 5,760,539
5 (165,413) (126,153)

6,401,513 5,634,386

169,671 156,106

6 533,500 715,140
7 46,116 43,325
7,150,800 6,548,957

1,832,094 1,505,235

3,278,197 2,914,433

90, 860 147,396

57,068 66,923

8 5,258,219 4,633,988
8 (390,943) (341,101)
8 4,867,276 4,292,887
4 865,600 580,083
9 69,891 74,246
(11,097) (10,194)

10 1,118,261 1,168,699
6,909,931 6,105,721

167,526 104,700

11 408, 395 547,936
14 (74,811) (101,700)
333,585 446,236

229,772 315,212

103,813 131,024

333,585 446,236

( )

15 5.48 7.42
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«
6(d)
«
31
27
31
39
)/
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2016 2015
( )

20,681 27,665
(6,598) 18,797
(876) (11,949)
1,162 165
1,650 (4,700)
212 2,986
(289) (38)
(4,739) 5,261
®) (13)

1 3
Q) (10)

165 548

73 62
(4,505) 5,861

332 428

(83) (107)

249 321

41 (272)

(66)

224 49
(4,281) 5,910
16,400 33,575
11,102 23,867

5,298 9,708
16,400 33,575




2016 12 31
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C )
6(d)
C )
31
)/
27
31
39
)/
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2016 2015
( )

333,585 446,236
(106,426) 303,196
(14,130) (192,737)
18,743 2,661
26,615 (75,811)
3,420 48,164
(4,662) (613)
(76,440) 84,860
(81) (210)

16 48

(65) (161)

2,661 8,839

1,177 1,000
(72,666) 94,538

5,355 6,904

(1,339) (1,726)

4,016 5,178

661 (4,387)
(1,065)

3,613 790
(69,053) 95,328
264,532 541,565
179,075 384,975

85,457 156,590

264,532 541,565
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2016 12 31

2016 2015
12 31 12 31
17 46,729 49,884
18 3 8
19 240,531 232,147
20 150,550 125,275
21 34,339 21,558
22,37 31,019 26,542
23 91,884 148,097
9,911 9,914
24 168,778 110,485
26 85,834 53,308
27 10,695 10,358
28 24,113 23,095
29 1,197 1,005
30 3,825 3,941
31 5,965 2,251
32 26,776 25,600
932,149 843,468
34 33,066 28,231
2,756 3,117
35 980
36 46,084 39,210
37 538,513 507,686
38 38,370 27,601
7,064 8,114
39 2,800 2,990
31 752 1,455
40 91,750 66,889
761,155 686,273
4 42,424 42,424
42 83,677 73,677
126,101 116,101
44,893 41,094
170,994 157,195

932,149 843,468
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2016 12 31

2016 2015
12 31 12 31
17 753,739 804,629
18 48 129
19 3,879,765 3,744,531
20 2,428,372 2,020,686
21 553,888 347,731
22,37 500,336 428,122
23 1,482,089 2,388,805
159,864 159,913
24 2,722,389 1,782,123
26 1,384,502 859,858
27 172,510 167,075
28 388,943 372,522
29 19,308 16,211
30 61,697 63,568
31 96,215 36,309
32 431,897 412,928
15,035,563 13,605,139
34 533,355 455,366
44,454 50,277
35 15,807
36 743,335 632,457
37 8,686,215 8,188,975
38 618,908 445,204
113,942 130,879
39 45,164 48,229
31 12,130 23,469
40 1,479,928 1,078,920
12,277,430 11,069,583
41 684,299 684,299
42 1,349,710 1,188,410
2,034,009 1,872,709
724,124 662,846
2,758,133 2,535,555

15,035,563 13,605,139
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2016 12 31

( (
41) ( ( ( ( 42 39)
42(a)) 42(b)) 42(c)) (d)

2016

42,424 19,925 5,840 5,770 1,300 2,232 (3) 594 (49)1,101 (15,010) (693)52,670 116,101 41,094 157,195

- 14,245 14,245 6,436 20,681

(3.487) - - 185  (4) 67 55 - - 4 (3,143) (1,138) (4,281)

o/
I
I

(3.487) - - 185 (4 67 55 - - 41 14,245 11,102 5,298 16,400

- - - 1,292 - - - - - 309 - - (1,601) - - -

B} } } . . - - - - - - - (959)  (959)(1,574) (2,533)
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_ , - - - - - - -1 12
_ - - - - oo oo - o83 - - (143) 63 (80)
2016
12
31

42,424 19,925 2,353 7,062 1,300 2,417  (7) 661 6 1,410 (15,153) (652)64,355 126,101 44,893 170,994
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2016 12 31
( 41) ( 42 ( 42 ( 42 ( 42 ( 39)
@) ®) ©) (D)
2016
684,299 321,300 94,199 93,070 20,969 36,002  (48) 9,581 (790) 17,759 (242,111) (11,178) 849,567 1,872,709 662,846 2,535,555
- - - - - - - - - - - - 229,772 229,772 103,813 333,585
- - (56,245) - - 2,984 (65 1,081 887 - - 661 - (50,697) (18,356) (69,053)
C )
- - (56,245) - - 2,984 (65 1,081 887 - - 661 229,772 179,075 85,457 264,532
- - - 20,840 - - - - - 4,984 - - (25,824) - - -
(15,469)  (15,469) (25,389) (40,857)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 194 194
- - - - - - - - (2,307) - @,307) 1016 (1 290)
2016 12
31 684,299 321,390 37,954 113,910 20,969 38,986  (113) 10,662 97 22,743 (244,418) (10,517)1,038,046 2,034,009 724,124 2,758,133
*
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2015 12 31
( ( (
41) ( ( ( ( (42 39)
) 42(2)) 42(b)) ) 42(c)) (@)
2015
42,424 19,925 1,951 4,011 497 1,966 5 191 (96) 802 (15,065) - 35,970 92,581 32,996 125,577
- - - - - - - - - - - - 19,542 19,542 8,123 27,665
(
) - - 3,889 - - 266  (8) 403 47 - - (693) 421 4,325 1,585 5,910
- - 3,889 - - 266  (8) 403 47 - - (693)19,963 23,867 9,708 33,575
- - - 1,759 - - - - - 299 - - (2,058) - - -
- - - - 803 - - - - - - - (803) - - -

- } _ , - - - - - - - - (402)  (402) (1,345) (1,747)
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i, i, . - - - - - - - 55 - - 55 (265) (210)
2015
12
31

42,424 19,925 5,840 5,770 1,300 2,232  (3) 594 (49) 1,101 (15,010) (693)52,670 116,101 41,094 157,195

1AS « )
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2015 12 31
( 4 ( ( 2 & ( ( 42 ( 42 ( 39
) @) ®) ) ©) (@)
2015
684,299 321,390 31,470 64,697 8,017 31,712 81 3,081 (1,548) 12,936 (242,998) - 580,196 1,493,332 532,225 2,025,557
- - - - - - - - - - - - 315,212 315,212 131,024 446,236
- - 62,730 - - 4,291 (129) 6,500 758 - - (11,178) 6,791 69,762 25,566 95,328
C )
- - 62,730 - - 4,291 (129) 6,500 758 - - (11,178) 322,003 384,975 156,590 541,565
- - - 28,373 - - - - - 4,823 - - (33,196) - - -
- - - - 12,952 - - - - - - - (12,952) - - -
(6,484)  (6,484) (21,695) (28,179)
- - - - - - - - - - 887 - - 887  (4,274)  (3,387)
2015 12

31 684,299 321,390 94,199 93,070 20,969 36,002 (48) 9,581 (790) 17,759 (242,111) (11,178) 849,567 1,872,709 662,846 -

1AS «C )
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2016 2015
25,319 33,970
(33,075) (44,336)

(688) (632)
(10,386) (6,491)
1,969 2,131

169 147

149 158
(161) (121)
2,761 3,404
408 703
474 222
(13,061) (10,845)
(13,171) (3,403)
10,769 2,081
26,350 28,361
(2,130) (329)
22,999 11,224
31,756 27,089
(7,925) (6,648)
23,831 20,441
28,356 27,811
6,865 6,195
522 1,258
(3,621) (3,551)
302 389
(22,914) (11,539)
(395,820) (278,465)
297,775 252,495
(474) (222)
56,326 16,531
(32,683) 10,902
12 -
4,835 (7,257)
15,000 -
(siooog (8,500)
980 293
(2,887) (3,704)
(2,533) (1,747)
5,447 (20,915)
(3,405) 10,428
49,884 39,307
250 149
46,729 49,884
1 1
39,803 34,022
6,925 15,861
46,729 49,884
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2016 2015

408,395 547,936

6 (533,500) (715,140)

(11,097) (10,194)

(167,526) (104,700)

11,28 31,760 34,373

11,29 2,726 2,371

11,30 2,403 2,549

7 (2,597) (1,952)

9 44,535 54,907

11 6,581 11,339

7,646 3,581

(210,674) (174,930)

(212,448) (54,890)

173,704 33,567

425,026 457,463

(34,357) (5,307)

370,974 181,043

512,224 436,946

(127,830) (107,232)

384,394 329,713

457,382 448,501

110,732 99,925

8,420 20,292

(58,407) (57,278)

4,871 6,275

(369,603) (186,124)

(6,384,577) (4,491,640)

4,803,111 4,072,744

(7,646) (3,581)

908,538 266,645

« (527,177) 175,849
194 -

/C ) 77,989 (117,055)
241,950 -

(129,040) (137,105)

( )/ (15,807) 4,726

(46,567) (59,746)

(40,857) (28,179)

/C ) 87,860 (337,359)
« ) (54,923) 168,204
804,629 634,022

4,033 2,403

753,739 804,629

17 16 16

17 642,022 548,775

17 111,700 255,838

753,739 804,629
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2016 12 31
1.
( ) 1996 22 (
) 69 ( 100052)
1949 10 20
( MOF )
2016 12 31
( P&C )
2.1
( 1ASB )
( IFRS ) ( )
16 ( Co )
2.2
2.3 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 11
IAS
IAS 16 IAS 38
IAS 16 IAS 41
IFRS 10  IFRS 12
IAS 28
IFRS IFRS 2012 -2014
1AS
1AS IAS
IFRS
IFRS
( ocCl )

oClI
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548

2.4

2 0ClI

0Cl1

191 )

aa A W N -

2016 12 31

IFRS

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 15

IFRS 10 IAS 28

I1AS
IAS 12
IAS 40
IFRS

2018
2019

2017
2017 (

2015 12 31
594 (2015 1 1
594
IFRS
IFRS
1
1
2
1
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 15
3
4
1
IFRS 2014 -2016
2018 )
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IFRS
IFRS
2009 11 IFRS
IFRS 2010 10
2013 11 IFRS
2014 7 a) b)
( FVTOCI )
IFRS
IFRS
FVTOCI
IFRS ( IFRS
)
IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS IAS 39
1AS 39

IFRS
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IFRS
2016 12 31 112,222
IFRS 9
FVTOCI
2016 12 31 168,778
2016 12 31 114,591
(
)
IFRS FVTOCI
IFRS IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
2016 12 31
IFRS 1ASB
( IFRS 17 ) IFRS
IFRS
IFRS IFRS IFRS
2016 9  IFRS IFRS 17 IFRS
IFRS
2021
IFRS 2016
IFRS IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS

(overlay approach)
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2015 12 31
90
2015 12 31
2018
IFRS ( CAS
) CAS
CAS IFRS
IFRS IFRS CAS
CAS
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS 15 1AS 18 1AS 11
IFRS 15
( )
IFRS 15 ( )
IFRS 15 IFRS 15
2016  1ASB
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
( )
IFRS 15
2016 12 31

IFRS 15
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IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17

IFRS 16

2016 12 31 46
2,284 IFRS 16

IFRS 16
IFRS 16

IFRS

~M
o

IAS

)
) ) )
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( )
( )

1.50 19.40
7.50 32.33
6.00 24.25

(13)
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10
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2016 12 31 30 - 101 2015
12 31 30 - 111 2016 12 31

2.97 - 5.69 2015 12 31 3.37 - 6.06

146/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2016 12 31
5.00 - 5.50 2015 12 31 5.00 - 5.50

2,320 2015 12 31 696
70
(
)
2016 2015
33.8 33.8
3.0 3.0
6.0 6.0
3.0 3.0
(
2016 2015
33.3 33.3
2.5 2.5
5.5 5.5

2.5 2.5
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C-ROSS
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2016 12 31
2,077
37
©)
26 (
) 19.99
IFRS
@)
45
®)

27
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2016 12 31
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270,783 105,162 20,925 - - - - 396,870
10,091 233 195 - - - - 10,519
15,280 15,720 1,782 452 4,017 121 (4,297) 33,075
1,579 621 93 1,316 3 229 (982) 2,859
297,733 121,736 22,995 1,768 4,020 350 (5.279) 443,323
297,570 121,498 22,982 1,202 an 88 - 443,323
163 238 13 566 4,037 262 (5,279) -
172,087 109,187 20,479 - - - - 301,753
46,578 6,900 666 - - - (480) 53,664
1,208 1,752 456 2 887 28 - 4,333

(415) 174) ©) @ (96) - - (688)
59,530 6,972 1,322 1,039 726 330 (591) 69,328
278,988 124,637 22,921 1,040 1,517 358 (1,071) 428,390
6,176 3,348 - 5 908 - (51) 10,386
24,921 447 74 733 3,411 @ (4,259) 25,319

(4,439) 5 )) (190) 4 (13) 29 (4,638)
20,482 452 3 543 3,452 (1)  (4,230) 20,681
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245,110 89,850 14,351 - - - - 349,311
9,710 87 (119) - - - - 9,678
20,302 21,046 2,070 640 3,731 (45)  (3,408) 44,336
1,465 327 101 1,139 18 347 (711) 2,686
276,587 111,310 16,403 1,779 3,749 302 (4,119) 406,011
276,480 111,207 16,397 1,391 388 148 - 406,011
107 103 6 388 3,361 154 (4,119) -
153,819 97,996 14,328 - - - - 266,143
31,541 4,307 448 - - - (333) 35,963
1,638 1,612 407 8 907 31 - 4,603

(331) (183) (6) @ (111) - - (632)
62,838 6,819 1,431 895 676 430 (634) 72,455
249,505 110,551 16,608 902 1,472 461 (967) 378,532
3,141 2,701 - 12) 968 - (307) 6,491
30,223 3,460 (205) 865 3,245 (159)  (3,459) 33,970

(6,340) 96 69 (230) 91 13 @)  (6,305)
23,883 3,556 (136) 635 3,336 (146)  (3,463) 27,665
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2016 2015 12 31 2016 2015 12 31
( )
2016 12 31
480,354 375,499 45,224 9,531 108,320 6,586  (93,365) 932,149
357,480 342,629 39,548 1,800 20,190 2,656 (3,148) 761,155
2,511 504 46 245 29 286 - 3,621
1,823 158 50 31 58 113 54 2,287
12,378 12,836 1,238 143 168 5 - 26,768
545 569 28 (13) 441 - - 1,570
2015 12 31
421,793 357,560 32,831 9,087 105,728 5,588 (89,119) 843,468
312,499 322,467 29,421 1,717 20,369 2,647 (2.847) 686,273
2,319 495 71 322 46 298 - 3,551
1,945 191 38 28 58 122 54 2,436
12,458 13,419 1,227 99 277 6 - 27,486
727 17 1 63 129 - (69) 868
(
) 0.91  6.45 6.70 (2015 12 31  0.91  6.45
6.70 )
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2016 2015
117,764 96,508
10,804 10,062
311,306 281,817
439,874 388,387
(711) (465)
(2,012) (1,631)
(30,026) (29,159)
(32,749) (31,255)
407,125 357,132
(11,150) (7,542)
895 (279)
(10, 255) (7.821)

2016 2015
32,253 32,410
2,175 12,396
(191) (305)
(1,162) (165)
33,075 44,336
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@
( ) 2016 2015
423 343
7,306 9,539
- 5,894 6,081
- 5,554 4,940
- 81 72
118 29
7,815 6,825
26,768 27,486
_ 4,418 4,113
- 644 468
5,062 4,581
32,253 32,410
()
( ) 2016 2015
- 530 215
_ 24 40
- 317 11,734
- 295 407
- 1,009 -
2,175 12,396
26
WIE)]
© « )/
( ) 2016 2015
- 17 20
_ (432) 185
( 27 224 (510)

(191) (305)
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(d)
( ) 2016 2015
- - 26
- 1,162 139
1,162 165
7.
( ) 2016 2015
842 808
324 206
161 121
() 165 138
1,367 1,413
2,859 2,686
8.
2016
( )
113,583 25 113,558
203,236 24,162 179,074
- 9,180 2,194 6,986
- 194,056 21,968 172,088
5,633 50 5,583
3,538 - 3,538
325,990 24,237 301,753
2015
( )
93,319 19 93,300
180,684 21,104 159,580
- 7,734 1,975 5,759
- 172,950 19,129 153,821
9,138 24 9,114
4,149 - 4,149

287,290 21,147 266,143
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10.

11.

) 2016 2015
1,928 2,131
38) 1,572 1,199
585 961
39) 84 101
47 52
138 182
(21) (23)
4,333 4,603
) 2016 2015
29,513 27,783
6,872 14,853
2,057 2,133
2,626 2,371
11) 408 703
27,852 24,612
69,328 72,455
) 2016 2015
@ ) 34,915 32,572
28)( ) 1,969 2,131
(  21(a) 390 320
(  32(d) 18 383
896 904
( 169 147
30)( ) 149 158
30 28
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2016 12 31
2016
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2016
( )
Q)
)
)
)
)

~
o/

2015

2015

2014
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2016 2015
31,842 29,525
3,073 3,047
34,915 32,572
2016
2016 2015
300 300
300 300
250 104
288 63
1,138 767
2015
2017
2015 9
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(V)
2016
( )
( )
- 277 208 62 47 594
() : : : - : :
() - 142 106 35 27 310
() : - - - : -
() - 214 134 53 40 441
() - 277 208 62 47 594
- 910 656 212 161 1,939
- 277 208 62 47 594
- 806 850 249 47 1,952
- 686 750 213 47 1,696
() - 445 584 165 37 1,231
() - 137 166 48 10 361
() 125 - - - - 125
125 2,351 2,558 737 188 5,959
() 2016
() 2016
() 2016
() 2016 11
() 2017
() 2016
() 2016
() 2016
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2015 ( )
)
( )
- 277 341 57 44 719
(ix) - - - - - -
(ix) - - - - - -
(€9 - - - - - -
(€9 - - - - - -
(€9 - - - - - -
- 249 307 57 44 657
(xi) - - - - - -
xii) - 45 56 10 8 119
- 277 341 57 44 719
- 848 1,045 181 140 2,214
- 277 341 57 44 719
- 799 850 168 44 1,861
- 686 750 214 44 1,694
- 579 800 214 44 1,637
300 - - - - 300
300 2,341 2,741 653 176 6,211
(ix) 2015 10
) 2015 10
(xi) 2015 10
(xii) 2015 10
2015 12 31

2016
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©
12(b)
2015
( ) 2016 ( )
4,824 4,517
5,236 5,889
1,362 951
404 375
11,826 11,732
( )
2015
( ) 2016 ( )
0 500,000 2 1
500,001 1,000,000 4 4
1,000,001 1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 2,500,000 4 4
10 9
13.
2016 2015
2015
( ) 2016 ( )
4,499 4,207
5,242 5,422
1,326 930
236 221
11,303 10,780
2015
2016 ( )
1,000,001 1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 3,000,000 4 4
5 5
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25 2015
16.5
cIT 25
( )
15.
2016 2015
( )
( )
(

2016

25
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2016 2015
7,525 8,771
39 15
(2,926) (2,481)
4,638 6,305
CIT
PICC 2016

2016 2015
25,319 33,970
6,330 8,492
39 15
(2,597) (1,623)
(1,102) (1,019)
941 208
1,030 233
(©)) @
4,638 6,305

18.3 18.6

2016 2015
14,245 19,542
42,424 42,424
0.34 0.46
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16.
( ) 2016 2015
2015 - 2.26005
(2015 2014 - 0.94671
) 959 402
2017 24 2016 12 31 3.37881
17.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1 1
36,060 30,967
3,743 3,055
6,925 15,861
46,729 49,884
18.
2016 12 31
( )
- 200 3 -
200 3 -
2015 12 31
( )
- 1,050 8 -

1,050 8 -
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2016 12 31
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
4,109 768
114,591 106,348
121,831 125,031
240,531 232,147
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
94,028 77,755
29,271 22,867
9,567 9,041
10,311 4,748
143,177 114,411
107 503
143,284 114,914
7,266 10,361

7,266 (2015 12 31 10,361 )

163/358



12 31

21.

@

12 31

11)
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6.3 (2015

(

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
31,062 28,734
112,115 85,677

107 503

143,284 114,914

7,266 10,361

150,550 125,275

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
37,557 24,427
(3,218) (2,869)

34,339 21,558

2016 2015

2,869 2,689

390 320
(41) (140)

3,218 2,869
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(b)
( 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
27,749 18,769
4,234 1,136
12 1,943 1,321
300 241
113 91
34,339 21,558
22.
( 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
10,171 9,276
20,709 17,177
139 89
31,019 26,542
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23.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
342 1,375
108 8
217 1,385
91,217 145,329
91,884 148,097
2016 12 31 0.10 7.50 3.16
6.60 (2015 12 31 0.75 7.50 3.30 4.95 )
24.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
109,014 99,655
42,002 1,073
15,062 7,057
2,000 2,000
700 700
168,778 110,485
100 2016 12 31 3.92
8.00 2015 12 31 4.22 8.20
2016 12 31 193 2015 12 31 1,660
2016 12 31

3.50 4.90 2015 12 31 4.20%
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7.80

12 31

10

2016

12 31

5.50

3

.30 6.60

6.35 2015 12 31

5.60
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2015 12 31 4.20
6.35
2016
5.50 5.60
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14,828,510,202

800,000,000

200,000,000

8,568,414,737

25,761,104,669

800,000,000

170,727,800

500,000

500,596,647

1,000,000,000

oOoOooodn
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
/

68.98 - 68.98 -
100.00 - 100.00 -
100.00 - 100.00 -
69.32 26.13 92.10 1.85
71.08 8.92 71.08 8.92
100.00 - 100.00 -
75.00 - 75.00 -
92.71 - 92.71 -
100.00 - 100.00 -
100.00 - 100.00 -
100.00 - 100.00 -
100.00 - - -
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2016 12 31
PICC P&C
2016 12 31
PICC P&C 110,531 2015 12 31 132,144
35 36
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( )
16,000 15,984 16,000 15,973
PICC P&C 23,000 23,112 16,000 16,297
PICC 6,000 6,162 6,000 6,105
PICC 800 826 800 835
45,800 46,084 38,800 39,210
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
5 5
1 1
8 8
3 3

17 17
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Ogoooood
(b)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
PICC P&C 31.02 31.02 5,590 6,777 37,015 33,800
PICC 20.00 20.00 90 711 6,574 7,019
PICC P&C
PICC
PICC P&C
PICC P&C
( 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
475,949 420,420
356,637 311,469
119,312 108,951
( 2016 2015
288,356 276,769
(268,850) (249,039)
2,945 473
(4,430) (6,356)
18,021 21,847
/( (3,152) 5,333
14,869 27,180
1,398 1,242
22,077 27,232
(18,206) (26,507)
(1,555) (2,054)
/( 2,316 (1,329)
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(
(
(
)/
(
©
PICC
PICC

)

)/

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
375,499 357,560
342,629 322,467
32,870 35,093
2016 2015
121,736 111,310
(124,637) (110,551)
3,348 2,701
5 9
452 3,556
)/ (1,827) 1,732
(1,375) 5,288
172 26
(4,972) (4,363)
(
(7,731) 30,563
/
5,992 (18,427)
)/ (6,711) 7,773
PICC P&C  PICC 2,119 2,500
PICC
93.95 95.45
63
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OooooOodd
26.
) 2016 2015 12 31
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
63,961 37,402
18,983 13,016
82,944 50,418
2,890 2,890
85,834 53,308
(V)
/ 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
@ 0.91 13.15 0.91 13.15
)(2) 32.92 32.92 -
®) - 19.99 - -
€H)
2012 12 31 PICC P&C PICC 13.8
PICC P&C PICC 0.91  4.98
4.98
2013 19 PICC
2013
2013
2015 PICC P&C PICC
280 4,641 328 5,454
10.87 14.06 485
2016 27 PICC 2016 28
PICC
2016 24
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@

PICC
2016 12 31

®

2015 12 28
Aktiengesel lschaft

PICC P&C

Kommanditgesel Ischaft auf Aktien

S.A. Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

992 2,136,045,885
PICC P&C
2016 11 17
(
)
2016 11 17

2016 12 31

173/358
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10.1764
1,899

Deutsche Bank
jr. & Cie. AG & Co.
Oppenheim jr. & Cie. AG & Co.

877 267
19.99
2016 11 17

2,636

2016 12 31
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
2016 12 31 11 2015
12 31 1
26(c)
IFRS
) 2016 30 2015 30
5,816,904 5,289,398
5,468,893 4,983,559
343,981 302,424
4,030 3,415
348,011 305,839
2015 10 2014 10
2016 30 2015 30
)
160,652 146,402
52,968 50,055
421 419
53,389 50,474
1,358 3,385
(©) (12)
1,355 3,373
54,326 53,440
418 407
54,744 53,847

1,634 1,180
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ooooOoog
) 2016 30 2015 30
343,981 302,424
(25,905) (25,905)
318,076 276,519
14.06 14.06
44,721 38,879
485 485
2,604 2,604
(360) 117
47,450 41,851
43,240 45,006
1AS
28 2015 10 2016 30
2015 12 31 2014 10 2015 30 )
2016 11 17
)
130,910
19.99
26,169
(8
26,091

23,176
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
19,445 18,426
3,917 4,291
15,489 14,111
39 24
15,528 14,135
2,087 2,868
1,307 1,566
21 7
1,328 1,573
70 -
70 -
1,377 1,566
21 7
1,398 1,573
- 129
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
15,489 14,111
32.92 32.92
5,099 4,645
2016 2015
276 158
(195) 150
81 308
7,194 6,812
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2016 12 31
27.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
10,358 10,682
27 15
( 298) 188 170
( 30 39 7
238 414
94 14
C )
(  6()) 224 (510)
( 28) (451) (424)
22) (10)
10,695 10,358
2016 12 31 2,781 2015 12 31 3,122
PICC P&C PICC
DTZ
PICC
@
@

2016 12 31 4.0 8.0 2015 12 31 4.0 8.0
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28.

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

27)
27)

12 31

¢ 1

27)

12 31

2016 12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn

25,273 7,395 1,783 2,432 36,883
527 767 390 1,103 2,787
993 4 - (997) -
451 - - - 451

(231) - - (49) (280)
47) (336) (190) (8) (581)
26,966 7,830 1,983 2,481 39,260
6,056 5,708 1,177 - 12,941
820 910 239 - 1,969
(92) - - - (92)
(24) (324) (170) - (518)
6,760 6,294 1,246 - 14,300
830 2 - 15 847
19,376 1,534 737 2,466 24,113
18,387 1,685 606 2,417 23,095
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2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015
2015

27)
27)

12 31

27)

12 31

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

23,129 7,082 1,960 1,714 33,885
1,616 605 53 1,245 3,519

425 7 - (432) _

424 - - - 424

(240) - - - (240)

(81) (299) (230) (95) (705)

25,273 7,395 1,783 2,432 36,883

5,420 4,882 1,124 - 11,426

11) 750 1,111 270 - 2,131
70) - - - 70)

(44) (285) 17) - (546)

6,056 5,708 1,177 - 12,941

831 2 - 36 869

€)) - - (21) (22)

830 2 - 15 847

18,387 1,685 606 2,417 23,095

16,878 2,198 836 1,678 21,590
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30.

11)

11)

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1,616 1,282
379 410
@n (76)
1,968 1,616
611 474
169 147
® (10)
771 611
1,197 1,005
1,005 808
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
5,263 5,093
110 259
27) (61) (10)
(51) (719)
5,261 5,263
1,278 1,147
149 158
27) 22) ®)
13) (€2))
1,392 1,278
44 44
3,825 3,941
3,941 3,902
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31.

11

2016

2015

2016 12 31

,874

9,971

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OooooOodd
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
5,965 2,251
(752) (1,455)
5,213 796
2016
12 31
977 365 - 1,342
1,567 (235) - 1,332
(2,572) - 1,573 (999)
(132) 104 (28)
€)) - @
(1,575) (56) (83) (1,714)
2,467 2,596 - 5,063
67 152 - 219
796 2,926 1,491 5,213
2015
12 31
812 165 - 977
1,594 @7 - 1,567
(820) - (1,752) (2,572)
(81) (51) - (132)
(® - 3 €))
(1,596) 128 (107) (1,575)
228 2,239 - 2,467
40 27 - 67
171 2,481 (1,856) 796
14,953 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 12,958 2015 12 31
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( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2017 12 31 36 408
2018 12 31 2,309 5,344
2019 12 31 4,454 3,571
2020 12 31 2,965 648
2021 12 31 3,194 -
12,958 9,971
32.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
10,037 11,202
() 5,887 5,008
() 2,823 3,345
©) 344 344
89 90
9,233 7,247
28,413 27,236
(D (1,637) (1,636)
26,776 25,600
@
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( ) 3,119 583
2,350 3,817
418 608
5,887 5,008
(391) (394)
5,496 4,614
() 26(b) (2) PICC 10.1764
2016 12 31
1,899
(b) 2016 12 31 5.22
6.35 2015 12 31 5.22 6.45
© 42(d)(3)

2016 12 31 344 2015 12 31 344
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(@

12 31
33.

@

2016 12 31

(b)

34.

11)

34

1,347

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
1,636 1,269
18 383
an (16)
1,637 1,636
2015 12 31 1,442
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
47,430 43,635
33,066 28,231
14,364 15,404
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
19,482 20,449
13,584 7,782
33,066 28,231
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35.

36.

2016

8.19

12 31

2015

6.08

3.65
8.19

44(0)(2)

6.19

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
- 980
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
- 3,031
826 835
30,279 35,344
31,105 39,210
14,979 -
46,084 39,210
10
2015 4.08 6.19 4.65
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OooooOodd
37.
2016 12 31

( )

@) 291,009 139 290,870
©)
- 3,513 560 2,953
- 1,498 92 1,406
©
- 128,174 20,149 108,025
. 114,319 10,079 104,240
538,513 31,019 507,494
2015 12 31

( )

@) 285,376 89 285,287
®
- 3,004 508 2,496
- 1,734 88 1,646
©
- 114,639 16,669 97,970
- 102,933 9,188 93,745
507,686 26,542 481,144
@

( )
2015 276,238 65 276,173
102,457 43 102,414
(40,396) (19) (40,377)
(52,923) - (52,923)
2015 12 31 285,376 89 285,287
119,216 75 119,141
(49,504) (25) (49,479)
(64,079) - (64,079)

2016 12 31 291,009 139 290,870
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(b)

€))

( )
2015

2015 12 31
2016 12 31
@

( )
2015

2015 12 31
2016 12 31
©

€))

( )
2015

2015 12 31
2016 12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn

2,575 564 2,011
7,734 1,975 5,759
(7,305) (2,031) (5,274)
3,004 508 2,496
9,180 2,194 6,986
(8,671) (2,142) (6,529)
3,513 560 2,953
1,467 93 1,374
10,062 1,631 8,431
(9,795) (1,636) (8,159)
1,734 88 1,646
10,804 2,012 8,792
(11,040) (2,008) (9,032)
1,498 92 1,406
102,702 15,673 87,029
172,950 19,129 153,821
(161,013) (18,133) (142,880)
114,639 16,669 97,970
194,056 21,968 172,088
(180,521) (18,488) (162,033)
128,174 20,149 108,025
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OooooOodd
@
( )
2015 95,658 9,462 86,196
281,817 29,158 252,659
(274,542) (29,432) (245,110)
2015 12 31 102,933 9,188 93,745
311,306 30,026 281,280
(299,920) (29,135) (270,785)
2016 12 31 114,319 10,079 104,240
38.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
36,603 25,823
1,767 1,778
38,370 27,601
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
27,601 25,520
16,582 9,151
(7,385) (8,269)
( 1,572 1,199
38,370 27,601
2016 12 31 0.36 6.00
2015 12 31 2.5 6.0
39.

2003 31

2003
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OooooOodd
@
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2,990 2,862
( ) 84 101
« )/ (66) 226
25 46
(233) (245)
2,800 2,990
41 2015 272 2016
« )
(V)
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
- 2.85 2.60
. 3.05 2.85
- 3.25 3.00
- 2.50 2.50
- 8.00 8.00
2016 12 31
3.8 8.3 12.1 2015 12

31 3.7 8.6 12.8
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OooooOodd
44(b)(2)
42(d)(3)
2,847
©
( ) 2016 2015
+50bp (133) (150)
-50bp 145 164
+50bp 143 161
-50bp (133) (149)
40.
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
21,513 16,054
19,302 11,169
14,210 12,139
12,400 8,451
7,376 5,243
5,519 5,141
865 803
632 719
9,933 7,170
91,750 66,889
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
41.
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
( )
33,698 33,698
H 8,726 8,726
42,424 42,424
( )
33,698 33,698
H 8,726 8,726

42,424 42,424
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OooooOodd
42.
@
()
2014
©
50
25
(d)
(©)
( ) @ ) 39
2016 85 (17,942) 2,847 (15,010)
(143) - - (143)
2016 12 31 (58) (17,942) 2,847 (15,153)
(©)
( ) (€)) ) 39
2015 30 (17,942) 2,847 (15,065)
55 - - 55
2015 12 31 85 (17,942) 2,847 (15,010)
@

25(c)
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OooooOodd
(2) 2009 30
(3) 2009 2,847
43.
@
()
2016 12 31
( ) PICC P&C PICC PICC
140,793 46,380 6,695
113,864 39,257 6,200
49,071 26,263 3,107
287 177 215
232 149 200
2015 12 31
( ) PICC P&C PICC PICC
85,356 36,599 3,191
37,831 12,082 1,826

226 303 175

191/358



CIRC

100

100 150

C-ROSS

CIRC

©

44.

@
€Y

2016

C-ROSS
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CIRC

CIRC



2013
2015 12 31
12 31 285,376
2.5 /
4.025
2016 12 31 107,167
37
@)
( )
(

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn
2.5
2013
2016 12 31 291,009 2015
150,205 2015 12 31 165,485
118,016 2015 12 31 103,689
2015 12 31 148,032
2015 12 31 52
2016 2015
142,076 127,400 127,798 113,327
19,505 17,138 18,288 15,758
40,178 36,928 37,656 34,914
42,620 39,119 36,733 33,260
66,927 60,695 61,342 55,399
311,306 281,280 281,817 252,658
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OooooOodd
(©)
14,217 2015 13,699
IBNR
@
PICC
( ) 2016 2015
+50bp 5,085 3,319
~50bp (5,606) (3,605)
/ 10 (548) (288)
/ -10 561 298
25 597 697
-25 (651) (894)
110 (166) (91)

90 165 91
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OooooOodd
PICC
) 2016 2015
+25bp 95 83
~25bp (81) (87)
/ 10 7 (32)
/ -10 47 32
10 73 27
-10 (39) 3D
110 (55) (10)
90 55 10
2016 2015
2016 12 31

5,549 (2015 12 31 5,023 )
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12 31
( ) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
113,646 138,400 150,920 168,832 191,828 763,626
113,687 138,624 150,167 168,206 - 570,684
113,833 140,270 149,191 - - 403,294
113,902 140,225 - - - 254,127
114,040 - - - - 114,040
114,040 140,225 149,191 168,206 191,828 763,490
(111,276) (136,208) (140,056) (148,727) (119,598) (655,865)
2016 12 31 107,625
2012
20,549
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12 31
( ) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

95,045 120,185 131,506 150,432 170,824 667,992

95,230 120,252 131,347 149,920 - 496,749
95,211 120,321 130,602 - - 346,134
95,537 120,128 - - - 215,665
95,641 - - - - 95,641

95,641 120,128 130,602 149,920 170,824 667,115
(93,406) (117,321) (123,038) (133,929) (110,219) (577,913)

2016 12 31 89,202
2012
18,823
108,025
(b)
€))
2016 12 31 14,597 2015 12 31 12,942
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

46,728 49,883

3 8

240,531 232,147

7,266 10,361

34,339 21,558

31,019 26,542

91,884 148,097

9,011 9,914

168,778 110,485

25,601 24,568

656,060 633,563

17
24
2016 12 31
31
30 90
90

46,728 - - - - - 46,728
3 - - - - - 3
240,531 - - - - - 240,531
7,266 - - - - - 7,266
22,882 1,391 3,303 3,965 8,659 6,016 37,557
31,019 - - - - - 31,019
91,884 - - - - - 91,884
9,911 - - - - - 9,911
168,778 - - - - - 168,778
21,806 1,379 480 1,784 3,643 1,789 27,238
640,808 2,770 3,783 5,749 12,302 7,805 660,915
- - - - - (4,855) (4,855)

640,808 2,770 3,783 5,749 12,302 2,950 656,060
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oooooog
2015 12 31
31
30 90
( ) 90
49,883 - - - - - 49,883
8 - - - - - 8
232,147 - - - - 26 232,173
10,361 - - - - - 10,361
16,862 750 1,357 1,097 3,204 4,361 24,427
26,542 - - - - - 26,542
148,097 - - - - - 148,097
9,914 - - - - - 9,914
110,485 - - - - - 110,485
21,729 826 315 1,541 2,682 1,793 26,204
626,028 1,576 1,672 2,638 5,886 6,180 638,094
- - - - - (4,531) (4,531)
626,028 1,576 1,672 2,638 5,886 1,649 633,563
2016 12 31
100 2015 12 31 99.86 AA/A-2
2016 12 31 97.41 2015 12 31 98.69
(China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited) csbce
csbee

2016 2015 12 31
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@)

24

2016 12 31 (2015 12 31 )
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/ /
2016 12 31
/ -
12 -
32,152 14,656 - - - - 46,808
- - 1 1 - - 2
- 7,801 34,756 96,661 190,992 - 330,210
- - 425 8,182 1,000 142,284 151,891
12,759 13,188 5,261 3,043 88 - 34,339
- 5,519 15,116 7,659 3,021 - 31,315
- 14,982 16,120 61,107 12,509 - 104,718
- 905 1,741 8,733 49 - 11,428
- 14,519 47,189 99,145 39,269 - 200,122
5,466 10,755 7,275 2,084 135 - 25,715
50,377 82,325 127,884 286,615 247,063 142,284 936,548
- 33,114 - - - - 33,114
- - 1,627 11,329 53,389 - 66,345
- 80,335 200,976 136,730 312,700 - 730,741
195 2,642 768 1,416 4,077 29,293 38,391
7,062 - - 2 - - 7,064
- 51 151 771 3,029 - 4,002
23,504 28,795 9,292 2,951 90 - 64,632

30,761 144,937 212,814 153,199 373,285 29,293 944,289
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2015 12 31
/ -
12 -
31,656 19,143 - - - - 50,799
- - 2 3 - - 5
- 4,588 18,198 97,793 199,437 - 320,016
- - 761 11,917 1,000 113,914 127,592
5,124 10,472 3,255 2,666 41 - 21,558
- 4,051 13,643 6,821 2,336 - 26,851
- 11,850 53,999 97,802 538 - 164,189
- 20 4,748 6,412 - - 11,180
- 1,893 13,329 90,357 35,068 - 140,647
5,526 9,332 7,786 1,855 125 - 24,624
42,306 61,349 115,721 315,626 238,545 113,914 887,461
- 28,240 - - - - 28,240
- 16 161 950 201 - 1,328
- - 4,427 10,135 42,103 - 56,665
- 64,633 193,504 176,137 175,009 - 609,283
44 894 1,224 2,013 4,408 19,086 27,669
8,112 - - 2 - - 8,114
- 51 152 779 3,254 - 4,236
10,778 24,627 8,451 1,788 52 - 45,696

18,934 118,461 207,919 191,804 225,027 19,086 781,231
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€)

VaR
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2016 12 31
( )

41,487 1,505 3,719 18 46,729

3 - - - 3

239,678 - 853 - 240,531

142,319 6,836 1,395 - 150,550

29,991 39 4,234 75 34,339

29,718 146 1,133 22 31,019

88,882 12 2,990 - 91,884

9,911 - - - 9,911

168,778 - - - 168,778

25,218 37 343 3 25,601

775,985 8,575 14,667 118 799,345

33,066 - - - 33,066

46,084 - - - 46,084

535,790 863 1,803 57 538,513

38,370 - - - 38,370

7,064 - - - 7,064

2,800 - - - 2,800

61,883 113 2,592 44 64,632

725,057 976 4,395 101 730,529
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2015 12 31

( )
43,456 1,614 4,790 24 49,884
8 - - - 8
231,071 - 1,076 - 232,147
121,783 2,562 930 - 125,275
18,106 40 3,359 53 21,558
25,243 79 1,207 13 26,542
144,657 - 3,440 - 148,097
9,914 - - - 9,914
110,485 - - - 110,485
24,214 17 322 15 24,568
728,937 4,312 15,124 105 748,478
28,231 - - - 28,231
980 - - - 980
39,210 - - - 39,210
505,111 745 1,782 48 507,686
27,601 - - - 27,601
8,114 - - - 8,114
2,990 - - - 2,990
43,239 80 2,342 35 45,696

655,476 825 4,124 83 660,508
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2016 12 31
440 894
(440) (894)
2015 12 31
497 725
(497) (725)
10
VaR

12 31

2016 2015

1,080 758
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10 99 VaR
VaR
VaR
10

10

12 31

) 2016 2015
VaR 3,307 4,713

207/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

45.

2016 2015 2016 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
46,729 49,884 46,729 49,884
31,062 28,734 31,062 28,734
4,109 768 4,109 768
3 8 3 8
119,381 96,038 119,381 96,038
114,591 106,348 114,591 106,348
121,831 125,031 127,961 135,899
34,339 21,558 34,339 21,558
91,884 148,097 91,884 148,097
9,911 9,914 9,911 9,914
168,778 110,485 177,052 121,760
25,601 24,568 25,601 24,568
768,219 721,433 782,623 743,576
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2016 2015 2016 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
33,066 28,231 33,066 28,231
- 980 - 980
46,084 39,210 49,328 44,337
38,370 27,601 38,370 27,601
7,064 8,114 7,064 8,114
64,632 45,696 64,632 45,696
189,216 149,832 192,460 154,959

209/358

27



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

@

2016 2015
12 31 12 31

3 8
187 36
3,922 732

11,936 20,571
102,655 85,777

31,062 28,734

85,316 68,951

10,704 9,365

3,554 -

7,920 3,013

1,021 548

10,866 14,161
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2016 12 31 4,838
2015 6,122
2,800 2015 5,076
()
2016 12 31

( )
658 127,303 127,961
- 177,052 177,052
- 49,328 49,328

2015 12 31

( )
3,126 132,773 135,899
- 121,760 121,760
- 44,337 44,337

©
( ) 2016 12 31 2015 12 31

17,722 21,300
942 -
400 1,766
7,392 4,595
(3,095) (9,939)

23,361 17,722
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2016 12 31
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73
7,266
/
/55 2015 12 31 107
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46.
@
(€H)
Q@) 1996 1998
(©))
®

2016

2015

2016

10,361

/121
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6.65
2016 12 31
50
45
/
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2016
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2,472 2,466
10 27
2015
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
340 305
598 446
246 81
1,184 832
10
2015
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
511 463
1,224 920
549 271
2,284 1,654

25
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(V)
( ) 2016 2015
480 718
173 177
552 579
7 3
133 133
1,634 1,180
26 2
120 300
- 129
18 N/A
59 N/A
9 N/A
©
2016 2015

2016 2015
( ) ( )
10,521 9,791
8,450 9,675
753 691
19,724 20,157

12
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31
42 376
2,915 3,115
447 460
10,927 700
2,900 13
127 133
7,266 10,361
2 N/A
8,500 N/A
208 N/A
33,334 15,158
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
344 344
2015 12 31 10,361
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2,416 2,411
51 51
103 N/A
2 N/A
2,572 2,462
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48.

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
5,984 7,323
323 519
7,648 7,248
135 124
2,806 2,346
82,318 81,318
5,137 4,681
1,201 1,101
158 184

25 25

67 69
2,080 711
107,882 105,739
- 60
15,984 15,973
2,800 2,990
1,406 1,346
20,190 20,369
42,424 42,424
45,268 42,946
87,692 85,370
107,882 105,739
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49.
2016
« )
( ) *( )
2016
42,424 19,925 1,171 1,101 166 11,672 (693) 9,604 85,370
- - - - - - - 3,093 3,003
- - 124 - 23 - 41 - 188
- - 124 - 23 - 41 3,093 3,281
- - - 309 - - - (309) -
- - - - - - - (959) (959)
2016 12 31
42,424 19,925 1,295 1,410 189 11,672 (652) 11,429 87,692
2015
( ) *( )
2015
42,424 19,925 897 802 166 11,672 - 6,897 82,783
- - - - - - - 2,987 2,987
/
« ) - - 274 - - - (693) 421 2
/C )
- - 274 - - - (693) 3,408 2,989
- - - 299 - - - (299) -
- - - - - - - (402) (402)
2015 12 31
42,424 19,925 1,171 1,101 166 11,672 (693) 9,604 85,370
*
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Notes e W15
GRoss WIMkEH premiuiis 5 439874 38R, 287
e e b A S 5 (32,749) (31.253)
et wTitten premiums 3 407,115 351032
Change in uncamned premium reserves 5 (10,255) (7,821)
et camed premiums Jea A0 Moill
Remsurance commission ncome 10519 9678
Investment mcomse & 33075 44336
Other income i 1858 Lbitl_
TOTAL INCOME 443313 406,011
Life insurance death and other benefits paid 113,583 43,119
Claims incurned 203,236 180, 52
Chaiiges in long-term Hile imsurance contract Habilities 5,633 0,038
Palicyholdar dividemds A58 4148
Claims and policyholder’s benefits: ] 315,990 287,200
Less: claims and policyholders” benefits ceded to relnsurers ] (24.237) (21,147}
MNeat elaims anil pelicyhoklers” henefits b 00,753 Zoify, 143
Handling charges and commissions 4 53,064 35,063
Finance costs ] 431 4 503
Exchange gains [{5]] (632}
Other operating and administrative expenses 10 69318 72455
TOTAL BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND EXPENSES 418,390 378,532
Share of profits and losses of msociates and joint ventures 10,386 I 6,491
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11 15319 3397
Ingon tas enpenss 14 {4,638) (6,305)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 20,681 27,665
Attribumble 10:
Equity holders of the parent 14,245 19,542
Mon-controlling interests 6,436 8123
20681 27605
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (in RMBE)
- Basic 15 .34 .46

The People's Insurance Coirpany [Group) of China Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For M o arckid 31 Docambor 2076
{Amourits i milons of Rermindy, uniess othensses sieted)

Notes 6 2015
tﬁ»ﬂm:d}_
AL L 10,081 AL
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltems that may be reclassificd subsequently to profit or loss
Available-for-salc financial nsscis
- Fair value (losses ) gains (6,598) 18,797
- Reclassification of gaing to profitof loss on disposals (878) (11,949)
~ Impairment lesses D) 1.162 5]
Income s effect
— Fair volue bosses{ gains) 1,650 {4,T00)
— Reclassification of gains to profit of loss on disposals 212 2 984
— Impairment losscs (289) 138)
{4.739) —52{.1
Net bosses on cash flow hedges (5 {13}
Income tax effect 1l 1 3
@ (o0
Share of other comprehensive income of associales
and joint ventunes 165 548
Exchange differences on trnslating foreign operations 73 62
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSEVINCOME
MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN
SUBSEQUENT PERIODS {4,505) 5,861
[tzms that will not be rectassified to profit or loss;
(zains on revaluation of propertics and prepaid nd
rCIniEms upon transfer 1o investment propertics 7 1z 428
 Incomne e 3l ) (107
.
Actuarial gainsilosses) on pension benefit obligation 9 41 (272)
Share of viher comprehensive expense of asociabes
and joint ventures L]
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME WILL
NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS b ¥ | 49
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSENINCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX {4,281) 810
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 16,400 33575
Attributable 10:
~ Equity holders of the parent 11,102 23,867
— Mai-contrallig inlerests 5,198 9,708
16,400 33,575
Arval Risporl 2000 a9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AL 3T Docwenbar 2016
fmounts inimilions of Benminkyd unkess ofbenwise st

3 Decemiber 31 December

Nores e 215
ASSETS
Cash and cxsh equivalems 17 46,729 49,884
Denvarlve financial assels I8 3 b
Debit saciirities 19 240,531 232,147
Fapuaty secirities, mutual funds and trust schemes i 150,550 125275
Insuramce receiables, e 11 34,339 21,558
Heinsurance assets 2,37 Lo 26,542
Term deposits 1 01,884 148,007
Restncted satutory deposits 9911 9,914
Investmens classified as loans and receivables 24 168,778 11485
Investments in associpies and joint ventunes 26 5434 53,308
Investmen propeics 21 10,695 10,358
Properey and equipmeant a8 M4013 13,005
Intaigible asses pi ) 1,197 1005
Prepaid land premiums 3 A H25 3,541
Diefemed tax pssets 11 E065 2251
Oiher asscts 3 26,776 25,600
TOTAL ASSETS LERNEL] B3 408
LIABILITIES
Securities sold inder agreements 1o nepurchase H 33066 28,231
Income tax payable 1,755 3017
Due b0 banks and other financial mstitations 35 - G800
Bonds payabic 16 46,084 w210
Insurance contract liabikities 37 3513 507,686
Investment contract liabilities for policyhalders 38 3% 27,601
Palicyholder dividends payahle 70064 8114
Pension bemefit oblipation 1 2.8 2,590
Defemed fax Habilithes 3l 752 LA55
Other Habilities i) 91750 iy, K45
TOTAL LIABILITIES Tol,155 66,273
EQUITY
Issued capitnl 41 42424 42,424
Reserves 42 3677 13677
Equity attributable to equity hobders of the parent 126,101 116,101
Mon-controlling inderests 44,591 41,004
TOTAL EQUITY 170,994 157,195
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES PIL149 H43 4068

The People's Insurance Coirpany [Group) of China Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Foor B ymar ancid 31 Docernbar 2076
(Amaunts i mullons of Renrmnky, infiss othaensiss sited)

Notes 216 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profie befon tax 5319 13,570
Adpestments for;
Invesiment income L] (33.075) {44,336)
Exchange gains (HH8) (632}
Share of profis and losses of associntes and peint venmres {10,386) (B.401)
Bepreciation of propeny and equipmeni .28 1,965 2,131
Amortisation of intangible assets 11,29 169 147
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums 1.3 149 158
Dispesal gains from investment propertics,
property and cquipment, intangible asscts
inad prepaid land premiums 7 (161} (1213
Finance costs except for inerests credited o policyholders 9 1,761 3,404
Impairmend |ass2s on recedvables and other assets 1 A0 03
Investment expenses 474 122
Operating cash fows before working capital changes (13,061) {1,545}
Increase m inswrance neceivables, net {13,170 {3.403)
Increase in investment contmot labilities
for polioyholders 10,769 2051
Increxse m insurance contract labilities, net 16,350 28361
Incresse in mher assets, net {2,130) {329)
Increzxse in pdher linhilities and scerunks, net 11999 11,224
Cash genemed from operations 31,756 27089
[neoeme tax paid (7,925 (6,645)
et cash From operating activities 13831 441
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Imterests received 28,356 27811
Dividends received 6,865 6,195
Decrease in policy loans 522 1,258
Capitn] expenditures (3,621 (3.550)
Proceeds from disposals of invesiment properties,
property and equipment, intangible assets gnd
prepasd land prenmiumg 302 388
Investmenis in associaies and joint veniures (22.914) (11,539)
Purchases of investments (395,820) (2T8.465)
Preceeds from disposals of imvestments 197,775 252405
Payments for investment cxpenscs (474) (222
Decrease in serm deposits, net 56316 16,331
et cash {used) in/penernted from investing activities {I2.683) 10,802
Arval Risporl 2000 a5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For f jar ancd 31 Docenbor 2016
(Amourits iy mlons of Rerminty, dnfess otheise sletoc]

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The People's Insurance Company (Groupd of China Limited (the “Company™) was established on 22 August
1994 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRCT) and its registered office 15 Jocated at Mo, 69, Donghevan
Sireet, Xuamwu District, Beijing 100052, PRC, The Company’s predecessor, the People's Insurance Company
of China, is a state-owned enerprise established on 20 October 1949 by the FRC povernment. The wltimate
controlling pamy of the Company is the Minksry of Finance of the PRC {*MOF").

The Company = an imvessment hokling company. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company’s
subsidinries mainly provided mecgrated financinl products and services and were engaped in property and
casaalty CP&C”) msurance, life and health insurance, asset management amd other lusinesses. The Company
and itz subsadiaties are collectively referred to as the “Growp”™,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The comsoliclited financial statements have been prepared in aceondance with Intemational Finoncial Reporting
Standards (“[FRSs) which comprise all standerds and Inserpretations approved by the Intematlonal Accounting
Sundards Board (“IASE) and the disclosures required by e Appendix 16 10 Rulss Governing the Listing of
Securitbes (“Listing Rubes™) on The Siock Exchange of Hong Kong Limined (the “Hong Kong Steek Exclange™)
ond Hong Kong Companies Ordinance {*(0").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolicited financial statements have been prepaned under the historical cost baa, except for invesiment
propertics, cenpin financial instruments and insurance contract Habilities, These consolidated financial
statements ane presented in Renminbi (“RME™) and all values ane roundid 1o the nearest million éxcept when
otherwise indicated.

Hissorical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,
APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendmints to IFRSs for the first time effective for the carrent year’s
finsmcial statements,

Amendments o IFRS 11 Avonirniing for Acqusrisne of faterests in Sofal hperations
Amendments to [AS | Disclpsure Initiative
Amendments i 1AS 16 and IAS 35 Clarification of Acoepmaile Meshods of Depreciatinn and Amortivation
Amendments o IAS 16 and 1AS 41 Agriculmre: Bearer Manes
Amendments so IFRS 10, IFRS 12

and IAS 23 Tvestenemt Entities; Apolioing the Comenliketion Exceprion
Amendments to [FRS: Armal fmprovements fo (FRS: 200 22004 Cyele

Amendments to 1A% 1 = Disclosure Initiative

The Croup has applied the amendments 1o 1AS | Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the cument year.
The pmendments fo [AS | clanfy that an entity peed not provide a specific disckosure reguired by an [FRS if
tlie information resuliing from that disclosure is pot material, and give guidance o the bases of aggregating
and dissggregating information. However, the amendmenis reiterate that an entity should consader providing
ndditional discbosurcs when complisnce with the specific requircments in [FRS is insafficient to enable users
af finameial statemgnts o understand the impact of particular transactions, events ond comditions on the entiny’s
financial position and financial performance.

In the past, share of items of other comprehensive moome (“CWCT7) arising from associates and joint ventures
were grouped by nature inio OCI of ihe Company and #s subsidiarics.

Arval Rispor] 2000

226/358

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

13 APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs fcontinned)
Amendments to 1AS | - Disclosure Initintive fcontimied)

Commencing from | January 2016, share of OC] from associates o joint vientures accounted for using the equity
methid, in aggregate, are separated into two mems for OC] that:

+  will pot be reclossified subssquently 1o profit or loss: and
= will be reclassified subsequenly w profit or loss when specific condithons are met.

As o result of these changes, cenain ftems of OC1, which amounted 10 RMBS48 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, in the consolikued stutement of comprehensive income wene singbed out and reclassfied fo
conform 1o these new requireiments. A fesenve with an opening balince of RMBS94 million {1 Jamiary 20152
RMEIY] million) aunbuable to the parem b5 also separately established as at | January 2006 o recond the
cumalative share of OCT arisang from asoctates and joast vemtures in the consolidated statement of changes
I equity. The opening balance atributable 1o the paremt of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
enclude mmounts arising from associotes and joim ventures and was reduced by RMB594 million (§ Jamsry
2005 RME 191 million). The Group kas applied these changes retrospectively.

Apart from this, none of the above amendments (o [FRSs, have had a material impact on the francial position or
performaisce of the Group [of the year ended 31 December 2016,

14 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and amendments (o IFR3s that have heen isssed but ane nog yet
effective, in these consolidased financial susements,

RS 4 Firuacind frstramments'
IFRS 15 Revenme from Contracts with Customery!
IFRS 16 Leaser’
IFRIC 22 Forvign Crierency Trensaeninns aad Advanee Consddiration’
Amendments 1o IFRS 2 Cleendficenfont and Meavurement of Share-bosed Paanent Transaetion
Amendments o IFRS 4 Appiving IFRS ¥ Funancial fnsirumienis with [FRS & fasirance Controces®
Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifteations w IFRS 15 Revermue from Conraces with Crassomers®
Amemdments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contriiuntion of Assets between aa fnveafor grel

and LAS 28 it Associare or-Join Venpe'
Amendments o TAS 7 Disedosnre Tnivaive’
Amendments 1o 1AS 12 Recerguition of Deferred Tux Assely for Uirealived Logses!
Amendments fo 1AS 40 Tronifers af Invesintent Propery!
Amendments 1o IFRSs Annnial fprovemaents o [FRS Stapsbards 200 4-2006 Cvele®

Effective for snmunl persodds beginming on or afier | Januury 2018,

Effective for annual periods beginning on oc afier | January 2019,

Effective for annunl periods beginning on or afier a date 10 be determined.

Effective for annual pervods beginning on or after | Jamuary 2017,

Effiectivie for annual periods beginning on o afier | January 2007 or | January 2018, a3 appropriate.

-k ke

a8 The People's Insurance Coirpany [Group) of China Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foontinmed]
Funther information about those [FRSs that ane expected to be relevant 1o the Group is as follows:
IFRS 9 - Finpncinl Instraments

IFRS 9 ssued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement
of fmancal stz [FRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 1o include requirensents for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilides and for desecognition, pnd in November 2013 1o include
the new requerements for genenal bedpe accounting. Another revised version of IFES 9 was issued in July 2014
malnly to include i) impalmient requirements for financial assets and b) Hmised amendments to the clasification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fakr value through other comprehensive income’ (FYTOCT)
measurement category o certain simypde debs instraments.

Key requirements of [FRS 9.

*  all recogmised financial assets that are within the scope of [FRS 9 are required 1o be subsequent]y measured
at wmortised cost of fair valee, Specifically, debt investments that are hebd within o business model whose
ohjective 15 to collecr the contractudl cash flows, and thar have contrciual cash fows thai are solely
paymnents of principal and ingerest on the prmeipal outstanding are generally medsured at ansortised cost af
the end of subsequent accounting pericds, Debt instrumsems ten are bebd within g business model whose
objective is achicved both by collecting comractual cash flows and sclling financial nsscts, and that have
comtractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are solely payments of prncipal
and iimeres o6 the principsl amosn ootsanding, ane measured &t FYTOCL All other debt imvesiments
and equity imvestments e measured at their Fur valoe at the end of subsequent accounting penods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an imevocahle clection 1o present subsequent changes. in the
fnir value of &n cquity mvestmeni {ihat is pot bebd for mding nor contingem consideration recognised by
an acquirer i i business combination w which IFRS 3 applics) in other compeeliensive incame, with only
dividend income penerally recognised in prodit or loss.

+ owith regand to the mensurement of fnancial liabilities designated a5 &t Gair valoe through profit or loss,
IFRS O requires that the amount of change i the fair value of the finaneial liability that is atributable
1o changes in the credit nsk of that liability &5 presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes i the lability's cradit risk in other comprebensive income would
create or enlinge an acoounting mismatch in profit or boss. Changes in fair value of financial liabiliies
atinibutable 1o changes in the Mmancial liabilities" credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss, Linder IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair vahse of the financial liability designated as
fnir value through profit or loss s presented in profit or loss,

*  in rebation to the impaimment of financizl assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss maode?, as opposed
tov an incuemed credit bess model under IAS 39, The expected credit loss model requines an entity o aecount
for expected credin losses and changes in those expected credit bosses ar each reporting date 10 neflect
chanpes in cridit risk since initial ecognition. In other words, it is no knger necessary for a credit event to
have ocourmed before crodi losses are recognised.

+  the now general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in 1AS 39, Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been iniroduced to the types of
fransactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instnaments that qualify
for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial tems that are eligible for hedpe
sccounting, In addition, the retrospective quantiintive effcctiveness test hns been removed. Enhanced
disclosure reguirements aboul an entily”s risk managemeni activities have also been introduced.

Arval Risporl 2000 hi ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

14 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foanfimied)
IFRS 9 - Finpncinl Instraments (camtmied)

Application of [FRS 9 in the future may have following impacts on the financial assets of the Group:

*  The Group clasafied equity related mvestments of BMBE112,222 million & available-for-sale financial
assets 3 al 31 December 2006, Upon application of IFRS 9, fair value changes ariseng from these financial
instrumenis will be recopnised as profit or loss nstead of an investment revalsatlon reserve in the equity.,
except for those that are eligibde and the Groug elects 1o desigmate as FYTOCL in which Gir value changes
arising from these fnancial sssegs will not be recyeled w0 the profit o loss upon their disposals and only
dividend income from these financial assets will be recognised in profit or boss;

s The Groop chassified debt investments of RMBIG6S, T8 million a8 loans and receivables o at 31 Decernber
2016, Some of these imvestments may il to satisfy that the contractual cash flows charscieristics that ane
spdely payments of principal and imerest 0a the principal outstnnding. As 3 consequence, these inveaments
may have to be measured subsequently ai file values instead of amonised costs. Fair value chanpes arsing
from thisse financial istruments will be necopmised in profit or loss:

*  The Group classified debt investments of RMBI14.301 million as availoble-for-sale financial assets as
at 31 December 2016, Some of these investments may fail to satisfy that they are held within a business
miodel whose objective is both 1o collect the contrmctual cash Mows that are solely payiments of principal
and inderest on the principal outstanding and 10 52l financinl assets, Fair valoe arising from these financaal
instruments will be recognised in profft or loss mssead of other comprebensive income; and

2 Financial assets measuned ot amortised costs under 1IFRS 9 and debt instruments classified as FYTOCT will
be subject o impairmcnl provision of IFRS 9. Generally, the impairment model of IFRS 9 will result in
carlier loss recognition than that of IAS 39; and

+  The Group hes limited hedging activities and therefore the changss in IFRS 9 hedging accounting should
nt have material impacts on the financial statements,

The Group has noi yet liunched a deiziled swdy on the impact of implementation of IFRS 9 and therefone the
above analysis is preliminary, 1t is based on the facts and circumstances as at 3| December 2016 and subject
1o changes, In pamicular, inteenction of IFRS 9 with the new standard on insurance comracts (“1FRS 177) 1o
be Essued by TASB has 1o be assessed for an overall analysis of the impacts of [FRS 9. The Group is unable 1o
provide an cstimate of thess efTects when these financial staiements are suthorised.

Amendments to IFRS 4 - Applving IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

In Sepeember 2016, IFRS 4 was amended to wldress ssues arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9
and the upcoming IFRS 17,

The amendment prowvides entitics mecting a aritcrion for engaging in predominantly insurance activitics with
the oplion o continue current [FRS acopunting and o defer the application of IFRS 9 unil the carlicr of the
application of the new irsurance Stindard or periods beginning on or aficr | Jansary 2021, The assessment of
predominance has to be made at the reporting entity bevel and at the annual reporting date immediaely proceding
1 Apeil 2006, Thereatter it should not be reassessed, unless there is & significant change in the enfify’s activilies.
that would tngger & mandatory reassessment.

ly. the amemsdmen provides all entitics with conirmets within the scope of IFRS 4 with an option ie apply
IFRS % i full but ter make acljussments 1o profit or loss to nemove the impact of IFRS 9, compared with IAS 39,

for designated qualifying financial assets. This is referred to as the ‘overlny approach” and is available on an
nsset-by aeset basis with specific requirements around designations and de-designations.
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24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foontinmed)

Amendments o0 IFRS 4 - Applving IFRS 9 Financinl Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
feouninued)

During the year, the Group performed on dssessment of these amendments. As at 31 December 2015,
the percentage of the total carrying amount of its Labilites connected with insurmnce relative 1o the total
carrying amounl of all i85 Habilites was greater than 90%. The Group matially coicluded that its activities are
predominantly connected with isumnce 25 at 31 December 2015, The Group, however, has pot vet decilad 1o
apply the lemporary exemplion in its reporting penod commencing on | Janmary 2018 One of the considertions
s the alignment of Group's financial stalements prepared under [FRS and those prepancd under China
Accounting Standand (CAS"L MOF recently consulted the public on changes in CAS in respect of financial
istruments. These changes folbow closely 1FRS 9 but deeir efTective dates have mot yet been decided. The Group
would Itke 1o adopt [FRS 9 in the IFRS financial statements and the proposed amendnsents 1o CAS in CAS
financial statements in the same financial year,

The Comipany’s separate financinl statements are pot qualiliad for this temporary exemplion,

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracis with Cusiomers

IFRS 15 was issuad which esmblishes a single comprehensive model for entities 1o use n sccaunting for
revenue anising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the cument revenue recognition guidance
including 1AS I8 Reveme, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Imerpretations: when it beconies
effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that en entity should recognise revense 1o depict the transfer of promised goods
OF services to customers in an amount that reflects the considerntion to which the emity expects to be entithed
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standand introduces a S-step approach fo revenie
recogRition:

* Step 1 Memufy tse contract(s) with a custormer

*  Step 2 Memfy the perfommance obligntions in the comract

+  Step 3 Determine the transaction price

*  Seepd: Allocase the transaction price (o ihe performance obligations in the contract

*  Step 3; Recognise revense when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Unider IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (0F as) 4 performance ohligntion is satisfied, 1.2, when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is tmnsferred 10 the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in [FRS 15 1o deal with specific scenarios, Furthermare,
extersive disclosures are required by [FRS 15

In 2016, the TASB fsued Clarifications 1o [FRS 15 in relation 1o the identification of performance obligstions,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance,

As the Group predominantly carries out insurance business, polemially the adoption of IFRS 15 will only have
ImpActs on service income recognised by:

+  the non-life insurance sector onhandling certain tanes or levies for relevant authoritics;

*  the life or health insurance seclor on managing cenain contracts classified as investment contracts,

+  the asset mangement sector on asset management services, inclding performance bonuses.
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14 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foanfimied)
IFRS 13 = Revenue from Contracts with Costomers feonmmed)
Service income of these seciors ane disclosed as other income in the firancial statements.

The Cirowp, however, has not yet lnunched o full sudy on the impacts of IFRS 15, The above analysis is
prefiminery and hased on the facts and circumstances as a1 31 December 2006, The Group s unable 1o provide
in estimate of these efifects when these financial stasements are authorized.

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 imtrodeces a comprelensive model for the identification of lease arranpements amd accounung
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS |6 will supersede the current lease puidance including [AS 17
Lenses and the relmed interpretations when it becomes effective,

IFRS 16 distingusshes leases and service contracts on the bases of whether an identifiesd asset 15 controlled by 3
custarmner, Distinctons of operting beases {ofl halance sheet) and finance keases (on balance sheet) are removed
for lessee accounting, and ks replaced by a modz| where a nghi-of-use nssel amd a comesponding lizbdlity have
10 b recognised for all beises by lessees (iae. all on bakance sheet) except for shor-term keases and leasss of low
villue assels.

As 31 December 2016, the Growup had non-cancellable operating lease commitments of RMB2.284 million
s disclosed in mote 46, A preliminary assessmenl indicates that these amangements will meet the dzfinition of
a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a comesponding linbality in
respect of all these beases unless they qualify for low value or short-term feases upon the application of IFRS 16,
Apari from this, the direciors of the Company do not amicipeie that the applicuion of [FRS 16 in the fuiure will
have o mterial impact on the Group®s consolided Nnancial stalerments.

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Mewsurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
The amendments clarify the following:

+  Inestimating the fir valoe of a cash-settbed share-based payment, the accounting for the effects of vesting
and nog-vesting conditions shouli follow the same approach 15 for equity.settled shane-based payments.

* Where iax law or regulation requires an entity 1o withhold a specified number of equity instrumenis equal
1o the monctary vislue of the employes™s G obligation 1o meet the employee™s s Tabiliy which & then
remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-hased payment arrangement hos 3 ‘net setilement feature”, sach
an amangement should be classificd as equity-senled in its entircty, provided that the share-based payment
wouhl have been clissified as equity-senled had it no included the net senlement feature,

+ A modification of a share-based payment that changes the transaction. from cashe-settled 10 equity-setibed
should he accoumtd for s fodlows:

i) the oniginal liability is derceognised;

ii} e equity-settled share-based payment is recognised at the modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted o the extent that services have been rendered up to the modificarion date; and

i)  amy difference between the camrying amount of the Habdlity at the modification date and the pmount
recognized in equity should be recognised in profit or loss immeedianely,

The directors of the Company da not anticipate that the application of the amentdments in the future will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financipl staitements.
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14 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foanfimyed)
Amendments to IAS T-Disclosure Initintive

The amendments requine an entity to provide disclosurcs that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changzes in labilitees armang from fimancing activities inchading both changes ansing from cash Nows and non-
cash changes, Specially, the nmendments require the following changes in linbilitics ansmg from financing
activities o be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsklianics or other businesses; (il the effect of changes in foreign exchange rares: (iv) changes in
fiair wislues: and (v) other changes.

The application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group's financing activitics,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the consolidated stasement of financial
posation for liabilities anising from Arascing sctivities will be provided on applicition.

15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
(1) Hasis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financinl statements of the Company and entitics
{including struciured entities) controlled by the Company and s subsidiaries. Comrol is achicved when
the Company:

= has power over the Invesiee;
& s exposed, or has rights, 1o varable retums from is involwement with the investee; and
*  has the ability fo use iis power o affect ifs retums,

The Group reassesses whether or not it comnols an invesies if fhcts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes 1o one of moare of e thiee elensents of controll lsted above,

When the Group hos less than o majosity of the voting rights of an imvestee, it has power over the investee
when the vating rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant aetivities of the
investee unilaterally, The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Ciroup’s voting rights in an mvestee ane suffickent 1o give it power, inchiding:

s the siee of te Group's holiing of votig nights relative (o te siee and dispersion of boldings of the
other vote holders;

+  potential voting rights held by the Groap, other vots halders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contractizal arrangements; and

*  any additional [zcts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has. ar does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevam activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
paitems at previous sharcholders’ meetings.

Consalidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases

when the Company boses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of & subsidiry

acguired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement and sttement of

comprehensive mcome from the date the Company gains contral until the date when the Company ceascs
in-comirol th subsidiary,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foantivimed)
{1} Basis of consolidation fconimmed)

Profit or boss and eoch component of other comprehensive mcome are attnbused to the owners of the
Company aid bo the doa-contrelling interests. Total comprehensave neome of subsidianies = attributed 1o
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the on-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary. adjustments are made 10 the fnancial stitements of subsidiarkes (o bang their aocomting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup aisets and liabiliies, equity, income, ¢xperses and cash fMows relating 1o transactions
Betwesn members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Clanges in tha Graoup s shoreiolders ' imferexos in exicting subeidiorie

Changes in the Groop’s ownership imterests o existing subsdienies that do not resalt in the Group losing
comrol over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity ransactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
redevant components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests ane adiusted 10 reflect
the changes in theer relative interests in the subsidiaries, Any difference betweoen e amount by which the
non-conirolling interests ase adjusied alfier re-atiribution of the relevant cquity componcnt, and the fair
value of the consiceration paid of received 18 recognised directly in equity and atmbuted to owners of the
Company.

When the Groug loses control of o subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or koss and s calculated
as the difference benween (i) the aggregase of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous curying amount of the assets finchsling poodwill), and
linhalitics of the subsidiary antributable 1o the owners of the Company, All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation 10 that subsidiary are accounted for as iT the Group had directly
disposed of the reluted assets or liabilives of the subsidiary, which & reclassified to profit or boss or
tramsferred to another category of equity as specified permitted by applicable IFRSs, The fuir vahsz of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary af the date when control is bost is regarded a5 the fr valie
on initial recopnition for subsequent accoumting under [AS 39, or, when applicable, the cost on iniial
recognition of an mvestment in an asseciyie or o join vengure.

(2}  Investmeni In asseckates and joint ventures

An nssocinge is an entity over which the Group has significant mfluence. Sigmificant influence is the power
fo participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the imvesice but is wot control o joini
control over those policiies.

A joknt vemture i< a jomnt srrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the amngement fave
rights to the net assets of the joint amangement. Joint control is the contrachually agreed sharing of control
of an armangement, which exists only when decisions aboat the relevant activities require unanimius
consent of the panics sharing centrol,

The results and nsscts and liahilities of associates or joint ventures ore incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an imvestment in
an associate or o joimt venture & imitially recognised i the consolidated statement of fimancial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profil or loss and ofher comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture, When the Group's shane of bosscs of an associate of a joing
vemure exceeds the Group’s inderest in that associate or joint venture {which includes any long-teem
interests ihat, in substance, form pant of the Group’s net investment in the essociate of joint venture), the
Giroug discontimes recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised oaly to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf” of the
Ass0Ciibe OF jng veniure.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
(2} Iovestment in associates nnd joint ventures fcomimmed)

An investment in an associibe or & point venture 15 socounbed for using the equity method from the date
ot which the investee becomes an assocmle of o point venbire. On soquisition of the mnestment fn an
associabe or 3 joint venture, any excess of the cost of the imvestment over the Croup’s share of the net Bir
value of the identifiable assets and lishilines of the investee is recognised as poodwill, which is meluded
within the carrying amount of the invesimeni. Any excess of the Group's share of the nei fuir value of
the identifiable assets and Habshities over the cost of the investment, afler remsseasment, is fecognised
immecliately in prodil or boss i the pertod inwhich the imvestmient s scquined.

When the Group increxses its ownership interests in an amsociate of a joint venure and the investee
cominues o be accounited fof as o0 asociale of & joinl ventuse, any exceds of the cost of this additional
investment over the Group's additional share of the net fair vilue of the entifiable assets and labilities
of the investee (mexmred as a1 the date of the addiional invesiment) s recognised a8 poadwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment, Any excess of the Group’s additionall share of the
net fir vialug of kbentiliable assets and labilities (measured as af the date of the sdditional mvestment)
over the cost of the additienal invesimen, afler reassessment, is recognised immedinely in profit or
loss in the period in which the additional Envestment is acquired. Thene s no re-measurement of the
carrying amount of the previously beld ownershap inferests in the associate or the point venture, nor of
the fair value of the et identifable asets and ibe renilting goodwill sttribatable to the previeasly held
inferests in the associate or the joint venture. Any gain or les recogmsed in other comprebemsave income
previously shared by the Group remains in the equity and is not reclassified o the profit or loss, The Group
commences sccouming lor its share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income: of the associaie
or the joint venture acoonding to the new proportionate equity inlerests when the additioral ownership is
aequired.

The requiremnents of [AS 39 jre appliad to determing whether it s necesury 1o recognise any impairment
loss with respect 1o the CGinoap™s investmant in an associate or 4 joint ventune. When necessary, the entire
earrying amaount of the mvestment (incliding gotwill) i toated for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
Impainment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carmying amount. Any impsinment loss recognised forms pan of the
carrying amount of the imvestment. Any reversal of that impaimment loss is recognised in sccondance with
IAS 36 1o the extemt that the recoverable amauant of the investment subscquenly imoreases.

When the Growp ceases o have significant influence aver an sssocizle or joint control ever i joint vemure,
it is socounted for a3 & disposal of the entire imerest in the investee with a resulting gnin or Ioss: being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former assecisie or joint ventse
and the retained inderest &5 a financinl assct within the scope of 1AS 39, the Group measunes the retained
interest at fuir vabue at that date and the fair valee is regarded as its fir vabue on initial recognition, The
difference berween the camying amount of the associale of joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fir value of any retained interest and any proceeds (rom disposing the relevans
interest in the associate or joint venture i5 included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associabe or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all smounts previously recognised
in other comprehensne income m retation b that associate or joint venture on the same basis a5 would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or labilitics.
Thercfore, ifa gain of boss previously recognised in other compechensive income by that associnie or joint
venture would be reclassified fo profit or loss an the disposal of the related assets or liahilitics, the Group
reclassifics the gain or loss from cquity 1o profit o loss (as  reclassification adjustment ) when the equity
method is discontinued.

The Group continees to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an myestment
in & joint ventune or an investment in & joint venhme bécomes an invesment in an associabe. There is o
remeasrement to fair vialue upon such changes in ownership intensss,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
(2} Iovestment in associates nnd joint ventures fcomimmed)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an dssocinte or o joing vemtare bat the Group continues
1o iz e equaty method, the Group reclassifics to profit o loss the proporien of the gabn o loss that had
previously been recognissd in ather comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
i that gain or loss would be reclissified 1o prodit o loss on the deposal of the related assets o linbilities,

When a grosp entity tnsnsacts with an associste of @ point senture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venfure are recognised in the Group's consobidated
finaneial staternents only 1o the extent of ienzses in the associate or joint venture tha are not related ko the

Crroug,
(3} Uash and cash eguivalents

For the purpese of the consolidated statement of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short=term highly houid investments that are rewdily convertible mio
known amoums of cash, which are subject 10 an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a shom
matarity of genevally within three months when acquired. less bank ovenldrafts which are repayable
on demand and the amounts of cash restricted as to use and form an sl part of the Group's cash

ATEEEn.
{4} Foreign currency transkation

The Group's presentation currency is the RMB, which is also the functional cumency of the Company and
of its domestic subsidharies.

Exch entity in the Group determines s own funciional currency and items incheded in ihe financial
stmtements of cach ety are recorded sing that fumctionsl currency, Forcign currency transactions
recorded by the emtities in the Group are inkially recorded in their respective functional currency using
cxchange rutes prevailing ot the dates of ihe transactions, Monctary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign curmencies ure translated ot the exchange mies prevailing ot the emd of the repoting period.
Exchange differences arising on the setilement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of mongtary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for (1) exchange differences
arising on o monetary iem that forms pan of the Group's net investment in a foneign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulmed in equity
and will be reclassificed from equity o profin o kss on disposal of the Faeign operation, (i) exchange
differences arming from the changes of the fuir value of monctary assels classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (other than the changes relating 1o the amortised cost of the monetary assets) which are
recognised in other compwrehensive and accunmilated in equity,

iteriss that are measured in terms of historical cost m o foreign currency are transkated using
Ihe exchange mies a1 the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monefary ilems measuned af fair valoe ina
foreign curmency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fir valoe was determined.
The gain or loss arising on taskation of 3 non-monetary item measured at Gir value is weated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (ic., ranslation difference on the
item whose fair valse goin or loss is recognised in ulhr:mqwﬂmmwmnr profit or loss is also
recognized in other comprehiensive income or profit or loss, respectively),

The functional currencies of centain forgign operations are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reponing periodd, the assets and lishilitics of these entitics are translated into the presentation cumency

of the Group at the exchange rabes prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income sintements
are translated o RMB at the weighted average cxchange rates for the year,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{4} Foreign currency trunskation foontimged)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehenaive income and accumulated in
the Foreign exchange reserve. On disposil of 4 foreign operation, the component of olher conpeehensiive
income relnting to that particular foreign opermtion ix recognesed in the income stcment.

For the purpose of the consclidsied ssatement of cash flows, the cash flows of foreign operations are
tramslated into RMB o the exchange mies mling at the dates of the cash Mows, Frequently récurmng cash
flows of foreign operations which arise throughous the vear are tramskated into RMB a the weiphted
avernge exchange rates for the year,

i5) Financial assets
Tnirttal recungnidtion g micasnrenént

Financial aisets within the seope of IAS 30 are classified o8 financinl assets at fuie value throgh profi
or ks, loans and receivables, held-toamnturity imvestments, and myailable-for-sale financial assets, or as
dermvatives designated as hedging mstruments i an effective hedge, s appropraate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at indtial recognition.

Wihen financipl asses are recopnised inially, they are mscaswred o fuir valee, plis iransacton oosis.
cxcept in the case of financial asscts recorded a1 fair vahee through profit or loss.

AN pepular way purchases and sabes of fimancial assets are recognised on the wade date, that ks, the date
that the Group commits 1o purchasing or selling the asset, Regular way purchases or sales are puschases or
sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
camvention in the markeiplace.

Subseguens measurement

The subsequen measurement of financial sssets depends on their classieation as follows:
Fingmeial assets af feir vl theonch profit ar i

Financinl assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for wading and financial
asiets designated upon ndtial recognition as at fair vakee through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified i held for trading if they are acquined for the purpose of sale in the near tem. Dervatives,
ingluding separsted embedded derivatives, dre always measured at fair value through prafit or loss unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by 1AS 39,

Fimancial assets u fir value through profit or joss ane carmied in the statement of financial positon at fir
walue with et changes in fwir value presented as invesunent inesma in the income statement. Thess net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest eamed on these financin] assets, which are
recognised in accondance with the policics set ot for “Revenne recognition” belos,

Financial wesets designated ot fir value through profit or Joss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only i the criteria in 1AS 39 are sntisfied.

Deervvirtives enbedded in host contracts are sccourted for s sepamie derivitives and recorded ai fair vilue
if their sconomic charmctenistics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contrcts ane not held for trading or designated at fir value through profit or loss. These embedded
denvatives are measured at fair volse with chamges in fzir valoe recognised in the income staiement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is 3 change i the teoms of the contract that sigrificantly modifies the
sl TMows that would otherwise be regquinesd,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foomtiumed)
{5}  Financhal assets (comaimmed)
Subscquens measirenom feontinmed)
dAvailable-for-sale financial asvets

Available-for-sale financial aseets are non-genviatives that are erther designated a8 available-for-sale or
are nol chassified a3 loans and receivables, hebd-to-matunty myvestments or fnoncial assets af Gir vale

through profit or lnss.
Measured ol i vilse

Adfler iniial recognition, svadlable-for-sake financual assets are subsequently medsured at fr value with
irealised pains of bsses recognised as other comprebensive income in the avalable-for-sale fnancial
asset revaluation reserve until the mset i derecogmised or dmpaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or bases previously recognised m oiber comprebensive income are reclassified 1o profi o loss. Interest
and dividends earmed whild holding the avallable-for-sale financial asseis are reporied as imvestment
income, respectively and are recopnised m the medme stalement in socondance with the phlicies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below,

Measuired at cost less impairment

Wihen the fair value of unlisted equity imvestments canmnot be reliably measured because (a) the varmbility
in the range of reasonable fair valoe estinates i significant for that investment or (h) the prohahilities of
the various estiimaics within the range canmot be reasonably assessed and wsed in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated gl cost less any imgrirmen losses,

Lenpns avaaf receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative. fimincial sssets with fived or determinable payments that are
ot guided in an active market The Group's financial assets that are clagsified a5 loans and receivables
inclade cash equivalents, 1erms deposits, investments classificd s loans and receivables and miscellaneous
receivibles. Insurance receivables and pelicy loans are abso’ accounded for us iff they were loans and
receivables. Afier initial measurcme, such assets are subsequemly measered a1 amonised cost, esing the
effective interest rate method, less any allowance for impairment. Amonised cost is caboulated by taking
into account any discount or premium on ooquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral pan of
the effective interest mie method. The effective interest & included in investmen! income in the incoms
- Atatement.

Hetd-to-masnurify fmoncil gy

WNoa-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determimable payments and fixed matity are classificd
25 held 10 maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them o manrity, other
than those the entity designates & at financial assets at fair valoe through profit o loss, available-for-sale
financial assets or those mecting the definition of boans and receivables. Held-io-maturity investments
are subsequently measured st amonised cost using the effective inferest mte method less any allowance
for impairment. Amoertised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that ane an integral pan of the effective interest raic. The effective interest rate
amariisation is- incleled in the income statement. The loss ansing from impainnent 5 recognised in the
income stalement.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{5)  Financial mssets fcongmued)
Subscquens measirenom feontinmed)

Derecognition of finoncinl assets

A financial psset (or, when applicable a part of a financial asset or pant of a group of similar finoncial
assets ) is derecognised wheno

() the rights 1o receive cash Mows from the asset have expirdd; or

(b} 1he Group has transfermed its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has sssumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in fall withour materinl delay to a thind pany under o “pass-through™
arrargement; and either: (a) the Group has transfered subsantially all tbe ks and rewasds of the
asset; or (h) the Group has neither transfered nor retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group his transfermed s nght fo receive cash fows from an asset or his emered into a pass-
through arrangensent, i evalnes i and 1w what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it bas neither transferred nor retained substamially all the risks and rewards of the assct nor
transferred control of the amet, the asset s recognised o the extent of the Groap”s continuing imvolvement
i ABe asset, In et caee, the Group aked recognises an mesociated liabilay, The wansferred sset and the
associpted lability sre measured on  bosis that reflects the nghts and obligitions that the Group has
retained

Contimeing involvement Uil tekes the form of 4 guasaniee over the iransfomed mset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Geroup coubll be required to repay,

On derecognition of 3 finncial asset i its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consadertion received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulsted in equity is recognised in profit or boss.

On derccogmition of a financial asset other than mn its entinety (e.g, when the Group retans an oplion (o
repurchase part of o tansferred asset), the Group allocates the previous canrying amount of the financial
asset between the pan it continues 10 recognise under continuing imvolvement, and the pan it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those pars on the date of the fransfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the pant that i no longer recopnised and the sum ol the
consideration received for the part no benger recognised and amy cumulative gain or [oss allocated o i that
had been recognized in other comprehensive mcome ks recognised in profit or less. A comulative gain or
I ihat had been recopnised in oiher comprehensive income is allocaied between the pan thal continues
1o e recognised and the part that is no Jonger recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of hose
parts.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{6} Impairment of financial asscts

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is objective evidence that o finoncaal
assed of group of financiil &sets i mnpaied, A (mncial asset of o group of finascial assss is deeied
1oy be impaired if, and only i, there is objective evidence of impairment a8 3 result of one or Mone gvents
that ocemrred after the matinl recognitson of the asset (an mcurmed “loss event™ ) and that boss evert has an
imipaict on the estimatedd future cash Bows of the financial assct or the grosip of financlal assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evadence of mnpaimment miy include mdications that 4 debtor or a groap of deblors is
experencing significam fmancial difficulty, defaull or delinguency in interest or principal pavments, the
probability that they will emer bankrupicy ar other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there 15 3 measurable decrease i the estimated future cash flows, such 45 changes i arrears of
econemic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Avaihable=for-vale fimancial axsess

For availabde-for-sale fimancial assets, the Group assesses ot the end of the reponting period whether there
Is objective evidence that an investment or a group of Imvesiments is mpained.

IF an available-for-sale asset s impatred, an amoumt comprising the difference between i cost (net of
any. principal payment and amortisation) and s curent fide value, less any Impaimment loss previously
recognised i the income statement, 18 removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
NEOme sEEEmenL

The mmpairment analysis ond amoonts recorded ane hased on the functional currency of the group entity
holding the investment.

In thse case of equity investmems classificd as pvailable-for-sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investiment below its cost, The determination of
what {5 “sdgnificant’ or “prolonged” requines judgement. “Significant” 15 evaluated sgains the onginal cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has bewm below its oniginal
cost. Where there is evidence of impaimment, the cumulative loss-measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impaiment oss on that mvestment previously
recognised in the income smiement is reclassified from other comprehensive incame and recogmised in the
incoume statement. Impairment losses oh equity instruments classificd a3 available-for-sale are pot reversed
through the income statement, Inereases in their fir value after impainment are recopnised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the: case of delbt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impainment 15 assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets camied ot amortised cos deseribed below, However, the amount reconded for
impairment is the cumulative boss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current
fuir value, less any impairment Toss on that isvesimen previously recognised in ihe income sixement.
Future intenest income continues o be accrued hased on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and
is accrued using the rate of imerest used o discount the future cash Nows for the parpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as par of investment income; Impairment losses an
del instruments are reversed through the income statement if the increase in fudr value of the instruments
con be ohjectively related 1o an event occurring afler the impaiment loss was recognised in the incoms
slatement.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{6} Impairment of financial assets feongimmed)
Finameinl assety carricd af amortived oost

If financial asscts carmied at amortised cost are impaired, the carmying amount of the financial assets is
reduced 1o the present value of estimated fatire cash ows (exchidug fure credi losses that hove not
been incurred ) and the reduction is recognizad s an impairment loss in the income statement, The present
value of estimated futwre cash Nows shall be calculated with the fimancial asset’s ongimal effective interest
rate and the related collaternl value shall also be mken into account. For financial asseis with floating
interest mate, the present value of estimated fusure cash fows shall be caleulated with b effective insenest
rabe stipulsted by the contract.

For a financial asset that i individually significant, the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment, and recogrises the amoum of impairment in peofit of lose. For o financial asse that is noe
indrvichially significant, the Group assesses the assat individunlly for impairment or includes the asset
in o group of financial assets with similor credin nsk charocteristics and collectively assesses them for
impalrment. I the Group determines that no ohiective evidence of impalrment exisis for an individually
assessed financiinl asset, whether the financial as<t is individually sigmificant or not, the ezl assel s
included in a group of fnancind aseets with similar enedit risk chametenstics and collectively assessed for
impairment. Financial assets for which an impakrment loss is individaally recognised are not included in a
collective nssesment of impairment.

After the Group recognies an empakrment [oss of financial assets carmed w amonsad cost, i there 18
ohjectivie evidence thag the financial assets’ value resiores and the restortion can be related objectively o
an eveni eccurring after the impaimient was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss shall
e reversed aned recognised in profit or loss, However, the revensal shall not resull in a carmying amount of
the fnancial asset that exceeds whal the amortised cost would have been a1 the dase of thse impazrment’s
reversal had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial ooty carried af cos

If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unguoted equity instrument
that s not carred st fair valee becanse its fair value cannot be retiably measered, or on o derivative gsset
that is imked 10 and st be-settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity imstrument, the amount of fhe
loss is messured as ihe difference between the asset’s camying amount and the present value of estimated
fusture cash fows discounsed a8 the current market re of retwm (o 3 simdlar lnancial asset, lmpainment
Insses on these assets ane not reversed,

{7} Financial labdlities
dnitial recagwition and measnrennent

Fimancial lishilitics within the scope of IAS 39 are classificd os financial liabilities at fuir value through
profit or loss, ar other financial Hobilities af omonised cost as appropriote. The Group defermines the
clagsification of its financial liabilities o initial recognition,

Financisl lighilities arce initially measured ot fair value. Tmnsaction costs that ane directly afmibuable 1o the
issue of financiz] Habilities (other than finencial labilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted
from the fur value of the Anonctal labilites on inid recognition. Transaction costs direcily atinbutable
ior the acquisition of fmancial liabilities at fair value through profit or bess are recognised immedzately in
perfit ar loss.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{7} Financial liahdlities foomtimed)
Subscquens measirenscn
The subscquent measuremend of financial labilities depends on their classification as follows:

Fimgneial fabilities gt fair value thropeh profit or b

Financial labilitles at falr value through profli or boss inclsde Mnancial labilides held for imding and
finaneta] liabilines desigrated upon initkal recognition as at flr value through profit or loss.

Financial lishilities are classified & held for trading if they ane scquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category inchudes derivative Ninancinl isstraments entered ino by the Group that are not
desipnated as hedping instruments in hedge relationships s defined by IAS 39, Sepasated embedded
derivatives are always measured at fair vislue through profit or loss unless they are designated as effective
hedging insimemens,

Gains or losses on labiliies beld for trading are recognised in the income statement, The net Gir vale
wain of |oss recognised in the income stiement does. not include any imerest charged on these fAnancial
linbilities,

Fnancial labilithes designated & filr value thiough profit of boss are designated at the date of inRial
recognition and only if the critersa in 1AS 39 are sitislied,

Finiancial labiliies ar amorised cost (inclisding inferesi-bearing borrowings)

Financial liabiliies inchuding securithes sold under apreements to repurchase, amoums due 10 banks and
oiber financial instiutions, bonds payable, investment coniract liabiliies for policyholders, miscellancous
payables and acormls are initially stated ot fuir value kess direcily pttributable transsction costs and ane
subsequently measured ot pmortised cost, using the effective interest raie method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated 08 cost. The related interest expense is
recognizsed in the income statement, Policyholders” dividends and amounts due to reirsurers are accoumbed
for as if ihey were other fimancial linbilities.

Gaing and losses are recognised in the income sttement when the liabilitics are derccognised as well as
through the amorisation process.

Derecognition of firascial Rabiliie
A financial lisbility is derecognised when the obligation imder the lability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires,
When an existing financial lishility is replaced by snother from the same lender on substamtially differént
ferms, of the temms of an existing Fability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is
treated a5 2 derecopnition of the original libility and o recognition of & new linbility, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

{¥) Financisl gnarsntec contracts

Fmancis! puaraniee contracts: mssued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment 1o be made to
reimburse the hodder for a loss it incurs becawse the specified debtor fails to make o payment when due in
mocondance with the serms of a debt instrument.

The Groug has previously reganded cenain credil insurnoe coniracts it ssued with @ financsal guarantoe
ebement as insurnce conracts and has used the accounting methods applicable to insurance contracts, and
sccordingly hus elecied to apply IFRS 4 to account for such contracts.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
(9} Derivative financial instraments and hedge accounting
Imitial recagwition and sibsequent preasurement

The Group dscs derivative financial mstruments, such as mtencst mitc swaps, to hedge its interest mic risk.
Such denvative Fnancinl iistraments are ftally recognised at fur value on the dite on which o dervative
comract s entered into and are subsequently remeaisured at fuir value, Derivatives are carried ns assets
when the faer valse is positive and as lnbilites when the fair value & negtive,

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in Gur value of derivatives are faken directly to the
income. siatemenl, excepd for the effective ponion of cish fow ledpes. which is recopnised in other
comprehensive incorme.

For the purpose of hedgs stcounting, hedges are classilied oz cash Dow hedges when hedging the exposime
1oy variability in cash flows that is gither atinibutable w0 3 pacticular sk associated with o recognised asset
or liahility or @ highly probable forecast transnction.

Al the inception of a bedge relationship, the Group formally designmtes and documents the hedge
redationship 1o which the Groap wishes 1o apply bedge socounting, the risk mansgement objective and its
sirvicgy for undenaking the hedge. The documeniagion includes identification of the hedging instument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the rsk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’'s elfectivensss of changes in the bedping instrument’s Giie valie in offseiting the
exposure 10 changes in the hedged fem’s fuir value or cash flows attnbutable 1o the hedged risk, Such
hedges are expected 1o be highly effective in achieving offsetiing changes in cash Mows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis o delermine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the fAnancial
reporting periods for which they were desigraied.

Hedges which meet the serict eriterin for bedge accounting and are classificd as cash flow hedges are
aceounted for as described below,

The effective portion of the goin or boss on the hedging mstrument is recognised directly i other
comprehensive income in the cash flow hedging reserve, while amy ineffective pomion 5 recognised
immediately in the income stasement.

Amounts recognised i other eomprebensive imcome are transemmed 1o the income siatement when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such os when hedged finongial income or financial expense is
recognized or when o forecast sale occurs, Where the hedged item s the cost of 8 non-financinl asset or
non-financial lablity, the amouants recognised in other comprehensive mcome ane trnsfermed 10 the inidal
earrymg amount of the pon-firnncial psset or non-finpncaal labibity,

IF the fmecast imnsaction or fimm commitment is oo longer expecied wooceur, the cumalative gain or ks
previously necognised in equity is transfermed 1o the income statement, 1 the hedging instrument expines or
15 sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or roflover, or if its designation as o bedge i revoked,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income

mtil the fecast transaction or firm commitment affects profil or loss,
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15  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foantivimed)
{10) Fair value measurement

Fuir value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lubility 10 an orderly
tramsaction between market participants @ the mesarement date, regardless of whether that price is
direcily observabbe or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fir value of an asset
or a linhility, the Group takes into account the chamoenstics of the asset or lability if market paricipans
wouldl take those chamecteristics into sccount when pricing the asset or lability ar the measurement date.
Fiir value for measuremnent andior disclosure purposes in these consolidated fimancial stalements is
determined on such o basis, except for keasing transactions that are witlan the scope of 1AS 17 Leases, and
mezsurcments that have some similarities 1o fair value but are got fuir valoe, such as vakie in wse in LAS 36
Impairmemt of Assets.

{11} lovestment properties

Investment propenics are interests i lind and bulldmgs (including the leasehold mterest under an
operating bease for & property which would otherwise meet the definnion of an invesimend property)
held o eam rengal income and/or for capital appreciation, miber than for use in the production or supply
of pols or services or for sdminkstrative purposes; of for sale in the ondinary course of business. Such
propenies are measured initially a1 cost, including transaction cosis. Subsequent to initial recopnition,
investment properies ane stited at fude valse, which reflects market conditions a1 the end of the reparting
per.

Giains or bosses ansing from the retirement o disposal of mvestment propenty shall be determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the aset and shall be recognised
in profit or loss (unless IAS 17 requires oitherwise on 3 sale and beascback) in the period of the retirement

ot disposal.

For o transfer from investment propertics 10 owner-occupsed propentics, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting & its fair viluz at the date of change in use, IF a property occupied by the Group
45 a0 owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts. for such property
in gecordance with the policy sated under “Propenty and equipment and depreciation™ up to the date
of change in use, and any difference of that date hetween the carmying amount and the fair valoe of the
propeny is accounted for ks an asset revalustion reserve.

(12) Property and equipment and depreciation

Propemy and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost bess accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any direcily anributabde costs of bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location
o st imbended use.

Expenditure incurmed afier items of propery and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is sormally charged o the inconie statement i the period in which if is incwmed. In
sinmtions where the recoznition criteria are satislicd, the expenditure for a major inspection & capitalised
in e carrying amount of the asset as o replacement. Where significant pans of property and equipment
are required to be replaced a1 intervals, the (roup recognises such pans as individual assets with specific
wesefiel Tivies and deprociates them accordingly.

Diepreciation is calculated on the straighi-ling hasi o write off the cost of each item of propenty and
cquipment, other thin constrection in progress, to s residunl valoe over its estimated wseful life, The
principal annual rates wsed for this purpose are as follows:

Lansd and baldings 15000 19.40%
Office equipment, fumiture and fixtures 750000 32.33%
Motor vehicles 6,00 10 24 25%
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{12) Property and equipment and deprecintion feanmmred)

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of ihat item 1s
allocated on g reasonable hasis among thse parts and each part 15 depreciated separately. Residual values,
usetul lves and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriae, 3 leas? at each financial
year end

A item of propenty and equipment including any significant part initially recognised s dorecogmised
upon dispasal or when so future economic benefits ane expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the incomie statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sles procesds and the carmying amount of the relevan asa,

{13) Constroction in progress

Construction in progress mainly represents bubdings under construction, which is stited at cost less any
umpairment losses, and 15 oot deprecived. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capatalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the pesfod of comstruction. Construction i progress is

reclnssificd to the approprinte category of property and equipment when compleed and ready for use.
(14) Intangible nsses (other than goodwill)

Imtangible assets acquined separately are measured on inftial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
aswets gequined in o business combination is the fuir value 2t the date of acquisiion, The weful lives
of intngible assets are assessed to be sither fmite of indefinite, Iaangible assets with finite lives afe
subsequently amortised over the iseful economic Hfie and pssesed for impairment whenever there i an
indication that the intangible assct may be impaired. The amonisation period and the amonistion method
for am intangible asset with a finkie useful life are reviewssd at beast at each financial year end.

The wsell lives of software are froim 3 wo 10 years.

{15) Impuirment of non-finsncial nsscts

Where an indication of impatrment exists, of when annusl impairment testing for an asset is roquined (other
than financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is catimated. An asset’s recovernble
ampunt is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, undess the asset does not generate cash inflows that ane
largely independent of those from adher assets or groups of assets, in which case the necoverable amount is
determined for the cash-genersting it 1o which the asset belongs,

An impairmend loss is recognised only il the camying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
I assessing value in use, the estimared futare cosh Mows ane discoanted to their present value using a pee-
fax discount mie that reflects cumment market assessments of the tinae value of money and the risks specific
1o the assel. An impairment loss is charged o the income statement in the period in which it anses or
Ireated as a revaluation decrease, as appropriate.

An assessmend is made an the end of cach reporting period a5 w0 whether thene is an indication that
previously recognised impainment losses may ro longer exist or may have decreased. 1f such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount s estimated. A previously recognised impainment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only iF there has been @ chinge in the estimates used v determing the recoverable
amaumt of that asset, bat not fo on amount higher than the camying amount that wookd have been
determined (net of any deprecishion/amarnisation) had no impairment [oss been recogmised for the assct
in prior years, A reversal of such an impairment loss 15 oredited to the income statement in the perind in
which it arises or treated as a revaluntion increase, as appropriate,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{16) Insurmnce receivabbes

Insurance receivables are recopmised when due ond measured on mitial recognition af the fair value of the
comsiderntion recetved of neceihvable, Subsequent 1o initial recopmition, nsurance receivables are nscasuned
at amortized cost, using the effective interest mie method. The camying value of msurance recevables i
reviewed for impainmient whenever events or circumstances indicame that the carrying amaoun] may not be
recelvable, with the impairment boss recorded in the income siemend.

Insuramce receivables are derecopnized when the derecogmtion critera for financial assets have been niet.
{17} Product classification and unbundling

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance risk from
the policyholders by agreeing 1o compensate the policyhalders i o gpecified meertain fsire event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. Details of significant insurance sk 1esting are set out
below, Insurance contracts may also transfer financial sk 1o the Growp.

Invessment contrcts are thise contmcts that transfer significant financial sk but no or insignificang
insurance rsk. Financial risk is the risk of 3 possible future change in one or mone specificd interess rates,
a finamcial instrument price, o commadity price, a forcign exchange raie, an index of price or mbcs, a credi
rating or a credit index or other variables, provided in the case of a non-financial vanable, the variable s
08 specifie 00 8 pany 10 the coatract,

Some contracts issoed by the Group may contain both an insarance component and a deposit component.
If these twio components are distinet and can be measured reliably, the underlying amounts jre unbundled.
Ady premmiums relating to the isurance risk companent are secoutited for on the same basis as insunice
comracts and the rempining element is accounted for asan investment contrac.

The Growp test the significance of insurance riik transfer ot inktinl recognition of all relevant contracts.
Once & confract has been classified a5 an Msumnce comract, it femiing an insumnce coniract up 1o
derecognition, even if the insurance risk subssquently reduces significantly. Investment comtracts
cin, however, be reclassificd as insurance commacts after indtind recognition if msurance nisk hecomes.
significant,

(18} Insurance contraet Habiliies

The insumnce contract liabilities of the Group inclede long-term life and health insurance conract
liabilitics, wneamed premium reserves and claim reserves.

When measring insurnnce contract lishilities, the Group classifies insumpce contracts whose insarance
risks are of a similar nofure & o measurement unit, Non-life and short-term health insurance policies
are grouped into cenain measmement anits by lines of business. For long-tenm life and healih insirance
policies. the measurement unit iscach individual insursnce contract.

Unearned premfum reserves

Unearmed premium reserves are recognised an inception of non-life and short-term healih insurance
contracts until the insumnce covernge expires. The uncamed premium reserves represent premiums
received for risks that have not yet expired. At inception of the contract, it represents premiums received
or receivabie minus relevant acquisition costs. Acguisition costs in relation to the sale of new insarance
contracts such as handling charges and commissions, underwrting personal expenses, business. tax and
surcharges, msumnce profection expenses and other incrementnl costs are reconded as expenses i profit
or loss against an cqual and opposite amount of prémivm being recognised as revenue. Subsequent io
the initial recognition, uncamed premium reserves ang released on a 17363 or 124 basis acconding o the
insurance coverage perod. When any deficiency arises from performing the liability adequacy tests as
described below, uneamed preminm reservies have to be adjssted to refleot the deficiency.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{18) Insurmnce contract linbilities fomonimed)
Imswrawee comtrarct Habilities ocher ihan wrearned premim reserves

Other than wneamcd premium neserve, insurnce contmat liabilitics are measurcd based on reasonable
estimates of the payments the Group will make to fulfil the relevant obligations under the Raimmoe
comracts, These estimutes represent the differénce between expected future cash outflows and inflows
under such contracts, i.e., the expected fulure net cish outflows,

Expected fusure net cash outflows over the entire coverage and sertlement period are taken i socount
in messurng inswrnce comract linbalities. For insumnce polices with & guamnteed renewal optioa, the
covernge penod is extended io the dase when the option to rencw ceases to be guaraniesd because the
Group acguires the right 1o re-price the risk under the contract.

+  Expected future cash outflows represent reasoanhle cash outflaws which are necessary for the
Giroup to fulfil the obligations under the insurance contracts {including benefis auributable 1o the
policyholders). and mainly include:

(a) Guprameed benefits under the insurance comracts, incleding clmms, momality benefins,
disability bemnefits, morbidity benefits, survival benefits and maturity benefits;

i) Non-guasanieed benefits under the insurpce conrscts ansng from constictive obligations,
including policyhelder dividends;

fcl  Reasonable expenses necessary for policy acquisitions, adminisiration and claims handling.
g luding policy muimenance expeinses and claim hamdling expenses,

) Expected future cash inflows represemt cash inflows arising from assuming liabilizies under the
insurance contracts, including premium kmoome and ofher charges.

Both risk margin and residual margin are separately recognised for long-temm e and health insgrince
comracts. Risk margins arc recognised for claim reserves.

*  Risk mewgin represents. provison (o the uncerainty assoceated with the fulure net cash fows, Kisk
margin is detemmined using the scenario comparison approach or the confidence interval approsch
and based on the most recent experience of the Group as well as by reference 1o the industry
benchmark, Diversification effect is not considered inamiving st risk margins,

* Atinception of an insurance contract, any “day-one” gain is not recopnised in the income statement,
hut included in the insurance contract liabilities as o residual margin, At inception of an insrance
contract, any “day-one™ loss is recopnised in the meome sttement, Residusl margins are nol ne-
measured a1 the end of each repoming date, They are amortised on the basis of the effective sums
insured or number of poficies over the gatire coverage pesiod,

Reasonable esimates in expected future net cash flows are determined based on information cumrently
svailable x5 at the end of the reporting period,

When mensuring insurance contract lisbilitics, time value of money s considered. The related futune
cash Mows are discounted when the impact of time valse of money s muterial, For short coniracts with
durations less than one year, the cash flows an: not discounted, The discount rates used in the measurement
of time value of money are determined with reference to information currently available ot the end of the
Year,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)

{18) Insurmnce contract linbilities fomonimed)
Liability adequacy fesey
At the end of cach reporting poriod, lability adequacy tests are performed to cnsure the adequacy of the
imearmed premiwm reserve. [ afer applying a nek margin, the amount of expected present value of cash
outflows minus the expected present vailue of cash inflows exceeds the camying amount of the unsarned
premium reserve, the entire deficiency is recognised in prodit or boss of the peniod in which the deficiency
arses. Unearned premium reserve may have to be adjusied if there {s any deficlency arising from the
performance of these 1ests,
Insurance contract Habdlities are derecognised when they are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

(19} Provisions
Excep comingent considerations deriving from of comtingent liabilitics ssumed in business combimations,
comtingent lialilities are recognised as provesions if the following conditions are met:
+ Anentity has a present chligation as a result of a past event;

b It 15 probable thar an owflow of respurces ensbodying cconomic benefits will be required 1o senke the
obligation; and

s A relioble estimate can be made of the amount of the obliption.

The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditre required to seftle the

present obligation ai the end of the reporting period with ihe consideration of risks, unceriainties and the

time value of money, Provisions shall be reviewed ag the end of the reporting period and sdjusied 10 reflect
the current best estimase.

(20} Employee benefits
Retirement beiefies cost and terminntivn bemefits

Payments to defined conmibution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service eatitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actusrial valuations being carmied out af the end of each anmeal reparting
prerid. Remeasurement arising from actuarinl gains and losses is reflecied immediately in the stement of
financial position with a charge or credin recognised i other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur, and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

118 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited

247/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
(20) Emplayee benefits feonsimned)
Rerirement benefies cost and wrminmtion bemefirs feontimned)

The remecasurcmcnts ansng from actuarial gains and foases rocognised in other comprehensive imcome
are pocumulated in the Group's nesene headed ‘actuirinl {losses)mins on pension benefit ebligation’ and
i transferred to retained profits when the defined benefit plans terminates, Past service cost 15 recognised
in profit o boss in the penod of a plan amendment. Interest expense € calculated by applying the disoount
rate ot the beglnning of the period 1o the defined benefi lability. Defined benefii costs ane catcporised as’
forllonws:

+  Service costs (including past service costs, gains and losses on curtaiiment and seibements);

L [nterest expenses; and

% Remeasurement.

The Growp presemts the first two components of its defined benefit costs in profit or koss in “Other
Operating and Administrative Expenses™ and “Fimance Costs”, Cunailment gains amd losses are accounted
for as past service costs.

Thie retiremment benelit obligation recognised in the consalidated statement of Mnancial position represents
the actiml daficits i the Croup’s defined benefit plan.

A liaibility for a termination benefil is recognised at the carier of when the Group can no bonger withidraw
the olfer of the tenmination benelit and when the entity recognises any relifed restrocturing costs,

Short-term and ather bnng-term employee benefits

Shori-term employee berefits are recognised # the undiscounted amount of the benefits expeciad o be
paidl a5 amd when employess renderad the services. All short-temm employee benefits are recogrised as an
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of on aeset,

A liahility & necognised for benefits accruing o employees (such as wages and salaries, anmml keave and
sick leaved after deducting any amount already paid.

Linbilities recognised in respect of other long-1erm employee bemefits pre mepsured at the present value
of the estimased future cash outllows expeciced 1o be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
ernployees up to the reporting dute. Any changes in the Rabilities” camying amounts resulting from service
eost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss cxcept 8o the extent that another [FRS
requines of permnits their inclusion inthe cost of an gssel.

(213 Policyholder dividends
Policybolder dividends represent dividends payable by the Growp to palicyholders in accordance with the
lerms of isumnce coniracts. The dividends are calculated and provided based on the divddend distribution
determination and the results of acarial viluation,

When policyholders’ dividends are declared, they are pocounted for as financial liabilities and initially
mezsured ai fuir vidue and subsequently measured ot amortised costs.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES forntimred)
(22) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease tmansfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership 10 the lessse, All other beases are classified as operating leases

The Gronp as fesvor

Fental imcome from operating leases 18 recognised in profit or loss on o straight=line basis over the term of
the relevamt lease. Indtlal direct costs incumed in nepotiaing and armanging an operfing lease arc added 1o
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised s an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
Ii=FT

The Gronp as lesiee

Operating lease payments, inchuding the cost of acquiring land held under operating leases, are recognised
a8 an expense o o sraight-line basis over the lease wrm. Contingent rentals ansing under operating leases
are recognised o= an expense in the period in which they gre incurmed.

I the evien ihat lease indcentives are recedved io enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a lability, The aggregate benefit of Incemtives is recognised as o reduction of remal cxpensc on a
sirglui-Jine basis.

Leasehold land for own o

When a bease includes both land and building clements, the Group asscsses the classification of cach
clemeiit a8 a finance of on operating lense separmtely bised on the aseuament a8 to whether substuntially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred 10 the Group unless
it is clear that bath ebements ane operating leases m which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum |ease payments {inchoding any lump-sum upfront payments) ane allocated
between the land and the building clements in propartion to the rekstive fair values of the leaschold
interests in the land elensem and buskBing clement of the Jemse at the inception of the lease,

Tio the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in leaschobd land that is
sccounted for as an operating lease is presented as prepaid land premiums in the consolidated statement
of financial position and amortised over the kease term on o straight-ling Basis. When the lease payments
canmod be allocated reliably berween the lond and building clements, the entire lease is generally classified
a5 a finance bease and sccomied for as propery and equipment.

(23) Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 recognised when the amount of revense can be reliably messured: when in is probable tha
fure economic benefits will Now o the Group and when specific criieria have been met for cach of the
Crrongy's activinies, as described below:

{irasy premiiums

Premium income and reinsarance premium incame ane recognised when the msurance contracts are isswed,
refated insurance nsk 5 undennken by the Group, it is probable that the related economic benefits will
flavwy 1o the Group and the related moome can be reliably migxstred.

Premiums from life insurance contraces with insmlment or singde payments are recogiised as reverue

when due. Premiums from direct mon-life insumnce comtmcts are recognised as revenue according 1o the
todal premiums stated i the contmets.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
(23 Revenue recogmition fooringed)
Fee income

Insurance and imvestment contract podicyholders are charged for policy administration services, investment
management gervioss, surrendens and other contact Tees, These fess ane fecognised as fevenue over the
period in which the related services are performed.

Lvestm s fngmmne

Imerest incomse s recognised in the income seaiement as il accnses and is caleulmed by using the effective
interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an imegral pan of the effective vield of the financial
asset of Hability are recognised os an adjustment (o the effective interest rate of the instrumen.

Investment income also inchides dividends when the nght 1o recedve paymcmt is established. For listed
securities, this is the date the security is listed a8 ex-dividend.

{24) Reinsurnnce

The Group cedes insumnce risk in the normal course of business for part of its buonesses, Renmmnoe
asseis represent balances due from reinsurance companies, Amounds recoverable from reinsurers iire
estimated in a munner consistem with the insurance contract liabilivies or senled claims nssociated with the
resnsured policies pnad wre in oecordance with the nelated reinsurance compicts.

Reimsurinee assets arc reviewed for impairmend at cach reponing date or more frequemtly when an
indecation of imparment arises during the reporting vear. Impairment occars when these is objective
evidence as o result of an event that ocoummed after indtial recognition of the reinsurance asse that the
Ciroup may ot neceive ol outstanding amounts due under the termis of the contract and 1he effect has a
relizhly measurahle impact on the amounts that will receive from the reinsurer. The impaiment loss is
recorded in the income seatement.

Ceded reinsurance arrangemenes do not relieve the Group from s obligations 1o policyholders.

The Group also assumes reinsurance nsk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts where
applicable, Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenue and expenses in the
same manner ox they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into acoount
the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due io
reimsumnce companies, Amounts payable o reinsurers ang estimated Inoa manner consistent with the
retated reinsurance comracts. Receivables and payables ansing rom reinsurance contracts are measured an
amortised costs and not offset for presentation purposes.

Commissions receivable on outward reinsurance contracts are recorded a3 income in the income statement
The reinsurers” share of uneamed premium reserves is reduced by commissions receivable on putward
TeinsurnCE contracts at inception and subsequently the reduced balance 13 released over the term of the
comiract in the same manner as the related uncamed premium reserves, Reinsurers” share of loss and boss
alljustment expense reserves also includes their share of nsk margin o the gross balance of loss and koss
adjusiment cxpense reserves,

Premiums and claims ane presenied on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsuronce assets or labalities are derecognised when the contractual nghts are extinpuished or expare or
when the comtmet is transferned to another panty.

Reinsurance comracts that do net tansfer significant insurance risk are accomied for as financial
instruments. These are deposit assets or financinl liabilitics thot are recopnised based on the consideration

paid or received less any explicit idemtified premiums or fecs w0 be retamed by the cedant. Investment
NGO O expense on these contracts (s accounted forusing the effective inierest method when sccroed.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiumed)
{25) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs carectly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
Le., assets that necessanly take a substantial period of thine 1o ged ready for their infended wse o sale, are
eapitalisad as pan of the cost of those nssets, The capitalization of such bormowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantinlly ready for thear imended use or sale. Investment mcome camed on the lemporary
investment of specific bomowings pending their expéndiiure on qualifying asseis s deducted from the
bommowing costs capitalised, All other borrowing costs are expensed i the perod in which they ane
incurned. Bormowing costs consist of iserest and other direct costs that an entity incurs m conneetion with

the borrowing of funds.

{26) Government granis

Governiment grants aie mecopmised in prof of loss whene there s reasonable fssisance that the grant
will be received s all attaching conditions will be complied with, When the grant relates 10 an expenge
item, it 18 recogiised a8 income on A systematic basis over the peniods that the costs, which it is imended
o compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relaies 1o an asset. the government gram is credited io
a defermal imcome account and is released o the income stitement over the expected usefil life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released
1o ihe income statcment by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
27} Related parties

A party is considered to be related 1o the Group il
(#) he pamy is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person:

iy has control o join: control over the Group;

(i) has significant inflsence over the Giroup; or

{iil) s a member of the key management persomng] of the Group o of a parent of the Group; or
(b} ihe panty is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

i) the entity and the Group are members of the smme grougy;

{ii} one entity i3 an associate or a joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

{iif) the entity and the Growp are joist ventunes of the same thind party;

(V) one entity is a joinl venture of o third entity and the other ensity is an assocaate of the third
entity;

{v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the bene fit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related (o the Gooup:

(vi) the entity i controlled or joantly comtrolked by o person idemified in () and

{vii) o person identified in (aji) has significant imflucnee over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity {or of o parent of the entity .
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foantivimed)
{28) Income fax

Income tax comprises curment and deferned tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss ks recogmised outside profit or logs, dther in other comprehensive income ar directly In equity.

Cuorrent taix assets and labilities for the carment and prior penods are meassned a1 the amoant expected
i be recovered from or pald to the faxation authonties, based on tx mies (and tax laws) that have been
emacted or substantively emisted by the year end, taking ino comideration the interpretations and praciices
prevailing in the countries in which the Company and its subsidianes operates.

Deferved tax liabilites are recognised for all taxable wmparary differences, except:

+  when the deferred tax linbility arses from the iniial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, ar the me of the ransaction, affects neither the
accounzing prodit nor taxable profin or loss: and

s in respect of wxahle emporary differences ssociated with invesiments in subsidianes, associnies
and joint venures when the timing of the reversal of the temporary dilferences can be controlled and
it i probable that the temporary cifferences will net reverse in the foreseeable fnture,

Dieferred tax aksets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, the carry-forwand of umused tax
credits and any unused tx Josses 1o he extent that it is probable that wxable profit will be avaitable against
which the dedectible iemposary differences. the carry-forwand of unused tax credits and unused fax bosses
ciah be ulilisad, except:

*  when the deferred iax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the inkial
recogmation of an asset or lability in a transsction that is not a business combination and, af the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor teable profit or loss; and

L] in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments i subsidiancs, associases
el ol veniures, deferred wx assets are only recognised o ihe extent thai it is probable ihat the
temporary differcnces will reverse i the foreseeable future amd taxable profit will be available
against which the iemporary differences can e otilised.

The carmrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end of the reporting period and reduced 10 the
extent that it is mo longer probable that sufficient mxable profit will be available bo aliow all or part of the
defermad tax asset to be wtilised, Unrecognissd defemed tax assets e reassessed a1 the end of the reporting
period and are recopnised tor the extend that it has become probable thar sufficient txable profit will be
available io albow all or part of the deforred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Defemed tx gssets and lizbalities pre measured ot the fax rues thar are expected 1o spply 10 the period
when the asset is realised or the lability is seriled, based on tax mies (and tax laws) thai kave been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tx gssets and defermed tx liabilitics are offset if & legally enforceable right exists to set off
current iy assels against current tax labilities and the defermed axes relate 1o the same twoble etity and
the same taxation auihority,

The measurement of defermed tax labiliics and assets reflect the mx consequences thar would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting peniod, 1o recover or settle the camying
amounts of 1ts assets and liabilitics, other than deseribed below,

For the purposes of measuring defemed fax liabilities or deferred i assets for imvestment propernies
that are measured using the Dir value model, the camying amounts of such propertics are presumed (o
b recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted by facts and circumatances, The
presumption is rebautted when the mvestment properties are depreciable and are held within the context of
o business model whose objective is to substantinlly consume over time the economic benedits embodied in
the investment propertics, mther than through sale.
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L SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financiol statements requines management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Rabtlites and their sccompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent Rabilities. Uncenainty about these sssumptions and estimates could
resull in outcomes that could require a material adjustment 1o the carrving amounts of the assets or labilines
ifTected in the flire.

Judgements

In the process of applye the Group's accounting policies, management has made the ollowing judgements,
apan from these imvolving estimations and assumptions, which have the mos significans effect on the amounes
recognised in the financal saiements:

) Clossificadion and measarenvent of ffnarcial avets

Management necds to make judgements on the classifications of rancial assets i different ciassifications
will affect the pccounting treatment for the financial assets, and the financial position and operating results
of the Group. The judgements on these classificaions depend on the nawre and purposes off acquiring
these financial assets ot their inkial recognitions. Subsequent reclassifications may be made if the itention
of halding a pamicular financial asset changed and that reclassificaion is permitted by IFRS.

The management of the Group judges whether fair value con be mexsured relisbly for available-for-sale
equity Minancial assets without prices i an active market, smd messures them st cost if they cannol be
mezsured reliably,

2 Unbundiing, clessifearon and stgriffican risk testing of conracrs

The Group made judpement on whether 3 coniract transfers insurance risk, and whether the oramsfer
of nsurance risk has commercial substance and is significant. The resubs of the judgement affect the
classification of the contract s instial recognition.

When o contract transfers significant msumnce risk and financial risks, the Group has reached a judgment
on whether the fimncial risks relse 1o 0 deposit component that can be measured separately and the
Ciroup's accounting policies fully reflect the rights and obligations from such deposit component, The
resuelts of this judgement wonld affiect the unbundling of the contract.

When performing significant insurance risk testing, contracts exhibiting homogenous. risks for @ panicular
prosluct are grouped together. Subsequenily, adequite representative samples are drawn from individual
groups, inking into sccount their risk distributions and charcteristics:

The unbundling and classification of contracts affect revenue recognition, measurement of liabilities and
presemtation of the consolidated financial stntememts of the Ciroup,

124 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued)
Judgements {cantimyed)
i3 Stgmificams inflaence wiren fess than 20 per cont of voting pawer i held

The Group determines whether it can exercise influence over on mvestee when it hobds, directly or
indeectly thiough subsdianes, less than 20 per cent of the voting power of the investee, bul one or more of
the following fndicators are present:

+  mepreseniagion on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the invessee:

*  panicipation in policy-making processes, including panicipation in decisions about dividends or
other disaribautions;

+  materal ransactions between the investor and the investee:

+ imerchange of manageral personncl; or

& peovision of essemial techiical information,

An mvestee as accounted for s on associate if o concluded that the Group excrcises significant
influence over thar investee: oilerwise. it is accounted for as a financiol asset in accondance with IAS 19,

The reasons for existence of significant influence over some investees, sven thouph the votmg pphes held
by ihe Group is less than 20%%, are disclosed in note 26 10 these consolideed financial sialements.

M Comsolidations of struetured entites

The Group has imtercat o mage of struchired entities i s daily operations fod investment pafposs.
These entities vary in legal forms and mvestors” rights on remmals of the managers, chinging underying
assets and liguidations. Cernin subsidianes of the Company are also engaged i lunching and nanaging
these structured emities. The Group has 1o assess whether it has control over ihese entities. The decision
mainly depends on whether the Group is the investment manager, whether or not the Group has powers
over changimg any investmem decisions and investment managers. and how the remrns can be affected by

these powers.
151 Deferred tweation on investment properties

For the pumposes of measuring defermed tax liabiliies anang from investment properties that ane measuned
using the fair vrlue moded, the directors have reviewed the Growp's investment property portfolios in
thee FRC and concluded thar the Group's investment propertics are hehd under a business model whose
ohjective is in consume substantally all of the economic benefits embodicd in the investment propenies
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in mcasuring the Ciroup's defemed taxation on imvestment
properties, the Group has determined that the presumption that the carmying amounts of investment
propertics measured using the fair valoe model are recovered entirely through sale is reburted.

Arval Risporl 2000 125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued)
Estimation uncertuinty

The key sssumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end, that
have a sdgmdficint risk of caisang a matenal adjustment bo the carryiig amounts of assets and Habslites wathin
the mext fimencial year, are described below,

0 Impairment of loans and receivables

When there {s objective evidencs that there is impakirment [n loans and recelvables, the Group assesses’
the degree of risk and collecrability of each fem, The Group nesds 1o recognise on mmpalrment loss in the
income statement i e present value of expecied futwre cash Nows is kess than the carryasg amount of
loans and receivables. The Group mainly considers the fnancial sinstion and credit rating of the debiors
and champes inhe capital market.

(iher than mmpairment for individual recenables, the Group also collectively assesses impaimment for
receivibles. Such collective pssessment &5 carmied out for 4 group of recelvables with ssmitar credil risk
charncieristics. The degree of impaimment depenids on the tming and amowst of fature cash Nows:

Loans and recemvables imchude cash equivalents, msurance receivables, term deposils, restneted statmory
depasits, Investments classified os loans and receivables and miscellancons receivables. The camrying
values of these assets are disclosad in the consolidated statemvent of financial position amd respective notes.

(21 Velwation af fusurance congract fabifities

At the end of the reponing period, when measuring the isumnce contract reserve, the Growp necds 1o
make reasonable estimates in payments which the Group is requined fo make in flfilling the obligations
under the insurance contracts. based on information cumently available at the end of the reponing period.

The main asumptions made in measuring tese lisbalites are as follows:

*  For imsurance contracts ander which future insuratios benelits are not affected by imvestment income
of the underlying asset portfolio, the discount rases. are determined based on the 750-day maving
average of the yield curve of China’s treasury bonds pubtished by China Govermnment Securities
Depository Trust & Clearing Co,, Lad.; with conskderation of the tox effect and liquidity preminms.
The Group st the premiums 1o be 30-101 basis poimts as at 31 December 2006 (31 December 201 5:
30-111 busis poinish, Accordingly, the discount mies including premiums, as a1 31 December 2016,
were 29743695 (31 December 2015 3 3T4-6.06%),

For insurance contracts which fiture insurance benefits will be affecied by investment income of the
undertying asset ponfolio, the discount raes are determined based on expected fture investment
returns of the investment portfolio backing the liabilities, The discount rates used by the Group as at
31 December 2006 were 5.00%-5.50% (31 December 2015: 5.00%=3.50%).

The discount rate and investment retumn assumptions are affecied by the future economic
environment. eapital market performance, investment channels of insurmnce fimds, investment
sirabegy, e, and therefore subject to uncenainty.

The discount mies zre the assumptions which have the most agmificant impacts on the messwrement
on the long-term life msurance contract labiliies, The changes of these assumptions during the year

increased Jong-tomm life insurance condmct lishiliies by RMB2,320 million (31 December 2015:
RMB&9E million),

126 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued)
Estimation uncertuinty fcominmed)
3 Valwasion of inswrance conirace lnbifities feantimped)

+  Mortality, moradity and disabality ratcs are bascd on the Group’s own cxpericneoe, market
experience and development trends. Martality rmtes are determined based on the Group's historical
dlata, estimations of current and future expectations and the anderstanding of China’s insumnge
market, and presemiad using the standard Chapese mortality tabdes. Morbidity mites are determined
hased on factors such as the pricing assamptions of the Group’s products and historical data. The
msumptions of monality and morbidity mees are affected by motors such as changes in lifestyles of
tational citirens, social developnsent, and improvement of medical treatment, asd henoe sulsiedt 1o
unceriminty.

s Lapse rales depend on policy vear, product tvpe and sales channel, The assumptions of lapse mes
are affected by Bictors such as future econamic environment and market competition, and hence
subject o uncertinty,

*  Expenses depend on costs analysis and fure development iremcds. For fusure expenses sensitive
1o inflation, the Growp also considers the effect of inflation, The cxpense assemptions. include
mssumptions of ecquisition costs and maintenance costs. The Group only considers expenses dircotly
relmed 1o policy acquisition sl maintenance,

+  Futare policyhobder dividends depends on factors such as expected investment vields, divicdend
policy and policyholders” reasonable expectations. The assumption of pamicipating insurance
accounis is affected by the above factors. and hence bears unceniainty. Fuiure policybolder dividends
for individual panecipsting insurance business of e Growp are measared msuming thal the Growp
will award to policyholders 7005 of the distrbutable susplis calcalated sceording 1o these contracts.

+  The Group determeines the risk margin assusmptions (as a percentape of discountod net cash ows) for
ihe liahility sdequacy test aver uncamed premium reserves as follows:

Type 2iNe 2013
Agrecultural insurance 138 338
Muotor vehicle insumnce 3% 30
Other non-life msumnce 60% 6.0%
Short-terms health insurance A% 0%

*  The Group determines the risk margin sssumptions (0s a percentage of discounted net cash fows) of

cloim reserves as follows:

Type 16 2015
Al sirmnee 3335 2%
Motor vehicle insumnce 2.5% 2.5%
Oher non=life insurance 5.5% 55%
Short-serm health insurance 2.5% 2.5%

Arval Risporl 2000 127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued)
Estimation uncertuinty fcominmed)
3 Valwasion of inswrance conirace lnbifities feantimped)

The Group considers risk margin for discoant mate, morality and morbidity and cxperse assumpdions
1o compensale for the uncertiin amound and ming of future cash (ow. The Group delermines the
risk margin level itsell using an approprinte estimation technique as the regulations have not imposed
any specilic requitement on il With the mmplementation of “China Hisk Onemed Solvency System™
(“C-ROSS") fssued by the China Insurance Regulatory Commission (“CIRC™) with effect in 2016,
most insurance companies i the PRC insurance market have applied the scenano comparison method
1o determine the risk margin foe bong-term like msurance contract liabilities mohe fnancial soements
and for solvency margin requirement under C-ROSS. In consideration of the fact that the scenario
comparison methad is widely used by many msumnce companies in the PRC insurance market in 2016
and apphing the widely ised method will improve comparability of its financial statements with thoge
of other insyrmnce comparties in the PRC, the Group has changedd the estimation technique to using the
scenari comparizon mathod from that of cost of capital method used previously to determing the risk
margin for lomg-tesm life insurance contract labilitles for the year ended 31 December 2016, This change
of the estimation technique during the year decreased the long-term life insurance contract labilites by
RMBZ.0TT million,

The mapos nssumptions needed in measunng clam reserves include the claim development factors and
expected elaim ratiog, which can be used 10 forecast trends of Natore claims so a5 to estimate the ultimate
claim expenses, The clam development factors amd the expecied loss ratios for various measurement
umits ane hased on past claims development expericnce and Ioss ratios, takdng into considemtion changes
in company policies such a5 the underwriting policy. premium rates and clamms handling processes. and
changing trends in extermal environmen such as economic conditions, regulations and legislstion,

Management is of the opinion that as at the end of the reporting period, claim reserve is sulficient 10 cover
all mcurred events to date but cannot guarantee thene is no undesprovision or overprovision of the resenve,
which iz an estimate of the uitimate losses,

The camying vahies of insurance contract liabilities ane disclosed in note 37,

(8 Fair valves of identifiehle aoen aoquired aud Gulilities asumed fo o business acquisition end the
resuliing gola on bargeln purchae

As disclosed i note 26, the Group acquired approximately 190004 of the toanl issaed shares of Hua
Xia Bank Co.. Limised (“Hua Xia Bank™) during the year, Due o the proximiny of the acquisition o the
Giroupy's year end, the Growp is still in the process of compieting the sceounting of this ransaction, which
is permiied by IFRS 3 Business Combinations. As such, the fair values of idemifiable asseis acquired
and linhilities assumed and the resulting gain on bargain purchase are provisional based on the latest
infirmation availeble to the Group, Shall new information sbout facts and cincumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date are present after the date of approving these consolidated financial suuements and
hawe an impact o the provisional amoants; the Ciroup will adjust these amounts refrospectively as if the
adjustmicnts are made at the acquisition date.

4 Fair value seasuresent of ffwancial auers baved on unvinervable inpus

For financial reponing purposes, fir value measurement of cerin availnble-for-sale financial assets ane
based on unobservable inputs that are significant to these measurements. Dictails of these imputs and the
corresponding valuation methods arc sct out in nole 43,

128 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued)

Estimation uncertuinty fcominmed)

5 Fair value of investment propertics
The fair value of mvestment propertics is based on regular appmisals by independent professional
valuers, Valuation of Evwvestment properties mvolves vanous asunptions and techmgues, The principal
assumnptions and valuation methodology of investiment properties ane set out in note 27,

&) Retirement besefin Ralilides
The Group measured cerinsn employee reiirerment benelits using prodecied unit credit method, when these
benefit plans met the definition of defingd benefit plans as set out in IAS 19, Carrying value of these
linhalities amd the principal assumptions used in mexsuring these liabilities are set out i note 39 10 these
consolidased financial satements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operaling segments ane presented in o manner consistent with the intermal Aanagement reparting
provided to the management for deciding how to allocate resources and for assessing performance.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units bised on iheir producs and services and
hias the Mollowing operming and reporiable sepments:

+  the non-life insurance sepmen offiers a wide vaniety of msurance prodiscis to both personal and corporate
customers including amomobile msurance, agricultural, propeny and lishilitics nsurance;

= the life insumince segment offers & wide range of participating, endowmens, annity and universal life
inserance products;

*  the health insyrance segment offers a wide range of health and medical Insurance products;
*  the assel management SEEMent COMprises 256l Management services;

+  the headquaners seament provides management and suppon: for the Group®s busingss through its strategy,
risk. management, treasury, finance, legal and human resousces functions;

+  the "others™ segment comprises ofher operating and insurance apent husinesses of the Group,

Management monitors the results of the Group's operting segments sepamiely for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance asscsament. Segmeni performance is evaluased based on
segmient profivy foss),

A the revenue, net profit, agsets and liabilities of operations outside Mainland China constittes less than 19 of
fhe consofidated amounts in these financia! statements, peographical segmental information 15 not poesented,

Intersegment sales are trnmsaciod scconding to tenms and conditions negoiialed by the relevant partics within the
Ciroup.

During the reponing period, no direct written premiums from tmnsactions with o single external customer
amoaunted to 10% or more of the Group's total direct written premiums.

Arval Risporl 2000 129
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Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION frontimicd)

Sepmiend nzsets and lobilities as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, and other segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015

Nk Life Heakh At Head
e s narmcee mmpTo  quan (nbers. - Elimmations Tl

31 Deormber 2014
Semstl ERS Wi 1A Lhil] 50 M BEDF (B35 B
Sepmen ishilees Bk AN UL ] 1360 In, 1w Lt [ENE T WL L
(e sepmmen miormion
Capital expendines 1501 L L L 5 1 - Sall
Deprecizhin #ad mmonisiiion 1 158 4 b o 13 L 1
ke moo 11378 | L% 1.4 4 I¥ 5 - bl
it knicy ug LY H i “ - - (I
3 Deormber 2015
Segmenl pacts 00 Wi Ei ] LT T 1 bk S 0 LT
Seement iabilrey am e 042 m e il Mn
(e seprnens mforremtion
Capioal expendmes 130 4 il in ¥ I ek |
Depeeciaton ssd amoniation L343 ] H ] b} ] L
Tk o 121448 141% i ] ® m f - N
impaimienl loss il I I & 124 - ) S

The headquarters, non-lifie and life segments hold equity interests of 0.91%, 6.45% and 6.70% (31 December
2015 0.91%, 6,45% and 6.70%4), respectively, in the Indugtrinl Bank Co,, Led (*Industrial Bank™), an associate
af the Group, These interests are accounted for ds available-for-sale finuncial sssets in the financial statements of
the Company and of other principal subsidianes, On consabidation, these interessts in aggnegate are accoumed for
5 an associgte and the impacts of relevant adjustments 1o the consolidated financial seatements are allocated 1o
the respeciive segments aceonding fo their respective equity imicress bolding.

132 The People's Insurance Coirpany [Group) of China Limited
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For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

13, MRECTORS', SUPERVISORS™ AND SEXIOR MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION fomnsinmucd)
e} Senior Management

The information sct out below docs not include remunerations of directors or supervisors, nor
rermunérations of Zhiang Chaoying and L1 Yuquan when they were in the offices as directors. The relevant
information of their rermunerations when they were directon i disclosed in note 12(b)

NG 2015

{im RMB "000) (i RME 000}

(Restated )

Snlaries and allowaneces 4,824 4517
Performance relabed bonuses 5136 5,889
Social insurance, housing fund and other benclits 1362 251
Retiring benefits 404 178
11,426 11,732

The mumber of senior management, excluding directors and supervisons, whose remuneration fell within
the following bands are as follows:

e 2015
(Hpsaiod).
RALERD by BEMES00, 000 F 1
RMBS00.001 10 RMBI000.000 r
RMIE31.000,001 to RMBI,500.000 -
RMBIS00,001 to RMB2,000.000 : -
RHERIOL I RMES SO0 = 4 3
n 9

1L FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals do not include directors and supervisors during the years 20016 and 2015,
Details of the five highcst paid individuals are st out below:

16 2015

(in RMBOO0)  {in RMB"000)

(Restated |

Salaries. allownnees 4,499 4.7

Performance related bonuses 5242 5422

Social imsprance, howsing fund and other benefits 1.326 B30

Retining benefits 136 221

Total 11,303 11k, THI
Arual Rapor 2000 141
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1% FIVE HIGHEST PALD INDMVIDUALS feamtinued)

The above five highest paid individuals whose remmneration fiell within the following binds are as follows:

6 2015
(Rested )
HEDT00.001 w0 HELN 500,000 - -
HED 500,001 o HEL2 000,000
HED2 000,001 o HED2, 500,004 | 1
HKD2 500001 0 HKD3. 000,000 4| ‘
5 5
14, INCOME TAX EXPENSE
016 2015
Curreit income tax
= Charge for the year 7,515 8771
= Adjustiments in respect of cument fnx of previous peniods. kL] 15
D fermed encome tax fmode 31) 12_.';[;&: [1311!!_}
Ttal 4,638 6,305

In accordance with the relevant PRC ncome tix nules and regulations, the Company and Companys subsidiaries
regestered in the PRC are subject o corporate income tax (“CITT) at the smewory mite of 25% (2015 25%)
o their respective taxable income, Income taxes on txable mcome elsewhere were calculated at the rmies
of mx prevailing in the countriesjunisdictions: in which the Group operates, based on exisung legistation,
mserpretations and practices in respect theneod,

The People’s Insurance Conpany of Ching (Hong Kong) Limited (*PICC Hong Kong™), a subsidinry
meorporsted in Hong Kong, was subject (o profits tx rate of 16.5% in 2016 (2015 16.5%).

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profis before tax wsing the CIT rie of 28% o the lax expense at
the Ciroup's effective tax rate is & follows:

1018 2013
Profit before tax B39 33,970
Tax a1 the statutory tax mte 6,330 Bau2
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods ki 15
Tax effect of share of profits and loses of associnies (2.597) {1.623)
Income: mit subject 1ot {1,102} {1019}
Expenses not deductible for tax 941 208
Linrecognised deductible temporry differences and tax losses 14530 233
Effects of different tax mbes apphied to subsidiorics _[.!I {1
Tax chasge for the year 4,638 6,305
Effective tix rale 18.3% 18.6%

142 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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EQUITY SECURITIES, MUTUAL FUNDS AND TRUST SCHEMES

oOoOooodn

3 December 31 December
s 2015
Investments, at fir value

Mumual funds 04,028 T.T58
Shuares 19271 22,867
Preference shangss 9,567 @041
Equity schermes 10311 4,748
Suboeal 143,177 114411

Investmients, at cost [&ss impairment
Shares 107 503
Total equity securities and mutual Furids 143,284 114,914
Trust schemcs, at fair value 7.266 10,361

Eqisty schemes e stisclared entities which are cremed For imvesting i one of mone equity investments. The
underlyig equity investments of these equity schemes pre usially detenmined ot inception of these schemes ind
amy changes 10, of additional investments in, the underlying equity imeestments of any panticular scheme requires
support from two-thirds of the beneficlary interests in that scheme. Some of these schemes are lanched and
managed by the Group,

The Group did not guarantee or provide any fimancial suppont for these Equaty Schemes, and considers that the
carrying amount of these Equity Schemes represents the Group's masinnim sk exposine.

As al 31 December 2006, the Group is the sole funding provider of a trust investasent of carmying vilee of
RMEBT,266 million (31 December 2015: RME10.361 millicn). The Group concldes it docs not control this trust
a8 devesiment decisions are made by o trust manager, which can oaly be removed in limiied situsiions.

The trust invests in predominantly debt instnaments and it offers the Group an expected retum of not more than
6.3% (3] Drecember 2015: T.5%), Itz actml returms and eventual repaymem of intial mvestments, however,
depend on the performance underlying investments, which are predominamly. debts v nature, The life of
thiis trust arrangement is 5 years bot can be extended for another 2 vears upon mual consent. The Group's
maximum boss is limited w fis investments and has no contractaal obligstions of intemiion 1o provide amy
financial suppont to the st

31 December 31 December
R 15

Classification of ¢quity securities gnd mutual funds
Held for trading, at fir value 062 28,734
Avnilable-for-sale, at fair valse 112,115 B5.677
Avnilable-for-sale, at cost less imparment 107 03
Total equity securitics and mutuzl fimnds 143,254 114,914

Classification of trust schemes

Avpilable-for-sale, ot fair valse 7,266 10,361
Total equety securities, mutunl funds and trost schemes 150,550 125,275

Arval Faspor] 2000
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13, TERM DEPOSITS

The aniginal maturitics of the term deposits are as follows.
31 December 31 December

016 2015
More than 3 months to | year 342 1,375
I tor 2 years 108 ]
2o 1 years 217 1,385
Mor han 3 years u 1S3
Total 01,534 148,097

These term depostts of the CGroup bear fixed or varioble imercsts and ranpe from 0, 1026-7.50% and 3.1 6%-6.60%
per annum as a8 31 Becember 2016, respectively (31 December 2005 range from (U75%-7 50% and 3 3075
4.95% per annum),

M, INVESTMENTS CLASSIFIED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 Devember

B 215
Long-term debt Invesiment schemes 108,014 0 h55
Wealth management products 42002 1073
Astet management products 15062 1057
Relnsirance armangement classiied as nvestment comract 2000 2,000
Subordinated debis held 700 Td
Total 168,778 110,485

Long-term debt investment schemes (Dbt Schemes™) are structured emities and offer gither fixed or vanable
iMerests o their investors, the Group has invested in a number of Debt Schemes over time, These Debt Schenics
were created fo rakse funds from investors for lending onto varicas borrowers. The Group's nvestments in
Dbt Schemes are entirely lending trunsactions in manure and the Group®s proportion of funds lent 1o these Debe
Schemes ranges from 2% o KRG of the tonal funds raised. The interest rates of these Debt Schemes are 392%.-
£.00% (31 December 2015 4 22%-8 20%4) per anmum as af 31 December 2016,

All loans originsed by the Debt Schemes with the funds received from their mwvestors are gunranteed by third
partics and these gusranices ae always joint, imrevocable amd unconditional, Guarntors of Debt Schemes are
hanks of high credit rafing or state-owned enterprises. The Group docs not control any of these Debt Schemes.
The Group's voling rights as kenders 1o these Debt Schemes are prosective of the Groap's imterests in the Dehbe
Schemes and mainly comprise of early termination or extension of the Debt Schemes” term amd, when cenain
conditions exist, change of the Diebt Schemes” managers. Support from two-thirds of the beneficiary infenests ane
required b pass resolutions 1o make these changes.

As ot 31 December 2016, except for a Debt Scheme under which the Group commits o debt imvestment of
RMB193 million {31 December 2015: RMBI, 660 million), the Group did not gusrantes or provide any financing
support for these Debt Schemes, and considers that the carrying amount of the loans 1o these Debt Schemes
represenis the Group’s maxinmam risk exposure,

Wealth management products are financial products offered by banks which offer fixed or determinable
payments and ane mot quoded in sctive market. The onginal terms of these products held ot year end date

are within 1 year and the inferest mes are 3,50% to 4.90% (31 December 2005; 4. 204) per anmem as at 31
December 2016

Arval Risporl 2000 14T
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INVESTMENTS CLASSIFIED AS LOANS AND RECEIVABLES frawtinued)

Assel manapement products are vanous financial prodocts which offer fixed or determinable payments and are
nol quoted in sctive macket, These fmancial products mclude securitiesd assets; assel management products
offered by secuntics companees. The imderest mies of these products ane 330066006 (31 December J015:
4.200%%-7.50%) per annum as a1 3 | December 2016,

Inchmbad in the balance of reinsurance mieit classificd as an investment contrct was an amount paid
undier 4 reifsurine: 1 which did not transfer significant insurance risk. This amangensen offered a
fixed mnserest mte of 6,35% (31 December 2015: 6.35%) per annum. Both the Group and the reinsurer have a
right to terminate the armangement at the end of or subsequent 1o the fifth anniversary of the effective date of the
FEIRSUTANCE COnTact,

The original terms of subordinuned debts are 10 vears with o redemption rght exercisable by the Bsuer 18 at the
end of fiflh year after iis issue. The [ntercst ries of these debits are 5.50%6-5.60%% (31 December 2005: 5.530%-

5.60°%) per annum as s 31 December 2006,
15 SUBSIDIARIES

(@) General informathon of subshdiaric

The particulors of the principal subsidiarics as of 31 December 2006 and 2015 are se1 out bebow:

Pewpirtas of hasihelien”
Placeal Sumnal vala imterrd and yeting rights
moupnios  Wegend 3 Dember 0l ] Doy M6 Principal s
- B eV Dokt N P R Pl st S
T Prigerty and (ascaly Compy By L aw, - oo BE ey (hint
Limitad WCCRECTIOC ML) LR
1T At Mgt Sanghn R e T R s P R
Commpany Lomited "HCC AMIT) 000 imamen (g
T Copaal st Meemen Berg {1 T ] - oo e, (hin
L Healh by Repx E AT WD RN DS ek e (i
Company Lanod {PCC Held') LU
TACC Life T oy B 1B TN LN TIEN 9N Lk O
Liested (P Lie") HTH M
T imvestmend Hekling By B e WHP - vtk Chm
Limits] [ THCC brvostnent o0 0w
TACT Hing Koy Hong Koy WA EAE - R - T i Hong ey
Phonskee; Irtevupmal b By £ S L - M - sesesiveo
Bk Commguy Limned IR brskzzge.
T Servces e L Linds r: S T TOEEP, (i by gy, L
maw
Ko B3 Dievelepmens ooy B L T 11 ~ ot s and propey
ST T, O
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15, SUBSIMARIES femmtimgned)
(@) General information of sabsidinries fomntimed)

Propertins of antbalen”
Plax ol Somind ala iwermd asd volg right
oot ofophierd T Deember b ] Deeber M3 Princpal ativities
e reguinilion thare cipsial Prrd (St Dot fmdred  pliceof operyien
IO Nt Mg o K T e M I LT - Mausagoucnl o mpetmnce
(e 2104 ot ey Koy
T Fiemcial Service Compaoy Limibed T N i et finince, (i
T | e

Omly principal subsidiaries which are directly held by the Company and have meaterial impact on the
comolidated financiol statements are listed above, Oiher subsidianes did ot mateninlly affect the Group’s
net financial position end opersting resulis and were therefone not separabely disclosed.

As at 31 December 2006, the Company had direct and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which
are private limited Hability companies or, il incorporated outside Hong Koag, have substantially similar
charpcteristics toa private company incomporated n Hong Kong, except fir PICC P&C, which is listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Siock Exchange. As-at 31 December 2016, market valse of shares of
PICC P&C is RMBI10,53 1 millivn: (31 Degember 2005 RMBIAZ, 144 million),

Borrowings and subordinated debis and capital supplementary bonds issued by these subsidiarics are sct
ol in pedes 35 and 36 8o these consolidased financial staiements.

The Company and the following subsidianes had issued subordinated debts and capitnl supplementary

honds at the end of the year:
3 December 2016 31 December 2015
Held by third parties Held by third partics

Nominal Carrying Momins Carrying
Amouni Amouni Amount Amoun
The Company 16,000 15,5984 16,00 15973
PICC P&C 23,000 13,112 16, 0 16,297
PICC Life 6,000 6162 1,0 105
PICC Health B B2 L] 835
45 800 ELNILS I8 800 19210

At the end of the reportmg periosd, the Company lux other indirectly held subsidiaries that are ot muterial
1o i Groaip, The prineipal sceivities of these subsidianes are summarized as follows:

Number of whsidiaries
Principal activity Place of incorporaiion 31 December 31 December
subsidiaries nnd iperutinn .'l_rr_lﬁ Zil}_s_
Insurance imcmsediarics Beijing. Shanghai, ] 5
Shenzhen amd others
Insurance triming services Haman 1 1
Property development and
management Beijing, Shanghad and others ] ]
Hoicls, restnurants and others.  Beljing, Zhejiang and others 3 3
17 17
Arval Risporl 2000 1458
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15, SUBSIMARIES femmtimped)
{b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling inferests fooninmed)

FICC P& fommtinued)

Hil6 2015
Total incodne 288,356 276,765
Total benefits, ciaims and expenses (268 5500 (249,039)
Share of profits and losses of associates 2945 473
Income tax expense {44309 (6,356)
Profil for the year 18,021 21,847
(nher comprehensive (expenselincome for the year {3.152) 5,333
Total compachensive income for the year 14.868 27,180
Dividends pakd o non-controlling imenests 1,398 1.242
Met cash mdlow from operating activities 12077 27232
Mt cash omt flow froem investing acrivities (18, 206) (20,507)
Net cash owtflow Trom fimancing activitics (1,555) (2,054)
et cash mflowioutflow) 1316 {1,329)
PICC Life
31 December 31 Devember
e 2015
Total assets 175499 357,560
Total liabilitbes M2.629 A2 467
Total shareholders' equity 3LETD 15,003
Arvniial Raspor] 2000 151
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15, SUBSIMARIES feomtimmed)

{b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling inferests fooninmed)

FICC Life feontimued)

Hil6 2015
Total incodmne 121,736 111,310
Total henefits, ciakina and expenses (124,637) (110,551}
Share of profit of an pssociae 3348 2,701
Iincome 1ax expense 5 %
Profi I’-r.'t du year 452 3.5_5!5
(nher comprehensive (expense)income for te year IIJIIT! 1,732
Total comprehensive (expense)income for the year (1375) 5,288
Dividends pakd o non-controlling imenests 172 6
Mt cash outflow from operating activities (4972 (4,363)
Net cash {ouiflow Vinflow from investing activities {7.731) 563
Net cash mflow {outflow) fram financing sctivitics 5092 (18,427
et cash (outflow Kinflow 6,711 7,713

{ch  Changes in owmership interests in subsidiaries

During the yeur, PICC P&C subscribed for 2,119 piillion new shares issued by PIOC Health at a
consideration of RMBZ 500 millicn. As the Company and cther sharcholders of PICC Health did ot
subscribe For any new shares, the Group's agpregate ovwnership imlerests i PICC Health increased
from 93.95% 10 95.45% after the completion of this tmnsaction, An amomnt of RMB63 million, which
represents the difference berween the conssderation paid by the group and additional interests i equily
companents of FICC Health acquired. was debiled fo other reserves as a consequence of the iransaction.

(i) Significant restrictions

As certain subsidinries of the Company ane enpaped in insurance bisisess and regulazed by the relevany
insurance repelatory authorities, the ability of the Company ond s subsidisries 10 nocess assets held by
these subsidiarics 1o settle liahdlities of the Growp is restricied. The carrying. amounts of asscts held by
these insurance entitics are disclosed in node 4 1o these Naancial stabements as sepment aescts of noa-lifk
insurance, Hle insurance and heahh insurance sectors,

152 The People's Insurance Coirpany [Group) of China Limited
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16, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

{a) The Group's mvestments m the associates and joint venbures as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as

follows:
3l December 31 December
NG 215
Assoriales
Cost of investment in associanes 63,961 37402
Share of post-acquisition prodits and
ather comprehensive income 18,983 - l?r,nlrr_
Sulstatal £2.944 30418
Jisind vientures
Cost of investment in joint ventures 2LH90 2800
Takal B5.H34 53,308

b} Pamiculars of the principal nasocimes ae as follows:

Percentage of ewnership lnderesi
and voting rights held by the Groop

Maceof  Principal activitin 3 December 1016 31 December 2015
(SR S Tigrten I Euir o Wpveton” S Dyl alfeocy S P St
[husieriad itk * Fujian Hankisg, Chima 091% 1L15% 9% 11
Chirm Crodit Trust Cospany
Limted {""Chena Credit
Trust"F Beiing Trest business, China s - 200 -
Hua X Bark Beging  Bankisg, (him - e, - =

The Group accoumts for 15 imencsts in Industrial Bank as associice s it has representative in boards of
directors in this entity.

(1) Industrinl Bank

On 31 December 2012, the Company, PICC PEC and PICC Life in aggregate subscribed
approximately 138 billion shares of Indusmial Bank through o private placement. After the
completion of the subscription, the Company, PICC PEC and PICC Life each holds 0,01%, 4984
and 4.98% voting rights in Industrial Bank and the Group as o whole became the second largest
sharchobler of Industrial Bank

On 19 Apnl 2013, Mr, Li Liongwen, the cx-President of PICC Life, was nomiraicd by the Group
1o be the director nominee of Industrial Bank and attended the Industrial Bank board mecting
a5 ihe representative of sharcholder. Considering the sharcholders® rights in Indusinial Bank and
coEmprehensive cooperation agreemsent signed on 8 May 20013 between the Group and the Indusirind
Bank, the Group holds the view that it kas the ability 10 have significant influence owver Industrial
Bank since & May 2003 and therefore accounts for s equity imienest in Industrial Bank a5 an
associale wsing cquity method in its consolidwed lnancial stements.

Arval Risporl 2000 153

282/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

16, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES fcontimaed)
{b}  Poniculars of the principal nssociates are as follows: icomtmued)
(1) Indastnal Bank foomined

On 9 July 2005, PICC PEC amd PICC Like, the {‘umpmy s subsidiaries, acquirad 280 million
ang 328 million skares, respectively, of Industrial Bark in the open market af considerntions of
REMBA.641 million and RMEBS 454 million respectively. Therefore, the Group’s aggregate mterest in
this nssociote was increased from 1087 o 14.06%, Goodwill of RMBARS million arose from this
acquisition,

Om 27 April 2006, Mr Li Liangwen, the ex-President of PICC Life, resigned from the board of
directors of Indusinnl Bank, On 28 April 2016, the board of directors of Indusanal Bank nomtinabed
Mr Fu An Ping. the President of PICC Life, as'ihe new board mesnber, this nomination wis approved
subsexuently ot the annual general meeting of siockbolders on 24 May 2016,

{2y Ching Credit Trust

Duirsng the year, PICC Life agreed 1o purchase an équity imterest of 10,1764% o Chima Credit Trost,
an associnte of the Ciroup, The transaction was still sishject 1o regulacory approval as m 31 Decernber
2006 and, therefore, the consideration of RMB 1899 million paid in advance was recorded as “Other
msset”,

(3 Hua Xin Bank

On 28 December 2015, PICC PEC entered into a share transfer agreement with Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschafi ("Dewtsche Rank ™), Sal. Oppenheim jr. & Cie AG & Co, Kommanditgeselischaf
auf Aktien (“Sal. Oppenheim™) and Dewtsche Bank Luxembourg 5.A. (“Deutiche Bank
Luxembourg™), parsuant 10 which cach of Deusche Bank, Sal, Oppenheim and Deusche Bank
Luxembourg conditionally agreed 1o iransfer to the major subsidiary of the Company 877 million
shares, 267 million shares and 992 million shares of Hua Xia Bank, respectively, held by them
(amounting 0 o tetal of 2,136,045 885 shares. represemting approximately 199925 of the 1otal
issued shares of Hua Xin Bank) and PICC PEC conditionally agreed 10 parchse these shares, This
rnsaction wis completed on 17 November 2016,

The Group holds the view that it has the abiliry 1o have significam influence over Hus Xin Bank
since 17 Movember 2006 and therefore accounts for s imenests in Hus Xia Bank as an associse.
An excess of RMB2,636 millicn, which represents the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
idemifiable asscts and linbilitics of Hua Xia Bank over the cost of the investment, is inchided as
income in the Group's share of the profit or 1oss for the curment year,

Hua Xia Hank is a listed comspany i the PRC and its annual results are only publicly available afier
ik resubts announcement of the Group, Moreover, the Groap is of the opinion that s share of the
profit and other comprehensive incone of Hua Xia Bank for the period from 17 November 2016
31 December 2016 is not material to the operating restlts for the cument year and financial position
& at 31 December 2016, Therefore, the Group has not appliad equity sccounting for its share of
profit or comprehensive income since Hua Xin Bank became its associnte.

The t.]mup"s interests in Hima Xia are beld for sirategic purposes,

The abowve table lists the sssocintes of the Group which pincipally affected the results of the year or
fiorm  substantial portion of the net assets of the Group, To give deisils of other pssociales would, in
ihe opinion of the Direceors, resuli in panicalars of excessive length. As at 31 December 2016, apan

from the three associales disclosed nlmr.ﬁ:ﬂm;phasiwgm 11 {31 December 2015: 11}
immaterial associates and joint ventures and their aggregate information was presented in note 26{ch.

154 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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Particulars of the principal nssociates ane as follows: icomtmued)

{3 Hua X Bank foowtimmed)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES feontimed)

Sumimarised consolidated financial information in respect of cach of the Group’s material associaies
15 set out below, The summansed consolidated financial information below represents amounts
in accordance with the relevans
accomting policies and Naancal regulations applcadle 1o ¢atities established in the PRC, and
adiusted for any material differences from IFRS,

Industrin]l Bank, Hua Xia Bank and China Credit Trast are financial mstitutions. Therefore,
their abilities 10 distribuite dividends are subject to fulfiliment of the relevant regulatory capital

shown in the associate”s consolidated financial statements

iuremenls.
Indusirial Bank
0 September 30 September
16 2015
Tatal issets 5,816,904 F.250,398
Tiotal liabilities 5408,893 4,953,359
Adtribueihle i
Equity holders of Industrial Bank 143,981 302424
Non-comrolling intergsts 4,030 3415
Tuokal gouity B0 303,839
Feriod from Period from
1 Oetober 2005 10 1 October 2014 10
30 Seprember 30 Scplember
6 2015
Revenue 16,652 140,402
Profit anribuaide 1o
Equiry holders of Indusirial Bank 52,968 S0,053
Non-controlling inberists 421 _ 4I9_
Profit for the period 53,359 474
Crther comprehensive income atributable 10
Equity holders of Inclasirial Hank 1,358 3,385
Non-comruiling inerests @ (12)
(ther comprehensive incame for the period 1355 3373
Total compechensive moome stirdbutable to
Equity holders of Industrial Bank 54326 53440
HHon-CoToR g NCYES bl el
Total comprchensive income for the period 5,744 53,547
Divadensds recetved from the associate during the period 1634 1,180

284/358
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCTIATES ANDJOINT VENTURES feontimed)

(o) Aggrepaie infornmation of associztes and joint ventures that are not mdvidually material:

B 2015

The Group's share of profit 276 158

The Group's share of other comprehensive {expense Vincome (195 150

The Group’s share of ot comprehensive income 81 ks
Appregnte camying amound of the Group's intenests

in these associates and joint ventures 7094 6,812

0 31 December 2006, excet for Industrial Bank and Hua Xia Bank which were listed on the Main Board
of The Shanghai Stock Exchunge, Mamdand Chara, all oflser associates that the Group holds imerests in ane

unlisted compandcs.
INVESTMENT PROFPERTIES

A1 Decembior 11 December

e 2013

Begmning of year 10,358 10,682
Additions 7 I&
Tranafers from property amd equipment daoke 28) 188 170
Transier from prepaid land presyium jmose 30 » 7
Giaing on revahumtion of properties upon transfer

fromm property: and egaipment 138 414
Gains o revabistion of properties upon transfer

fromm prepadd lind premiums 94 14
Increasei Decrease) in fir valee of investment propenics

fieriye e p) hr (510}
Transfer & property and equipment (rate 28) (451) (424)
Disposals i12) {10}y
End oof year 10,695 10,358

The Group was still in the process of applying for title cenificates. for investment properties with o camying
value of RMB2, 781 million as at 31 December 2006 (31 December 2005: RMB3, 122 million).

The Croup’s imvestment properties wiene revalued at the end of the neporting perind by independent professional
valuers, The imvestment propertics held by PICC P&C and MOC Life were fevaloed by DTE Debenliim

Tie Leung Limited. The imvestment propertics held by PICC Imvestment Holding was revalued by Bedjing
Guorongringhua Assets Appraisal Company Limited, Valantions were based on combination of the following
i approaches:

{1} the dhrect comparson approach sssummg sale of each of these properties in 1s existing state by making
refiEnence io comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market; or

{2) capitalisation of nel rental incame derived from the existing tenanciés with allowance for the reversianary
income potential of the properties, using discount rfes that reflect curment market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cosh flows.

Arval Faspor] 2000
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17, INVESTMENT PROFPERTIES fenmtinmed)

The mdependent valuers usually determing the fair value of the investment propertics as a weighted average of
vilhations produced by these two spproaches sccording to their professional judgemend. Therefore, these fair
values are categonsed as Level 3.

There has been ni chinge (n the valuatbon technigue used from the prioe year. noestlmating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the propesties. are their current use.

One of the key inputs used In valuing these investment properties was the capitalisation rate used, which
ranges froam 4.07% so 8,0% as &t 31 Decemnber 2016 (31 December 20035: 4,086 10 8.0%), A shight incregse in the
capatalisation mte peed would result in & significant decresse in fur value memsurement of mvestment properties,
and vioe versi

15, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

(Wifce
exquipmeni,
furniture Muotor  Construetson
Budldings  and fviures vehichs  [n progress Toul
COST
As 2t | Janmary J18 1517 7305 1783 1in 36,833
Akt ] 67 i 1,103 3,787
Transfer of conssruction i progres 9493 4 = {7 .
Transfer from investment progerty jimaie 27) 45 = - B 41
Transfer o imvestment propery faote 27/ (231} - o (49) {280
Disposals 7 {336 {190) i) 1541
As ot 3] December 2016 B 1430 1083 1481 10,260
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Asat | Janeary 2016 fi, 56 5,708 1177 - 12041
Depercution fnofe 11} B0 a1 m = 1,968
Transfer to Emvestment properties froee 27) 92) - - - 192
Drsposals (24) (324 {1 - {518
As g2 3 Decersber 2016 fi, 7600 8,294 1248 - 14,300
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Asar ] lanary 2006 and 31 Decomber 2016 30 /| - 15 M7
NET CARRYING VALUES
A 21 3] Degember M1k 19376 1,534 ™m Ldbh 113
Aset | Janmary 216 18387 1,685 hilly 417 1094

160 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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3. OTHER ASSETS feentinmued)

(b

fc)

(d)

Policy loans ane secured by cosh values of the nelevam insurance policies and carry interest mte at 5.22%-
6,359 131 December 20152 5,206, 4550) per annum as at 31 Decensber 20146

The hatance inclsded an pmount of RMB34 million as ar 31 December 2016 (31 December 201 5:
RMB344 million). which is recoverable from the 8MOF & a result of the Group's sssumption of a post-
empboyment benefit obligation as funber desonbed in note 420d8 3],

The movements of provision for mmpairment of other assees ane as follow:

A December 31 December

e W15
At | January L636 1,269
Impairment losses recognised daare 1) 18 383
Amouit writien off as uncallectible {n 16)
AL 3] December 1637 1636

13 PLEDGED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

{m}

{b)

Irepaosits with restricted rights or ownership

As it 1] December 2006, term deposits amounting to RMB1 347 million (31 December 2015: RMB1 442
millicn) was subject to varous restrictions, m particalar for the Group's imvolvement m agricultuml
insurance amd satellise lounch risk msurance against non-commercial use saicllites.

Securities pledged for repurchase transactions

As described in note 34 to these financinl statements, the Group entered into o number of arrangements
fon sell certain bond securtties with commitments to reparchising in the fidure. These bond securtics are
comtinued oo be recognised in these consalidated financial statements and classified as held-for-trding,
avatlable-for-sile, o1 leld-to-matumy. securities, but they are i effect pledeed as colluterals for hese
transactions.

31 Decembar 31 December

e 2015

Carrying amaount of transfermed assets 47430 43,635
Carrying amount of associated labilities

_—Securkics sokf under Rrceaota to eplchae Boee T DL

Mt 14,364 15 0

Arval Faspor] 2000
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

I8, INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES FOR POLICYHOLDERS feousinued)
The movements in investment contract Habilitees for policyholders are as follows:

31 December 31 December

016 2015
Beginning of year 17,601 25,520
Deposits received aller deducting fees 16,542 .05
Deposits withdrawn {7.385) (8,265)
Interest credated fone 9 1572 L)
End of year 38370 27,601

The ongimal matanities of these investment contracts ore from repayvable o demand o more than five years.
These lubalities bear no ivterests or varsble micnest rates, which are declared by the Group regularly. The mnge
of variahle intenest mics is from 0. 36%-6.00% per annom as at 31 December 2006 (31 December 2005; 2.50%6-
6,005,

35, PENSION DENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Group is commutied to certam pension and medical benefits of employees who retired on or prior o 31 July
3. The amounis of these pension and medical benefits are paid monthly sccordmg a policy agreed with thise
employecs and numbser of years of services of these employees with the Group, The Group olso offered on cady
retirement program b0 certain emplovees for its proup reorganisation in 2003, For employees who joined this
program, they are entithed various periodic benefits up to their nomal retirement ages, Th beneficiarics of these
pension benefits ane not in active employment with the Group and these benefits are folly vested. There is no
plai asset for ihese perision bemefiis.

(@) The movements in the present value of early netirement and retirement benefits are shown below;
31 December 31 December

16 2015
Beghiing of vear 2990 1862
Interest ot on benefit obligation (mne 95 84 {1}
Axhuanal { prinsiloses ansing from chagess in
financial assimptions 6} 216
Acctuarind losees arsing from experience adjustments 15 46
Benefits paid ] (245}
Enil of year 2500 2,99

The plans typically expose the Group 1o interest rae nisk and longevity risk.

. Interest mte risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will inencase the plan tabilisy.

*  Longevity rskc the present yalue of the defined benelit plan liability is caleulnted by reference 1o
the best estimate of the manality of plan panticipants both dunng and afier their erployment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's lability.

In aggrepate, sctuarial guins of RMB41 million (2015: acouarial losses of RMB272 million) were credited
I piher comprohensive income for the cument year of 2016

Emst & Young (China) Advisory Limited wis engaged by the Growp to mesure the retirement benefit
plans ot the end of each anmual reporting period.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

35, PENSION BENEFIT OBLIGATION feamtinmed)

{b)  The discount rates and the principal actwanial assumptions for the above obligations are as follows:
31 December 31 December

016 2015
[iscound rabes:

Early refirement bensfits 185% 2 600
- Retirement bere fils 3.05% 2E5%
- Supphementary medical benefizs 315% J00%

Average annual benefin prowth rases:
- Eagly retirement benefits 1.50% 2.50%
~ Medical capensss B0 B00%

Discount ranes are set b be the government bond yields with similar maturitics and vary for diffenent types
of benefits. As af 31 December 216, the durations of carly retirement benefits, refirement benefits and
supplementary medical benefits are 3.8, 8.3 and 12,1 a8 at 31 December 2006 (31 December 2005 3.7, .6
and 12.8),

The maturity of these benefits, in termis of undiscounted cash Mows. & presemted in note 4402,

Iy order 1o reimburse the Company for this pension benefit ﬂblipﬂ'nﬂ, o receivable of RMBZ 247 million
was recognised on the restructuring and reorganisation of the Company, as described in note 42(d)3).

(e} Semsifivity analysis
Sipnificant achmrial assumptions for the determination of the defined ohhgation are discommt mte and

benefit growth rate. The sensitivity analyses below have boen determingd based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions eccuming af the end of the reporting period, while holding all other

ASSUMPRIONS consiang,
Effect on the pension
Change in assumptions benelit obligation

NG 2015
Discound rale +5iip {133) {130}
Discount rabe =Sllbp 145 It
Average snnual benefit prowth e +5ibp 142 I61
Average annual benefit growth rate -5l (133} (149

40, OTHER LIABILITIES
Al December 31 December

016 2015
Prremiums received in advance 11,513 I, 054
Dhise 1o reinsurers 19.302 11,1689
Salaries and wellane payable 14,210 12,038
Claims payable 12,400 #.451
Handling charges and commission payabée 737 5,243
Busingss i, net value sibded 1 and other tax ayishbe 5019 5,041
Insurance security fund Has 803
Interests poyable 632 718
Others 953 1N
Total 91,750 bty 539
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

40, OTHER LIABILITIES feontinyed)
Premiums reccived in advance represent amounts collected from policses not vet effective as atthe 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015, and will be recoginbied as premium meone with comesponding uneimed premim
reserves when the relevant policies become effective.

41 SHAHE CAPITAL

I December 31 December

oL
Issued and fully pasd ordinary shares of
RMBE 1 each (in million shares)
Chmmsestic shares. 33698 33,698
H shares 8726 8,726
42424 42424
Share capital (in RMB milkion)
Dximestic shares 33,698 313698
H sharcs §726 A6
42,424 42424

41. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movernenis thereln Tor the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated stabement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial stasements.

(m) General risk reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations, the general risk rescrve should be set aside o cover
ciatastrophic or other losscs as mourmed by companics operating in the msurance businesscs. The Group’s
respective entities would Beed to make oppropriations to such reserves bised on theif respective year-
end profit or risk assets i determined based on applicable financial regulations in the PRC in their annual
financial statements, This neserve i m available for prodit distrsbation or transler o capital,

()  Agricubure catastrophic lss reserve

According 1o the relevant regilations of the FRC, which became eifective on 1 January 2014, the Group is
requingd 1o make appropeiations 1o a reserve when the apriculure insurance records underwriting profis.
This reserve cannot be used For dividend distribution, but can be wilised when there are catastrophic
losses. The reserve can be transferred o gencral sk reserve iF the Growp ccases writing agriculture
msTance basiness.

e} Sworplus reserve fund

In accordance with the Company Law and the Articles of Associntion, the Company is required to make
appropriations to the statulory surpliss reserve based on thedr respect year-end profit {after offsetting any
prior vears' hosses) as defenmingd hased on applicable financial regulations in the PRC i their annual
stansiory financial sunemems. When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 30756 of the capiml, any
further appropréation s optional. The Company may also make appropriations 1o the discretionary
surplus. reserve provided that e appropriation is approved by a resolution of the sharcholders. Subject 10
reselutions passed in geneml meetings, the statutory and discretionary surpliss reserves can be transfemed
1o the share capital. The balance of the sttutory surplus reserve fund afler transfers to the share capital
should not be less than 25% of the share capital.

172 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

41, RESERVES feontinneid

{d}  Principal items of other reserves were summarised as follows;

Compensation

Transacliani for post-

with non- Tranider  employment

comlrolling o ahare henefit
intereésis capitsl obligation Toeal

il A O omiy
Asa | January 2006 ¥ (17.942) 30 (15,010
Chanpes {143) - - (143
As al 31 Degember 2006 58] (17,942 187 (15,153

Compensation

Trassactions fior post-

withi nor- cmployment

comirodling Tramsfer & benefit
merests  shure caprial ubligation Tutal

i i35 (3o 39
Asat | January 2015 30 (17542 127 {15,065
Changes 55 - - 55
Azt 3] December 2015 85 (17.542) &0 {15,000

(1) The amount represents certain transactions with non-controlling interesis, including direce
acquisition of ownership infenssts in subsidiary. from non-controlling interests, or deemed
acqusitions or disposals of cwnership nteresas in subsidianes without bess of control, The principal
TeasOn For mEwerieE wis st out in e 25(c] o these consolidated financial sttements,

{2y As at 30 June 2009, the Company obiained approval from MOF on conversion into a joint siock
company, During the process, cenuin assets were revalued and the comesponding revaluation surplus
was irnsfimed to the share capital, On consolidation, these revaluations were reversed, and created a
megative halance.

(3 In 2009, the Compamy recopnised an amoant of RMB2,847 million recoverable from the MOF as
compensation for the Conpany’s assumgion of post-employment benefit obligation. The mmount
was recognised os o special capitad contribution from the MOF and was credited to other reserves.

4%,  RISK MANAGEMENT FREAMEWDORK
{a) CGovernance lramevwork

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial managemend framework is 10 profect the Group’s

shareholders from events that hinder the sustunable achievement of financial performance objectives,

including failing 1o exploit opporunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of having
efficicnt and effective nsk management systems in place.
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43, RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK foomninued)

{b) Capital meragement approsch
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The Group secks to optimise the sincture and sources of capital fo ensure that it consistently maximises

et 10 ihe shareholders.

The Group's approach to managing capital mvolves managing assets, abilites and risks in o coondinbed
way, msessinp shortfalls beoween reporied and required capital levels (by each regulaed entity) on a
regular basts and taking appropriake sctions 10 adjust the capital positien of the Groap in light of changes

in econonvic conditions amd mk charactenstics,

The primary source of capital used by the Group s equity shareholders” funds and borrowings. The Group
alio makes reinsurance afrangemenls 10 mManage it regulory capital requinements,

The Group has bad no smificant chanpes in its policies and processss in respect of it capital structure

during the current year.

The comprehensive and core solvency margin ratios of the Group's pancipal subsidianies are lissed below:

3 December X6
(i EMB milliom) PICC PEC PICC Life PICC Health
Ayl capizal 140,793 46,380 6,695
Core capitnl 113864 19,257 6,200
Minimum capiial 49,071 26,263 A7
Comprehensive solvency margin ratio (%5} 247% 177% 215%
Care solvency margin ratio (%5) 132% 149% 200%

31 Decemnber 2013
{in RMEB million) PICC P&C PICC Life PICC Heakth
Regulmory capital ehd 85,356 36,599 ER L
Mirsimmm repulatory capital 37831 12082 1,826
Solvency margin ratio 226% 303 175%
Insurance compankes camying oul busingss m China are required 1o comply with capial requirernents

imposed by CIRC. These capital requirements are genemlly known as sohvency requirements in the
insance industry, Prior 1o 2016, the minimam regulatory capital requerement is calcubated by refenence
i premims wriiten or cliims padd, while the regulatory capital held is an adjusted pet asset. Solvency
mangin ratio is the result of regulatory capital held divided by minimum regulitory capital. An insimnoe
company was non-complian with the solvency requiremsent if it ratio was bess 100%: if It was between
1005 and 1504, CIRC could order the Insurance companies b question o submit and mplement

appropriate plars o prevent any further deterioration of the rmtio

For the cument year, C-ROSS nequires insurince companies to comply with both the core capital and
actual capatal {sum of cone and supplementary capitalk. Under C-ROSS, the minimum capital is calculored
by formula prescribed by the CIRC. The minimum capital requirements 15 a result of quantifications of
underwriting risks, markes risks, credit risks and resubts of an imemal control assessment, For subsidiaries
of the Group, core capital are prncipally ser assets with adjustments w life imsurance labilities
under solvency calculations, while supplementary capital are mainly subordinated debis and capieal

supplementary bonds issucd by these subsidianics,

CIRC can take a number of regulatory measures against any isumnce company non-compliant with
the solvency requirements. These regulatory mexures: inchude restriction on business scope, dividend
distributions, Investment stmtegy; order to transfer business or place reinsumance; remonvil of senior

exccutives of the insurmoe compenics,

The People’s Insurance Coirpany [Grous) of China Limited
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4%, RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK foomtinwest)
) Regulatory framework

Regulators mre primarily interested in profecting the nights of policybolders and monitor themn closely io
ensaire that the Grosp ks satisfactorily managmg affairs for their benefil At the same tine, regulatons ane
also interested in ensuring that the Group maintaans an approprate selvency position W meet unforessen
linhilities arising from econoeric shocks or natural disasters,

4. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
() lmsurance risk

{1l Jwswrance risk Hipes

Thie risk under an insurance contract is the possibility of occwrrence of insured events and
uncentminty of the amount and tming of the resulang claims. The principal fisk the Group faces
uider such contraces is that the actual claims and benelil payiments exceed the cafrying nmeant of
insurznce Habilities, This could socur due toany of the following fctors:

Occurrence risk - the possibility thai the mumber of insured evems will differ from that expeciad.
Seventy risk — e possability tat the costs of the events will differ from tsese expected.

t risk — the possibility that changes may occur i the amoum of a policyhokder’s
obligation s the end of the conrect period.

The variability of risks is improved by diversificanon of risk of loss fo a large ponfolio of insurnce
contracts as 4 more diversified porfolio is less likely o be affecied across the board by change in
any subset of the pondfolio, The variability of risks is also improved by caneful risk selection and
impEermemation of underwriting stratepy and guidelines.

When the underwriting risks principally are mornality risks, epidemics. widespread changes
in lifestybe and natural disasters may result in earlier or more claims than expeceed; when the
underwriting risks principally are longevity nisks, continued improvement 10 medical science
and social conditions that wouold impeove longevity and may resubt in losses @0 anmity or similar
contracis. For copracts with discretionary pamicipation feares. a significant portion of these
Insuratice misks are shared with the insured partics,

Insurance risk of life insurance contracts is also affected by the policybolders” rights to ferminate the
coatracts, 1o pay reduced premiums, refise to pay premiums or 1o avidl anmudty conversion rights.
Therefore, the resultant insurance risk is subject to policyhalders” behaviour and decissons.

Prior to Angust 2013, iaditional long-term life imsorance products sold by the Group was priced
at a valuation imerest vate of 2.3% per ammum. Subscquenily, this pricing assumgiion was relaved
for traditional products in 20013 and then for pantcipating products during the year ended 31
December 2015. Among the gross kong-term liabilities of RMB291.009 million (51 December
2015; RMB285.376 million) as at 31 Decensber 2016, RMB150.205 million (31 December J015:
RMB163 485 million) was reserved for products prived/gusmnieed at 2,5%, while RMBI 18,016
million (31 December 2015 RMB102,650 million) was reserved for products priced gurmesd an
4.025%,, 1f the actual investment retums generated by premiums of long term life insumnce products
were bess than those assumed inthe pricing, the Groap may incur [osses on these insurance contmcts,
Participating insurance products are very common im the Chinese markel. Long term life insurange
linhilities in relntion to panicipating insurance isets was RMBIOT, 167 million (31 December
2015: RMB148.032 milleen) os 0t 31 December 2016, which constiuics aromnd 3745 (31 December
2015; 52%) of the 1otal long term life msurance liabilities of the Group.
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcontinned)
(@) Iosurmnce risk foomtiinyed)

I} Juswrance sk fpes foomtinmed)

For non-life insurance contracts, claims are often alfectad by manmy factors such as climate changes,
matural disassers, calamities, and terrons achivites.,

Giross and el prendums witlen (o certain extent represent the msk exposures of the Gromp before
el after reinsurance and the information is presented monote 5 1o these conselidated financial
statciments.

20 lismranice risk comcenifragiai

Non-Hie claims of cemuin provinces in the PRC are often affected by natoral disssters including
fooding. earthquakes and ryphoons. Therefore, an undue concemration of nsk units in these areas
may have an iinpact on the severity of claim payments oi a portfslio basis. The Group has achieved
geographical diversification by accepting risks in different provinces of the PRC (including Hong
Kong).

The Group's concenitration of pon-life msurmnce fsk before nd after reinsurance, measured by
peogrmphical tumaver and net writlen premiums of non-life msurmnce, & as ollows;

{111 i k]
Giros Met Giross Net
Coastal and developed provinces cities
(imcluding Hong Kong) 142076 127,400 127,794 113317
North=gastern China 10505 17138 18,258 15,758
Northermn China 40,178 0928 37656 14,014
Ceniral China 42,620 39119 36,733 33,260
‘Westem China 66,927 695 0l 342 55,309
Total premiums writien from
non-lifie inmurance contracts kYT IHI.280 281,817 252658

For hife and health insumance conracts, their msamnce nsks usually do not vary significantly in
relation fo the geographical locations of the insured and therefore peographical conceitraizon by

locations are nol presented,
() Reinsirance

The Gioup lanis il exposure fo losses within nod-lile and shom-term beabll (psimice opergons
mainly through participation in reinsurance amangements. The majority of the busimess ceded is
placed on the quota share basis or the surplus line basis with retention limits varying by prosduct
lines. There are profit commission, sliding. scale commission and loss participation Hmit clauses in
yarious proportional reinsurance contracts. Excess of [oss catastrophic nansumnee is also armnged o
Timat the Group's exposure o certaim catasirophic events.

Even though the Group may have reinsurance arrangemients, it is pot relieved of his direct obligations
1o s policyholders. During the year, the Group's foa-life premiuns ceded o ihe lop thive
meinsurance companics amounted o RMBI4.21T million (2015 RMBI3699 million) and thus &
credit exposure exists with respect 1o the businesses ceded, to the extent that any of these reinsurers
are unable to meet its obligations assamed under such reinsurance agrecments.

176 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcontinned)
(@) Iosurmnce risk foomtiinyed)
() Retrsirance feontimmed)

Reinssrance recoveries on unpuid claims are seporately estimated for proportional treaties,
facubiative reimsurance armanpements and other treaties apphving 1o parts of son=life msurnce

contracts,

Reinsurance Estimation method

Proportional tréaty As a cenuin perventige of gross claim Habilities

Facubative Case eatimates of individaal large claims multipled by on IBNR ratio

Other treaties Incurred claims loss development method el Bamnhuener-Ferguson
miethod

) Ky assnmptions aud semsitiviy amilyi
Long-term life insurance contracts
Seeitfvity analiais

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements i key assumptions with all
other assumpiions held constant, showing e pre-tax impact on profs and equity. The comelation
of msumptions will have a significant effect m determining the ubimate claams Habalities, but io
demonstrate the impact duc 1o changes in assumplions, assumpions have 1o be changed on an
individual basis, It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-lingr, Sensitivity
informaticn will also vary acconding 1o the Gument economic asumptions, mainly due 10 the impace
of changes to both the intrinsic cost and time value of options and guarantees. When options and
guarpnices. exist, they ane the main rexsons for the asymmetry of wnsitivities, The impacts o fbune
dividend distnibutions 1o policyholders are considered in determining the impact of changes in
imdividual dssumnplions.

Long-1erm life and healtls insurance comracts held by PICC Life:

Pre-tax inipact on

Change in assumptions pealin aml ity

il 2015
Discount ratc +5ibp 5,085 3319
Dhiscount raic ~Silbp {5,606) (3,605)
Mortality/morbidity 1% (548} {285}
Maortality morbidity -0 56l il
Lopse and surrenders rate 25% 597 97
Lapsc and surrenders mibe 25% (651) (394}
Expemses | 100 {1686) (91}
Expenses L 165 91
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcontinned)
(2} Insurance risk feomsinued)
4l Key acsnmptions and sensitfvigy analysis (comtimpedl
Long-term life murpnce contracts feontimed)
Senzitfviny amalysis foomitmed)
Long-term life and health msurance comrcts held by PICC Health:

Pre-tax impact on

Cleange i assumptions profit and ajuity

16 2013
Driscount rae +25bp 95 a3
Diiscount rae -25bp (L1]] (87}
Monality/marbidity 10t 7 {32)
Mortality/morbidity =100 17 2
Lapse snd surrenders rate lins 13 2
Lapse and surrenders rane = it i39) (213
Expenses |10, 155) {1y
Expensss Sk 55 10

The ahowve analysis does not take imo acoount the mitigation effect from assct-linbility management
and possible actions token by management in view of these changes. Any change in discount rate is
assumed 10 be a pamliel shift in vield curve.

Non-life insurance and short-term health insurance contracts
Key asanmpiions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Group's past cloims development
experience. Judgement is used 10 assess the extent 1o which external faciors such os judicial
decisions and govermment begiskation affiect the estimates.

The mnge of reasonable estimsies of claim reserve, projecied using difTerent statistical technigues
andl various key assumptions, represents different views on the speed of setflements. changes in
preminem rates and the underwriting comtrods over ultimate losses.

The-sensitivity, of certain vaninbles like legislative change and uncertainty in the estimation process
15 ok possible to quantify with any degree of confidence. Forthenmore, becaise of delays that arise
hetween the occumrence of 4 claim and its subsequent notification and eventual settlement, the claim
meserve 15 ot quantifinsble with certainty af the end of 2016 and 2015,

If the average cost per claim or the mumber of claims the claim resenves will change
propertionately. When the other assumptions. remain if the future average cost per claim
increases by 5%, the net claim reserves of the Groap will increase by approximately RMBS 5409
million as @ 31 December 201631 December 2015 RMBS,023 mllion).

As the chaims of life insurance are wually settled in | year, an analysis of the development of claims
was nt rellected in the mbke below,

178 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcomtinned)
(2} Insurance risk feomsinued)
4 Key axsnmptions and semsitivigy analysis fcontimsed)
Mon-life insurance and short-term health invarance confracts (rontmeed)
Koy assianions (cantinmd)

The followng analysis shows the development of non-life clums over a period of tme on a net

1L Y
S ot 1 e -
072 2013 14 2005 201t Tounl

Estimated cumulsive

claims:

At the end ofcurrent year 35,43 120,135 131,506 150,432 170,824 067092

One year Luier 43,230 120,252 131,347 148820 - 406,749

Two years Ly 85211 120321 130,602 = - 346,134

Three years lmter 95537 120,128 - - - 215,665

Fimir years later 5,641 = 4541
Essimated cumulative

claims a5041 120,138 1 340,602 149,020 170,824 67,115
Cumulative claiom paid (934060 (1732 (123038 (3392 (o) gETTAI3)
Subiotal as a

31 Deenter 2016 w20
Unpaid claims praos &

2012, vsallocasad boss

adjustment expenses,

discount and rigk margin 823
Hon-life unpaid clam

ICsTveS, bl 108025

The ultimate liabilities will vary as 3 result of subsequent developments, Differences resabting from
the re-assessmem of the ultimate lahilises are recognised in subsequent years,

(b} Financial risks
Iy Credit rivk
Credint risk s the msk that one party 10 a fimncial nstrument will cawse a finoncaal loss 10 the other
party by failing fo discharge an obligation.

The Group is exposed 1o credin rsks primarily associated with its: deposit amanpements with
commercial banks, subordinated debts, debd investmient schemes, inleresis receivable, other
recenvables, investments 0 debt secumities, imoestments i trast schemes, insumnce receivables and
feinsurance amangements. The Group holds a diversified portfolio of debt instrument and do not
have comcentration risk exeept for trasury bonds ssued by Ministry of Finance, The amounts of
MOF issued debt secunities was RMIE14.597 million (31 December 2015: RMB12.542 million) as ag
31 December 201 6,

180 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcontinned)
() Financial risks feomtimmed)
I} Credir risk foomnined)

The Group evaluates its credit nsgks in investments by both qualitative e quantititive analysis,
including studying the relevam indwstry, emerprise management, financial factors, company
prospects, as well as the use of ndernal credit models. The Group mitigates credit risk by using a
variety of methods meluding impositions of aggregite cownterpany exposure limits and increasing
the diversification of fixsd income mvestment portfidios.

The Group's credit risk associaed with imsurance recenvables mainly arises from non-hife insiminee
business for which the Goodp only istues inmimance policies on eredit 10 COFPOMEE Custoiers of 1o
indiveduals who parchase certain policies through insumnce intermediaries. A policylsolder usimlly
has a maximumn credit period of three months but o longer period can be granted on 2 discretionary
basis. For large comporate customers and cemudn multi-year policies, payments by instalments are
usually armngod.

Reinsumnce of the Group is mainly placed with neinsurers with Seandard & Poor's mtings of A-{or
ratings of an equal kevel given by other intermational rating insinutions such as AM, Best, Fich
and Moody'sh of above, Management performs regular assessment of creditworthiness of reinsuners
1o upelate reinsumnce purchase serbeges and ascertain suitable allowances for impairment of
Teinsurance assels.

Creadit exprominne

The table below shows the maximm exposure 1o credit risk without taking into sccount collateral
for the components of the consolidsted statement of financial position:

Al December 31 December

e 015
Cash and cash equivalents 46,728 40,5883
Drerivative financial assets 3 &
Db secunties 240,531 232,147
Trust schemes 7.166 1,361
Insurance receivables M3 21,358
Reinsurnce assets EIRIIL 26,542
Term deposits 91,484 148,007
Resmicied statutory deposits 2911 9914
Investments classified as loans amd receivables 168,778 110,485
Oeher financial assets 25601 24.;61
Total credit rsk exposure 656,060 633,363

Included in cash and cash equivalents are certain securities purchased under resale agreememts and
the relevant collaterals are dischosed in note 17,

Ineluded i investments classified as loans and receivobles are deb imvestment schemes which one
punranseed by banks or other corporates. Their carrying vitises ane disclosed in note 24.

Arval Risporl 2000 184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES frontinued)
{b)  Financial risks feowtimmed}
()} Credir rivk fommninged)
Ageing analvais of ffnancial assets feongined)

For recelvables artsing from direct insurance business. the Group assesses any Impairment on a
collective hasis according 10 defimb history of simlar lines of bisdness and ageing. For fnancial
assets other than recevables ansing from direct msurance companies, e Group considers, on
an mdividual basis, any default on amounts due, financial strength and repayment histories of the
relevant courerpartics when armving at the amount of impairmen.

Crdit gualicy

The Group's debt securiibes invesiment mainly inchsdes govermment bonds. financial bonds and
coporate bonds, As @ 31 December 2016, 1005 (31 Decomber 20152 99,56%) of the corporale
bomds beld by the Group had eredit rting of AASA-2 or sbove. The boad"s credie rating is assigned
by a qualified approisal instiution in the PRC ot the time of its isswance end updated ot each
reponing dute,

As a3 December 20016, 97,41% (as at 31 Decernber 2005; 98 69%) of the Group's bank deposits
are with the four larges: sinte-owned commercial banks, other natiomal commercial hanks and
Ching Securities Depository and Clearing Corporsiion Limited (®CSDCC™) in the PRC. The Group
belicves these commencial banks, and CSDCC have a high credit quality,

The credit risk associated with securities purchased under agreements to resell will not cause a
materal impact on the Group's consolidated financial staements tking into conssderation of their
collaternl hebd and maturity 1emm of no mone than one vear as a8 31 December 2006 and 2015

(20 Liguidiey rish

Ligmdity rsk is the risk of not having acoess to sufficient funds or bemg unable 1o liquklse 3
position in o timsely manscr at o reasonable price 1w meel the Group's ebligations as they become
due.

The Groip 15 exposed to liquidity risk on msurance policies that permit sirrender, withdrawal
or oiher forms of early termimation, As disclosed i note 24, the Group holds certain financial
instruments that are classifisd as loans and receivables as active markets do not exist for these
instruments. The Group also classificd certain del securities as held-to-maturdy fimancial assets and
15 onlky allewed to dispose of these financial assets prior 1o maturities in limited sstuation without
ininting held-to-mamirity financial assets. Therefore, the Group's obility 1o monage liguidiny risks by
disposing of these financial assets will be limited by these factors. Morcover, quoted financial assets
Tield by the Giroup are mainly iraded on the stock exchanges or in inter-hank marke1s in the Mainland
China Any sipnificant decrease in liguidity mm these markets will impair the Groap's ability 1o
manage its liguidizy risk.

The Group manages the liquidity risks of its major operating subsidiaries by requining them to
perform cash flow forecasts on a quancrly basis under different scenarios amd establish contingency
plars for any expected shonfall of Rguidity.

The Group held cash and cash equivalents which accounted for 5% of 1otal assets as o1 31 Decernber
200631 Pecember 2015 %)

It is unusual for an ererprise primanly fmnsacting msurance business fo predict the requircments
of funding with absoluic certainty, as the theary of probability is applied on insurance contmcts
1o ascermin the likely provision and the period when such lishilities will require settlement. The
amounts and maturity periods of these insurance linbilitics are thus based on management’s best
estimate according to stztistical technigques and past expenence.

Arval Risporl 2000 183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
{Amounds in miionz of Ronminbd wikess othanvee safad)

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fcontinned)
{b)  Financial risks feomtinmed}
{20 Ligwidity risk feomimued)
The table below suymmarises maturity profiles of financial insurnce assets, financial insurance
Teabilises and pension benefit oblgations of the Group.

Maturity profiles of linancial assets aml Habalities ane prepared uwsing the contractual collecisn o
repayinent dales.

For reinsurance assets, insurance and pension liabilites, the liquiding analysis présented below is
prepaned on the basis of expected tming of enbements of claimz of benelfis, These expectad timing
15 madle on the vanous assumptions, inchiding settlement speed of non-life clams, surrenders of
certain life insurance policies, and longevity af retired former employees. Therefore, actual Hming
candeviae from the analysis presenied below.

Allamsounts are based on undiscounted contractual cash flows,
— At M Deoembeer 2016 =
I*an dhe! Mare N
repavabileas Wil ) ini2 18 tanf  maneriy
dmied  wedl  mels yan Jan dte Tosl

Cash.and cash equivalents Wi M - - - - dam
Diesivatve financial assets = = I 1 = = 1
el seomions = TR E_ k] E ik = e
[Equity ssourite, uesy!

fons and st schernes = - i EALE] Ly LI 151891
Tesumance recivables, et s 1318 a0l LMY 2] - Rl
Remnmnros sots - L1 ] 15116 THE9 1 - 1315
Term deposts 14542 16,120 81,187 1249 184,715
Festricted stahmory deposits = L i} 7 a : 11424
Ievesiments classafied

i houms and roceivabies - 14519 o 1m 145 i = 1,111
(ke Fnanu] ssets SA I1&T55 1 Loy 115 - bLE k]
Total frnascisl and

L ain LS DA ISR6I5 M7 MRMM ke
Secunities: sold usder

agrecaents o epatchre: - M - - - - 1004
Toads payable - = 1421 e ik - 5
Resurancs contrac Tuabilitics : BRIE MOATE 13T LW . T
Tevestment coniract Eabilitisy

o palicyhaldens ] 1sdl TiE 1406 477 BN i
Palicyholder drvideadh.

pavable T8h! - - 1 - - T804
Pemsion bencfin cbigation - 5 150 m A - 4002
Onbier Bnzncis] ahilitey L b 9203 L L] - TN
Total fimancrad, raumnce

= peesia shililiss 10,761 144537 mi 1531599 AR o B 1} LR

184 mwmmwumw

313/358



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E26751)
Oooooood

314/358




EDINETOOOO

O000000000000000(E26751)

Oooooood

_..,”u_,__x_w_ﬁ.u A

BEECER

L] _..m,_m _

315/358



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E26751)
Oooooood

316/358




EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fronninued)
(k) Financial risks feowtimmed}
() Market rick feontimed)

Feireigm ewrrency rivk feontinued)

Sensitivity analysis roonibmied)

31 December 2015
Exchange rte of forcign currencies Pre-tax impact PPre-tax impact
l_1|1 millions of RMEB) oft profit unequi:_r_
+5% 497 725
3% [497) (T25)

The method wsed for deriving sensitivity information end significant variables did not change from
ihe previous year,

et rade risk

Interest rate risk is the risk teet the fair volue or future cash Mows of a financial instunsent will
Auictite becpse of changes in nuarket imenest rates.

Floatng mée imstroments expose the Group to cash flow mierest nsk, whereas fived interest rate
instruments expose the Group to fair value interest nsk.

Based on asset linhility mutching gap enalysis, the Group implements sensitive analysis and stress
tests 80 monitor and fo evalute intenest mie sk regularty. The Group mansges macnest mic nisk by
monitoring the average duration and expiry dates as well as adjusting composition of portfolio.

The Groop uses the VaR methodology to measure the expected maximurm loss in respect of mberest
raie risk over n kolding period of 10 trading days at a confidence level of %% for bond invesimends
measured of fair value,

As i 31 December
ik 2015

Inferest mie VaR 1,080 758

Privee rixk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of fnure cash ows of a fnancial instrument will Tuctuae
becais of clunges in market prices (other thin those anming from inierest rane Aisk of currency risk),
whether those chanpes are caused by factors specific 1o the indvidual financinl insrument or its
igswer, or Eactors affecting all simlar financial mstruments traded m the market,

The Group's price risk exposure mainly relates 1o the stock and fund invesiments whose vahes will
Muctute as @ result of changes in mirkel prices,

188 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

45, FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
Classification of fnancinl instruments

The Group’s fimancial mstruments maimly consist of cash and cash cquivalents, term deposits, derivative
financial asseis, debt securiies, equily secuntics, mubual finds and trost schemses, tvestments clasafied as
loans and receivables, securities s01d under agreement 1o repurchass and bonds payable, ete, The Group holds
varsous. otler fimancial assets and Habilities which directly aroge from insurnce operations, such ag insimnce
receivables, and Investment contract liabilities for policyholder, eic. The following rable sets out the carrying
ithues and Gir values of the Group's major financal mstrunents by elesificaion;

Carrying amount Fair value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
1006 2015 e 201
Fimancial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 46,729 49,554 46,729 A AR
Held-for-trading
- Equity securities, mutual
fiands and rust schemes 31,062 28744 11,062 2T
- Dbt securities 4,109 Tl 4,109 ToH
= Derivitive financial assets 3 B 3 ]
Avatloble-lor-sale
- Equity securities, mutual
funels and trust schemes 119381 06,018 119381 6,038
- Dt securities 114,591 106,348 114,501 106,343
Held-io-maturity investment
~ Dbt securities 120,831 125,031 127,91 135,809
Loans and receivables
- Insurance reccivables, net o kL 21554 EPREL 21,558
- Term deposits 41,884 145,007 91,884 148,007
- Restricted statutory deposits 9911 9914 9911 9914
~ Investments classified os loans
and receivables 168,778 110,485 177052 121,760
— (hher assets 25601 24568 25,601 24,568
Totl financinl asscts THR.219 721433 TR1623 T41.576
Fimnncial linhilitics
Other financial liabilites —
imesured # amorised cost
~ Securities sokd under
agreement 10 repurchase 3,066 25231 33,064 28.231
- Dhime o banks and other
financial institutions - Q0 - Q80
- Bonds payable 46,0184 39,200 40,328 44,337
- Inveszment contract labilites
for policyholders 38370 27601 3BT 27,601
- Pobicybolder dividenids payable TA64 2114 T.064 2014
~ (hher Habilities 632 45,690 64,632 45,6%6
Total financial lishalitees 149,216 145,532 192 464 154,959

190 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

45, FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY frontinmed)

{a} Fair value of the finpncinl pssets and fnoncial lobilitics that sre measured at fir value on ®

recurring basis frontineed)
Fairvalee Fair vl
liem 1l Devember 2006 31 Deoemher M5 erarriy Y ation s s o
it vl ey L) - Lo} (uakel i prices adwsted 8 Cgin dscoan doveTinal
secortios d PP s by e ook Scoes opton priciny mokl. The ey impet
bistorica ol of the s pricas o s
Avuibsk-oralk sy - | 100} Level3 Thie fr value = desermised wath reerence o e quosed Earin
socmntis md mm fonds price i st umd of Fremacwg price with m adisiment of
e by ik of by,
[ — a2 B Lol Rebive vikee b ar soeved hried m aiemet picitgde-
socuriics and el fands Cong D O o gy and cemmgs et
st of arpet compusy
Acuiable-for-ale gy 1084 BN Leveld Disormmter] b firw w fivae czh flows dhix 22 il
seourties, il fimch Tused on evnirciond ot i dvidend raies, ool o &
ml i whomns et e e ok chasaciershic of the coumierpary.

As it 3| December 2016, the Group transferred certnin debd secunitics with a carrying amount of
RMB4.838 million (2015 RMB6, 122 million) from Level | 6 Level 2 68 dhe Group could nol obitiin
quoted prices in active markets, The Group transferred debt securitics with a camying amount of
RMB2,200 mallion (2015; RMBS.076 million) from Level 2 1o Level | as the Group is able to obtuin

quoted prices in active markeis.

() Fair vabue of fingnciol assees aod linbilities not earvied ot fuir valoe

Some of the Group's financin] sssces and financial labilitses are not carmed a1 fnir valoe at the end of each
reporting period but their fair valises are disclosed in the rable set cut ot the begimning of this noe, The
level of fuar value in the fair value hicrarchy in nespect of these fair values disclosed are as the following:

Fair value Werarchy st 31 December X6

Level 1 Level 2 Toral
Financial assees:
Held-to-maturity financial assets 654 127303 127,961
Investmsenis clasified as loans
anill receivables - 177052 177,052
Financial liahilitics:
Bonds payahle 49,318 49,328
Fair value hiermrchy o1 31 December 2015
Level | Level 2 Totnl
Friiancial assegs:
Held-wo-maturity firancial assets 3126 133773 135,809
Investmenis classified as loans
and receivables - 121360 121,780
Financial liabiliies:
Bonds payable 44337 44,337

192 mwmmwumm

321/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembar 2016
JAmaounts in millons of Renmnb, unlacs ofhanyise siadad)

45, FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY fcontimyed)
{b)  Fair vabue of finencinl assces and labilities not corvied at fuir value fcomtinmed)
The fair vahies of the financial asscts and financial Habalities included in the Level 2 cotegones above
hiave been determined 0 accordsnce with generally accepled pricing models bassd on a discournted
cash flow analyzis, with the most significant inputs being the dascount rate that reflects the credst risk of
coumberpartes or the Growp,

e} Reconcilimtion of Level 3 fair value measurements

31 December 31 December

6 2015
Unlisted mvailable-for-sabe Ginancial asats
Oipening balance 17,722 2], M1
inmealised gaine recogmised in other comprehensive imcome: 942 -
Reclassification from coss to fiir value 40 1,766
Audditioms 7392 4,505
Disposals {3,095 (9.938)
Closing balance 13361 1772

Certmin pvinlable-for-sale were reclassified from being measured ai cost 1o be mezssured at fwir value as
management is of the opimion fair value measmrement can provide more relevant information to sers of
these financial statements.

An equity imvestmient of RMB3 554 million classified s available-for-sale equity secunities is subject
tova bock-up peniod of 6 months from September X016 to April 2017, To determme the e valse of the
investiment, the Group weed gooted price of the shares aking inlo accoant of noi-marketability discount
estimated using Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Group ised the historical volatility of share
prices s the significamt unobservable input in the fair value measwremsnt of the nor-marketability
discount. An merease or decrease in historical volatility of shanes would have a significant impact on
the fair value mensuremsent of noen-marketability discount and the recorded fair value. Therefore, the
avarlable-for-sale investment was classafied as Level 3 farr value hierarchy. The historical volatilittes used
in: measuring the fade value of shares of the mvestment as a8 31 December 2006 ane 6.65%. IF this input
was made higherlower by 5% while all the ofher varables were held comstant, the carrying smount of the
shiares as at 31 December 2016 woitld be lower/Tigher by approximately RMBTY mifllion,

Fair values of trust schemes of RMB7.266 million (2005 RMB10,361 million) are measured by
discounted cash Mows that are estimated based on contmciual amounts and dividend mies, discounted ot
a e that reflects the sk characteristics of the counterparty, A 50-basis point increosedecrease in the
dhiscount mte holding other variables constant will resull in o decrease/ineresse in camying amount by
RMBAS millioa/RMBSS millson (3] December 2005: RMBIOTmillion/RMBI2 1 milion),

A he falr values of all mvestinenl fropenies dre categorised as Level 3, reconciliation of the fair valise
movements are presented in notz 27 to these consolidated fimancial statements,

Arval Risporl 2000 1483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

46, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
{m} Contingeacies

{13 Due to the nature of the msurance business, the Group is subjed to legal proceedings in the ondimary
course of business; including being the plaiatifl of the defendant in litigation and arbitration. Such
legal procesdings mostly imvalve claims on the Group's ssurance polickes and the besses incumed
will be panly mdemmnified by reinsurers or other recovenies including sahvape and subrogation
Provision has been made for the probable losses to the Group, including those clalms where
mamagerment can reasonably estimate the ouscome of the Rtigotion taking imo socount the reloted
Tegal advice, il any. No provision is made for contmgencies and begal proceedings when the resuls
cannot be reasonably estimated or an cutflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits ks no
probable.

{2} The Company underwent restrecturing and reorganisation during the period from 199 and |995
Asa resolt of the restructuring and reorganisation, the Company and another insurance company
were spun off from the predecessor company, 1he People’s’ [nsurance Company of China, and
cach spun-ofT entity inheriied cerain assets and Habalites. During the process, the Company owed
certam amoumts o that insurance company and settled these debis by cash payments, assets or by
certain offseting amrangements, Due 1o the lorg history and tumover of s, the Company is not
able 10 reach an agreement with thit insurmnce company regarding the balances of debts that have
been repaid in the foem of assets or offsetting. Potentially, certain meceivables of payables miay ¢xist
hetween these two entifies, However, the Company 's management 18 of the opinion that the debts
have been fully repaid, and therefore any contingent indebiedness will not significantly impact these
consolidaied financlisl siatements.

(3} As arthe report date, there were vanous Litle defects for certain mvestment propenics, propery and
wquipment, prepaid land premiums and other assets held by the Growp. The Group may be required
to incur costs inchading relevant tixes to remediate these defiects. The cost that will be incurred for
e remedintion cannof be quantified a2 ihis stage,

(4] Duwe 1o historical reasons, the Group owned o lorge number of branches and subsidiaries. Alihough
these branches or subsidiaries may have been chised or Hguidaied, the Group may still have
exposres 1o any non-complisnce committed by these branches or subsidianics.

{eher than the above, 25 ai the ead of 20146, the Group had no significant contingencies to dischose.
(b} Capital eommitments and aperating leases
) Capital goummitieis

31 December 31 December

016 2013
Property and equipment commitments:
Contracted, but it provided for 1472 2 4646
(i As lesvor

The Group leases its imvestment propertics (note 27) under opernting lease amangements,
with lease terms maging from one 10 ben years, The termns of the leies genemlly requiré the
tenants 10 pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments acconding to the then
prevailing market conditions.

194 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faor the year ended 31 Decembar 2016
fAmodnds in miions of Ronminbl, wkess othanvee siafed)

47.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES feontinned)
e} Transactions with state-owned entitics in the PRC feangmred)

Transactions with other government-related entitics include insurnnce policies sold, reinsumnce punchased,
deposits placed wath banks, mvestments i debits of bodids and cormnissens pay 10 banks amd postal offices
for snsurance policies distributed,

Management considers that transactions with government-rekaied entitfes are activites conducted in the
erlinary course of business, and that the dealings of the Group have nit been significamly or unduly
affecied by the fct that the Groap and those governmenl-related entities are ulimately controlied or
owned by the PRC government. The Group bas also established pricing policies for products and services
and such pricing policies do not depend on whether or ned the customens ane government-relited entities.
Due to the complex ownership structure, the PRC government may hold mafirect interests in many
companies. Some of these interests may, in themsehes or when combaned with cther indirect ineneis, he
comrotling interésts which muy not be known o the Group.

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE CONMPANY

A1 December 31 December

e | [
ASSETS
Cash and eash equivalents 5084 1323
Dt securinies A3 519
Equity secunitics and mutual funds 048 T.248
Term deposits 135 124
Investments ¢lassified as loans and receivabiles 1806 2,46
Investments in subsidiaries K318 &1,318
Investments in associnies 5137 4 6R1
Investment properics 1,201 1,191
Property and equipment 158 184
Intingible assets 25 L
Prepaid Land premiums 67 (3]
{(Rher asscts 2080 T
TUTAL ASSETS 10F7 H82 105,739
LIABILITIES
Lecuritics sold under agrecment (o repurchase - i
Bonds payable 15,984 15973
Pengion berefit ehligaton 2,800 2,000
Uhher lzabilities 1.406 1,346
TOTAL LIABILITIES 0,190 20,369
EQUITY
Share capital 42,424 42424
- Reserves 45,268 42M6
TOTAL EQUITY #7,692 5370
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 107 182 105,739

198 The Pecple's insurance Cotrpany (Group) of Ghina Limited
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37 18.52
12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55 15.06
12.65 15.79 17.18 19.40 16.33
13.69 17.31 19.47 18.56 16.78
100
2016 12 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
17.00 16.89 16.66 16.66 16.14 16.54
16.45 16.47 16.29 16.08 15.75 16.13
16.75 16.68 16.45 16.38 15.96 16.30
100
16.18 2017 13

100
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2014 2037 12 31 15.315% 15.315% %
2038 15% 15% %
2014 2037 12 31
20.315% 2038 20%
(b)
2009
2016 1 1 2016
©

©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Peopl€'s Insurance Company (Group)
of China Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group™) set
out on pages 3 to 136, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
December 2015 and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control asthe
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 1n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity'sinternal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements give atrue and fair view of the financial positon
of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2016
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'SINSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Peopl€’ s Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The People’s Insurance Company (Group)
of China Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group") set
out on pages 8 to 145, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("1FRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants ("the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financia statements as awhole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of Life and health insurance contract liabilities

We identified the valuation of life
and health insurance contract
liabilities as akey audit matter as
the determination of these balances
requires the use of appropriate
actuarial methodologies and also
highly judgmental assumptions.

The Group recorded long-term life
and health insurance contract
liabilities of RMB291,009 million
as at 31 December 2016.

Assumptions used in the valuation
of life and health insurance contract
liabilities include the discount rates,
demographic assumptions such as
mortality and morbidity,
assumptions on policyhol der
behaviour such as persistency, and
management assumptions over the
future costs of obtaining and
maintaining the life insurance
business. Small movements in
these assumptions can have a
material impact on the life and
health insurance contract liabilities.

Details of the life and health
insurance contract liabilities are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our proceduresin relation to the valuation of life and
health insurance contract liabilities included:

Testing the key internal controls over the
estimation of life and health insurance contract
liabilities;

Testing the underlying company data to source
documentation on a sample bases,

With the assistance of our actuarial speciaists:

Assessing the appropriateness of the
models, methodol ogies and assumptions
used (including assumptions on discount
rates, mortality, morbidity, persistency and
mai ntenance expenses);

Evaluating and challenging management's
key judgments and assumptions. Our
evaluation and challenge included whether
these judgments were supported by relevant
experience, market information and formed
areasonable basis for setting the
assumptions; and

Verifying independently the calcul ations of
actuarial models on a sample basis.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued

Key Audit Matters - continued
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of non-life insurance contract liabilities

We identified the valuation of non-
life insurance contract liabilitiesas a
key audit matter as the estimation of
non-life insurance contract liabilities
involves asignificant degree of
judgment.

The Group recorded non-life
insurance contract liabilities of
RMB242,493 million asat 31
December 2016.

The liabilities are based on the best-
estimate ultimate cost of al clams
incurred but not settled at a given
date, whether reported or not,
together with the related claims
handling costs. A range of methods
may be used to determine these
provisions. Underlying these
methods are a number of explicit or
implicit assumptions relating to the
expected settlement amount and
settlement patterns of claims. Small
changes in these assumptions could
result in material changes to the
account balance.

Details of the non-life insurance
contract liabilities are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of non-life
insurance contract liabilities included:

Testing the key internal controls over the
estimation of non-life insurance contract
liahilities;

Testing the underlying company data to source
documentation on a sample basis;

With the assistance of our actuarial speciaists:

Comparing the methodology, models and
assumptions used against recognised
actuarial practices by applying our industry
knowledge and experience;

Performing independent re-projections on
selected classes of business, particularly
focusing on the largest and most uncertain
reserves and comparing our re-projected
claims reserves to those recorded by
management to assess its reasonabl eness,
and

Evaluating the methodology and
assumptions, or performing a diagnostic
check to identify any abnormalities for the
remaining classes.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued
Key Audit Matters - continued
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Acquisition of an associate
We identified the acquisition of Our procedures in relation to the acquisition of an
an associate, Hua Xia Bank Co., associate included:
Limited ("Hua XiaBank"), asa o
key audit matter due to the Reviewing the sale and purchase agreements and
significance of the investment in verifying whether accounting treatments have been
Hua Xia Bank and the complexity applied in accordance with the terms and conditions
involved in the purchase price stated in these agreements,
allocation. Evaluating the valuation and accounting for the
The Group acquired 19.99% consideration payable and tracing the payments to
interest in Hua Xia Bank in bank statements;
November 2016. '_I'he Group Reviewing the provisional purchase price allocation
recognised a provisional gain on . :
. result performed by the Group with the assistance of
bargain purchase of RMB2,636 . - S .
I _ our valuation specialists, which included:
million for the acquisition and
included as share of profits of Assessing identification and fair valuation of
associates in the consolidated the assets and liabilities the Group acquired at
income statements. The carrying the acquisition date;
amount of the investment in Hua
XiaBank was RMB26,091 Comparing the valuation methodologies used in
million as at 31 December 2016. deriving the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities at acquisition date to generaly
XiaBank are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial Challenging assumptions used by management
statements. and the external valuers in the valuation models

and testing the integrity of the inputs used in
these models; and

Evaluating the scope of work, qualifications and
competence and independence of the external valuers
selected by the Group to support management to
prepare the purchase price allocation.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financia statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereisa
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with I SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - Continued

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them al relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Man Kai Sze.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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